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Fiscal Year 2018 Budget for the County of Maui.
Members Ms. King, Ms. Cochran, Ms. Sugimura

This morning we have Committee

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Atay

--

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Crivello, and Mr. Carroll. Members White and Guzman are excused.
We shall take, this morning we have testimony we’re going to take up before we start
our continued work on the Budget. Before we take up testimony, Members, with the
add-backs last night, over a million, we now have a shortage of over $5 million. Okay.
We are short of revenues by over $5 million. Okay. The State has decided we shall
not have coverage for our beaches so your Chair’s going to make an adjustment to
delete lifeguard services at Makena State Park.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Wow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll continue to look at the State request. You can count on less TAT
from the State. We have lost our tort exemptions and liability coverage’s. We are now
going to be increased with further benefit requirements under ERS. Arbitrator more
than likely today or tomorrow will make decisions on the remaining contracts. And I
gave you the arbitrator’s decision yesterday on those bargaining units. Okay. So
those are all the adjustments we’re going to need to make today. The Chair after
having the testimony yesterday and listening to you, the Members, Ill state upfront,
regarding the provision of overhead, the Chair is going to delete that provision and I’m
going to recommend that a task force be made up of Admin, Council, and nonprofits to
work on the measurements regarding financial measures. Also, in the future we’re
going to go back to the old policy, the task force will also investigate and report back
before next Budget, if you receive a line item, you will be prohibited from asking
monies from all other pots. If you want the money from all the other pots then you
will not have a line item. Okay. I don’t need this sleight of hand because now when
we add up certain entities’ monies from all the pots and the line item, we’re defeating
the purpose of how we approached this in the beginning from the Council, so we need
to make the adjustments. So they’re going to have to decide, line item or the pots.
Okay. This morning we’re going to take testimony at this time. Each person has three
minutes. State your name. If you represent an organization, state that organization.
We will assist you with your time. Yellow means 30 seconds or about 4 sentences to
conclude, red light means please stop. All noisemaking devices shall be off. Okay. So
we’ll start off this morning with Juli Patao please.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair. Is there a way to ask questions in reference to
your opening comments just now? Or shall we deal with that after testimony?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll deal with it after testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MS. PATAO: Good morning. Aloha, Chair Riki Hokama and County Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. PATAO: I appreciate all your time and energy spent refining the Budget process and just
working long and listening to each of our community members’ concerns. So thank
you for serving us. My name is Juli Patao, I’m an Assistant Professor at the University
of Hawaii Maui College and the Cooperative Education Internship Program Director.
On April 17th, I testified from Molokai with one of my students as I had these blue
folders on your desk with our student testimonies. And just allow me to give you three
critical reasons why our program is so essential to Maui nui. Research shows that
community-based learning is critical to students’ development.
What is
community-based learning?
It’s learning outside of the academic classroom,
preparing students to learn from our partnership. So one, employers who hire
students involved in work-based learning say that they require less training, work
better in teams, and have better work ethics than other new hires. Two, 92 percent of
adults favor emphasized real-world learning experiences, and that’s through Coop,
this program, community service, and training. And number 3, fostering students’
interest in our community is a strategy that sows seeds for lifelong learning. And
when students see themselves as students, they take responsibility for what happens
to their neighborhoods. The end result, learning that lasts well beyond that test in the
class and a commitment to service that lasts a lifetime. I just really want to thank the
countless County supervisors, mentors who over the years have taken our interns and
taught them these skills of leadership. To name a few special people, Lieutenant John
Foster from the Police Department, he was a former Cooperative Education student.
Chief Tivoli, our Police, our Chief of Police, he was a former alumni at the college,
Brianne Savage and Carla Peters from the Parks and Recreation, and many countless
mentors throughout the County departments. We are extremely appreciative and
humbled knowing that we will persist in shaping Maui’s community as your partner to
groom more Maui College students to become sought-after employees, active members
of the community, and future County of Maui leaders. Internships give students a
glimpse into the future. It teaches them what will be expected in the workforce and
develops confidence.
Supporting this partnership allows the pipeline dream to
support Maui’s workforce. I ask you again, please kindly support our Cooperative
Education Partnership Grant. Thank you for your time. Mahalo. Any questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Patao.
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MS. PATAO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wayne Wong?
MR. WONG: Good morning. My name Wayne Wong, I am the Center Director for the Hawaii
Small Business Development Center. We are the host for the Hawaii Business
Research Library and that’s what I am here to testify for today. I’ve already testified
once before about the value of it, the fact that we are handling over a thousand
requests a year; the ability to produce, research, and publish the Maui County Data
Book. All of these things are part of economic development for Maui County. It is
especially, you know, a task of ours to provide the ability so that people can make
economic decisions based on data as opposed to just hearsay or guesses. We get
requests as well as we produce reports monthly so that legislators, new business
startups, existing businesses who are looking to scale or move into new areas, they all
utilize this resource. The reason I’m here again today is because I wanted to just
make aware how important it is that we are able to utilize funding monies for
personnel and admin. In this particular case, the Hawaii Research Business Library
is really the Hawaii Business Research Librarian, and the person that we picked for
this comes with librarian skills as well as people skills and business skills. And now
what we’ve added in the last couple years is also the ability to be able to do analysis,
being really strong in Excel as well as now she is also very proficient in doing page
layouts so that we are no longer having to outsource and hire graphic designers to
actually produce the Maui County Data Book. And we produce it both in paper as
well as provide it online, again, all as a service to anyone interested in what’s
happening in Maui County. So I thank you for your service. I thank you for the
support that you have, and look forward to continuing support. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Wong. Pamela Tumpap?
MS. TUMPAP: Good morning, Chair Hokama and Members of the Budget Committee

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. TUMPAP: --and thank you for your continued service. And I know this is a very tough
job. I’m Pamela Tumpap, President of the Maui Chamber of Commerce, and we
wanted to talk again a little bit about rates and fees given the new changes. You know
small businesses in Hawaii make up 96.2 percent of all businesses in Hawaii, and
they employ on a State level over half of all State... I mean of all, of our employees. So
small businesses are really looking at how they can save costs so they can grow and
thrive. Now that the property taxes are now by category, two categories really stand
out for us. Obviously that would be Commercial and Industrial. We have many small
businesses that by national standards are microbusinesses in these areas and they’re
taking a disproportionate hit on the real property tax. So we’re concerned about that
and ask that that be lowered, and we ask that all the property tax be lowered and
uniformly applied as we’ve asked for before. We~re also a little bit concerned given
Conservation going to 18.5 percent, especially when we’re looking at our own
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municipal golf course and saving that. That will hurt many golf courses on island, so
we’re deeply concerned about that, and it seems like an exorbitant hit for that
industry. We deeply care about affordable housing and while we feel more work is
done on a plan if we’re going to spend 3 percent of our real property tax on affordable
housing, we also support using the existing fund first of close to $6 million. We do feel
they need the appropriate staff to drive home what’s needed to get to those close to
14,000 affordable units needed between 2015 and 2025. So we do ask that the
staffing level be raised there ‘cause that took a significant cut. On CORA rates, the
commercial ocean recreational activity operators, people who look at the rate increase
that this, these group have experienced to go from $1,000 for the first 2 permits to
2,400 per permit and then $500 for each additional to 2,400. They feel the industry is
being unfairly hit and somehow singled out. So for those of you who support small
businesses, we asked that those be reduced. On the Waiehu Golf Course, we do
support keeping the Waiehu Golf Course open if it can be done sustainably, and we
feel that the rates proposed currently are not at that level. So we encourage higher
rates for the Waiehu Golf Course, but we do support keeping it opening. On refuse
collection fees, we see that the increase has been decreased to 20.. .from 20.. .well, it
was increased from 24 to 30, we supported the 30. We appreciate that you~re giving a
savings to the community but we feel that 3 additional dollars could be beneficial
given some of the other things the County is looking at. However, we’re concerned
about $3 per car at the landfill because we have concerns that that might deter people
from coming and it’ll cost more to administer than the $3 per car is worth. The water
rate increases, we support the 5 percent as proposed, but we also supported the
broader 5 percent. So in some cases on water we support higher amounts. And we
just thank you for the opportunity to report on these changes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Ms. Tumpap. Gerry Lum, please?
MR. LUM: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. LUM: Good morning, respected Councilmembers. My name is Gerry Lum, I’m the
Community Services Director for Maui Economic Opportunity.
And under my
department I have four programs that I administer that we receive from the County of
Maui. They are B.E.S.T. Reintegration program, Enlace Hispano program, Planning
and Coordination Council, and the Rental Assistance program. This morning I’m here
to speak about the B.E.S.T. Reintegration program. As a matter of background, the
B.E.S.T. Reintegration program provides a service model that addresses the many
individuals that are returning to Maui County and they are facing challenges when
they return. The goal is to provide support by increasing the opportunities for the
successful reintegration while promoting public safety. In the Mayor’s Budget, he had
indicated he was going to cut 3 percent, through this body here another 3 percent, so
a total of 6 percent which severely impacts this program. For staffing, we have
1 full-time person, 1 part-time person, and a small percentage of my time. Our
credentials involve us being trained and certified as offender employment specialists.
This is through the National Institute of Corrections. We also have one notary which
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is a highly essential position because of the many documentation that requires it to be
notarized. As a matter of highlight, up to March of this year, we have served
154 unduplicated clients. Our annual goal for your information was 58. So that
represents a 266 percent increase. We have served 14 pre-employment training
through the syllabus that we have. The only problem is we would like to see this
continue every quarter; however, this program is only dictated for us to go in Maui
Community Correctional Center by the respective administration there. Seventeen
clients are currently enrolled in adult education through the McKinley School. One
hundred and four receive this critical support services such as ID, birth certificates.
Without these critical documents, they cannot be employed. The average support
assistance for each client is $200. With the proposed 6 percent decrease, 28 clients
will not receive these critical services. I ask that you keep our funding at the same
level of this Program Year ‘16 and ‘17 which is $106,000. As you know, Maui
Correctional Center is bursting at the seams. We are trying diligently to help alleviate
that critical, the critical staffing there. I suggest that again, please keep our funding
at the same level. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Lum. Lehua Huddleston-Hafoka.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFQKA: Aloha and good morning, Budget Chair Hokama.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Thank you for the opportunity to allow me to speak this
morning. First of all, I’d like to say I’m very grateful and thankful that you folks
decided to rescind the 25 percent cap. I am grateful that I had people that had sent in
e-mails in support after myself notifying them via e-mail in the evening yesterday. It
speaks great volume for myself as the Executive Director to know that many of these
people do not have children that attend our youth center, but they do recognize the
value of our services, as the services of our other youth centers and Boys and Girls
Club throughout the County of Maui. So I’m very grateful and thankful that you folks
decided to rescind the cap. That would mean that we’d be able to continue our
services hopefully for another 34 years. We’ve existed since 1983, and as far as I
understand, we’re one of the oldest youth centers in the County of Maui. We will do
our best to bring in more funding through, you know, grants and fundraisers and not
become so reliant upon the County of Maui, as I know our goal is to ultimately reduce
our reliance on the County of Maui. So with that said, you know, we were prepared to
close our doors not as a threat but as a reality of what would had to have happen. I
was okay with the possibility of seeking employment elsewhere, I can work and do
whatever I need to do to help my family. But I would have had to have notified my
nine staff members and nearly 800 youth members that our doors would have to be
closing. And so I understand and believe that everyone here believes in the services of
our youth centers, hopefully to reduce any youth members growing up to be housed in
our jail, you know, so I think it’s crucial that we continue these services to prevent any
negative behavior. So with that said, I’d like to humbly thank you again for rescinding
the 25 percent cap. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Lorelle Peros?
MS. PEROS: Good morning, Chair Hokama

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. PEROS: --and honorable Councilmembers. My name is Lorelle Peros and I am the
Hospitality and Tourism Program Coordinator at UH Maui College. Thank you for the
opportunity for, to speak to you this morning. I’m requesting for your continued
support for the redevelopment of the former UH Maui College student housing into the
Hospitality Academy Training Center. The buildings are adjacent to the campus and
located, situated along Wahinepio Avenue. UH Maui College’s Hospitality and Tourism
program plays a critical and crucial role in providing Maui County with a qualified
workforce. The training center will provide our students, our future leaders a learning
environment that includes hands-on experience in a stimulating work environment
and hands-on experience in running an actual hotel. Students have the unique
experience of experiential learning within the framework of an academic environment.
This project over the years has garnered tremendous support from our hospitality and
tourism parthers who have in the past years contributed resources and actively
participated in the planning process. Since there were no qualified bids last year
within the budget, the college is moving forward in the redesign process, and I ask for
your support as we continue to carry out the college’s mission of inspiring students to
develop knowledge and skills in pursuit of academic, career, and personal goals in a
supportive educational environment. Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for your testimony, Ms. Peros. Alison Cohan?
MS. COHAN: Aloha, Committee Chair Hokama and Councilmembers. My name is Alison
Cohan, I’m the Director of The Nature Conservancy Maui Nui program. And in an
effort to spare you all redundant testimony, I’m actually here representing quite a few
folks in the audience that are recipients of Department of Water Supply watershed
grants as well as some OED grants. And just to quickly list them, The Nature
Conservancy, Puu Kukui Watershed, the watershed partnerships at East Maui, West
Maui, Leeward Haleakala Restoration, and East Molokai Watershed Partnership, as
well as Auwahi and the koa wilt project. And we were ready to come out in force about
the provision on personnel and administrative costs, but instead just want to mahalo
nui ba your proactive nature, your flexibility in removing that provision. It means the
world to us. If it had happened, we would have been laying people off unfortunately
and it would have just been a detriment to the actual goal of the grant program itself,
because we~re out there, boots on the ground in the mud, in the muck in remote
rainforests, and ultimately increasing groundwater recharge, increasing the water
quality and the water quantity for Maui County’s residents and visitors. And you
guys, I just want to thank you, mahalo nui ba so much, because you~re proactive,
you’re akan-iai, you’re supportive, and you totally get it. And we really appreciate it so
much. And I think all of us would be happy to answer any questions about how we
use your funds, but we do leverage it significantly. So again, mahalo.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your testimony and to represent all those other
groups, we appreciate it. Catherine Clark please? Okay, mahalo. Catherine Clark
please? After Ms. Clark we’ll go to the District Offices since we have residents who
would like to testify.
MS. CLARK: Aloha, Councilmembers. My name is Catherine Clark. Thank you for
supporting control and hopefully eradication of invasive species. I live along Maliko
Gulch, and as a neighborhood we gather several times a year to brainstorm to come
up with new ways to control the Coqui frog issue. Within our group some neighbors
have invested in heavy-duty commercial spray equipment, others in smaller sprayers
to use on their own. Some neighbors have created a no-frog barrier, a barren stretch
of 10 to 15 feet along the edge of their property. The frogs are reluctant to cross that.
We have neighbors out helping other neighbors. We are trying to be the barrier
between our section of the infested gulch and the spread of frogs throughout Haiku.
Chasing frogs is a nightly task for many of us. We’re doing everything we can, but we
need your help because we cannot be 100 percent effective on our own. We were
relieved to see that this Council understands the magnitude of this issue and is
prepared to financially support the battle. If you would like to experience it firsthand,
I would be happy to accompany you on a walk through Haiku Hill any night that you
would like. I’m here to say thank you from the neighbors at HaikU Hill for the support
shown in this Budget. The other item I want to comment on is enforcement of
short-term rentals. As a board member of MyRA, I’m pleading with you to support
Ms. Cochran’s request for funding to utilize outside services to track down
unpermitted short-term rentals. I realize the price tag is $78,000, but this is most
likely less expensive than trying to do it in-house. Not only will it send a message to
illegal short-term rentals that they need to get a permit or stop operating, but it will
free up housing for long-term lodging. Even if it only frees up 200 units, I don’t know
of any other action that could create 200 units of long-term housing for $78,000. This
issue consumes an unreasonable amount of time for this Council and the Planning
Department. Enforcement is always a hot topic and hours are spent discussing it, but
lately the number of unpermitted rentals is growing again. Outside services utilizing
big-data solutions has worked for other communities and could be the perfect solution
for Maui County. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Ms. Clark, we appreciate it. We’ll go to our
Hana Office and ask Ms. Lono for any testifiers this morning.
MS. LONO: Yes, good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and I have
Ms. Becky Lind, Executive Director of Hana Arts.
MS. LIND: Aloha. My name is Becky Lind and I’m with Hana Arts. And I’m here to speak
about the Section 11 new clause that was added. We provide arts and cultural
education, life-enhancing, income-generating programs for East Maui. East Maui is
rural.
The opportunities are limited so these programs are some of the only
opportunities for people to learn, you know, alternative ways to support themselves.
We need those funds to keep our programs running. The OED grant has been great in
providing a way for us to pay the personnel to actually keep those programs going.
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Please reconsider, please, you know, think about the, how Section 11 clause is going
to make it much harder. The amount of people that we will be able to affect will be
greatly decreased if this is to continue on. So thank you. Thank you for hearing me.
And have a good day. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Lono, anyone else?
MS. LONO: There’s no one else waiting in the Hana Office to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. Ms. Fernandez, any testifiers on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and we have
three testifiers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. FERNANDEZ: The first person to testify is Gabe Johnson.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. JOHNSON: Good morning, Councilmembers. Mahalo for giving me this opportunity to
speak. I’m Gabe Johnson, a Lanai resident, and I’m speaking today as a single father.
I’m speaking today for my daughter Momoe. We have been trying to get a skate park
for the keiki of Lanai for several years now. We have formed grass-root groups to
advocate for the skate park and yet still no skate park. Lahaina has a skate park,
Hana has a skate park, Molokai has a skate park, yet still Lanai we don’t have a skate
park. The County is very good at making skate parks and I think it should be part of
Parks and Rec’s duty to build one for every community. As a taxpayer, I understand
that the County has its bills to pay, but right now we’re trying to do too much with too
little. Our property taxes need to reflect our political philosophies. And I believe that
money can be raised by increasing the hotel property taxes, because it’ll be the
children of the hotel workers who will have a direct benefit of the tax increase on the
resorts. However, let me address one issue that I have when we’re talking about the
increasing property taxes. Larry Ellison, the owner of 98 percent of the island and the
5th richest man in the world only pays $2.2 million in property tax for the entire island
of Lanai. The Shops at Wailea on the other hand paid roughly about the same in
taxes. So do you think that’s right? Do you think that having a large landowner pay
so little and get single-family homeowners struggle to meet the bills? Tax fairness in
my mind is not that every person is treated the same but that everyone’s needs are
being met. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Fernandez, anyone else on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The next testifier is Nicholas Palumbo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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MR. PALUMBO: Hi. My name is Nicholas Palumbo, I’m a lifelong resident of Lanai and a
single father who has full custody of two children. I’m, my testimony is for support for
a skate park here on Lanai Our crime rate with youth has gone up tremendously,
and our youth has found very limited with the activities to do here after school and on
weekends. For the last 20 years or so, we’ve been advocating for a skate park, and
now I have an 1 1-year-old daughter and we’ve been trying to get a skate park here
since I was 11 years old. And I’m, I fear for my children just being the lack of things
to do here. Youth are ripping off houses, stealing pills, alcohol, things like that. And
actually kids are getting ticketed for skateboarding on the sidewalk; it’s actually
illegal. So, you know, I just came here to testify on the importance, and that’s all I
have to say. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else on Lanai?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Yeah, our last testifier is Winifred Basques.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. BASQUES: Good morning, Councilmen.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BASQUES: My name is Winifred Basques. I’ve been on this island 54 years and I see a
lot of changes. Several months ago, we required to have a skate park, but there is no
skate park due to the lack of the funds. It had been reallocated to somewhere else.
The thing is that my grandson ride that skate nighttime after the stores is closed, and
that’s the only place he can ride, on the road. The thing is though that the policeman
approaches saying, he cannot do that or he gonna make
for them. And another
thing, the bicycles, the regular bicycles ride on the sidewalk. Even though it’s the
daytime, they riding on the sidewalk and people are standing there, they do not move,
they just go around. And the thing is that it’s very not good for the situation that they
doing. They think they come here from off-island to ride their bicycle all over the
place, and yet the kids cannot have a skate park which they can do what they want to
do on the skate park. In fact, I would like to say why is it that, right, the other two
gentlemen here saying that they have skate park in Maui, in Wailuku, Hana, I visit
Hana and Lahaina. But due to the fact there is no skate park here on the island.
Mahalo.
_____

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Wini.
MS. BASQUES: Thank you very much.
MS. FERNANDEZ: And that was our last testifier.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Fernandez. Molokai, Ms. Alcon, anyone wishing to
provide testimony?
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MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
please?

Okay, thank you, ladies.

We’ll return to the Chambers.

Sarah Bryan

MS. BRYAN: Good morning, Chair and Councilmembers. My name is Sarah Bryan and I am
here today as an alumni and previous steering committee member from the 2011
graduating class of the Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows program. I would like to ask that you
please not cut any funding from this incredible education program. The proposed
$10,000 reduction in funding represents a 25 percent cut to our entire budget. This
program originated out of the County’s Focus Maui Nui efforts and continues to play
an important role in grooming the next generation of County public servants. It
sounds like a cliché but Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows changed my life. It gave me the
network and confidence to make positive change for our community. First, I took on
more responsibility at my West Maui Watershed Partnership job. I created our
first-ever public involvement program and joined the team to draft three major
management plans for our next five years. Before that, I was only in charge of our
books. I became the first Executive Director for the Maui Nui Marine Resource
Council. I had no experience being an executive director, but I knew almost everyone
on their council already mostly due to the Fellows’ program and they knew that I
would work hard for them. I became the longest running officer for the Maui
Conservation Alliance and managed our efforts during the IUCN World Conservation
Congress. Prior to the Fellows’ program, I sat in the back and I simply listened. I
built a Statewide GIS certificate program from scratch which graduated 82 students
and got 131 Statewide employers to work directly with students on their projects,
mentoring them and hiring more than 28 percent of our students right out of a
1 semester class. How do you think I knew all those employers? You guessed it, the
Fellows program. In the 6 years since I have graduated, I personally hired 4 Fellows
as well as providing work to or working for 31 graduates of this program. This just
shows you the incredible impact of this network. In the 10 years since we started this
program, we have graduated 111 young leaders from this program who are now
actively helping to better our communities across Maui nui, not just on Maui. These
are the people that we need to be supporting, not taking from. I am asking that you
please restore our funding for FY ‘18 to 25,750 which is a drop in the bucket
compared to how much this program has leveraged in social and financial capital in
its 10 years. Not only do we need to maintain current funding but we are actively
working towards a 501(c)(3) and will be hiring a full-time director, and we will need to
substantially increase funding on top of current Maui County funding to accomplish
that. In addition, much of this funding goes to our scholarship program, and because
about half of our Fellows receive some kind of tuition, these cuts would inadvertently
harm those who deserve to be in the program but who cannot afford it. Again, I just
want to iterate that this was a Focus Maui Nui initiative begun through the County of
Maui, and we would really appreciate your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Bryan.
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MS. BRYAN: Any questions or... no. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Marie Villareal?
MS. VILLAREAL: Aloha to the Chair and Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. VILLAREAL: My name is Marie Villareal and I’m here on behalf of the UHMC Head Start
program. I’m asking for a 3 percent increase on this program. I understand that you
have a hard, very, very hard job, I would never like to fill your shoes, sir. You
have.. .it’s like an ohana, we are an ohana, we’re on an island, we all help each other.
We all buy from each other’s stores, we’d rather buy local and pay a little more money
than buy from somewhere else. I understand that it’s a very, very hard thing that you
have to do in making a budget. I am a parent and I know what it’s like to live on a
budget. I know what it’s like to not have enough to pay for the light. The light has to
get shut off because you know what, we need food on the table and we~re going to BBQ
outside. So I understand and I respect everything that you guys do. I know that it’s
hard to just leave this here; you have no choice but to take this home. I’m here on
behalf of the UHMC Head Start. Once again, just really quick, I know I’m short on
time, I want to let you know that I was molested by my own biological father when I
was a child from three to five years old. I was broken as a child. I grew up to be a
broken adult, and let me tell you that it is much easier to build strong children than to
fix broken adults. Our keiki are so important. We need programs like MEO Head
Start because it’s a safe environment. Our kids are not going to be molested, raped,
touched. That’s a parent’s worst nightmare. Me as a parent I don’t trust anybody to
care for my child, but I have trust and I love the MEO Head Start program because I
can feel safe. I can go to school and I can focus on school to be a better parent, to give
my child a better future than any kind of life that I had. Our children are very
important. My son is about to graduate in a few days so it doesn’t matter for me
anymore, but it does matter because this is for our future keiki, I mean our keiki
that’s going to be our future Councilmembers, things like that. And just in closing, I
just want to say really quick that my husband was diagnosed with cancer and he
couldn’t handle it, so he left and he abandoned our family. Still I went to college. No
money, he was the bread winner. I took my son to UHMC because it was a safe place
to take him. I told Ms.
I really want to give up, I want to give up this dream that
I have for now, go back to waiting tables. She said don’t do it, Marie, don’t do it. You
keep pushing. That’s the kind of program that you have there, sir. I want you to
know that you should be very proud of this lady called Ms.
She’s probably a
nobody and probably nobody here has probably heard of her, but she’s my son’s
preschool teacher and she gave me the push to keep going. Today I am finishing the
semester and I got a financial aid scholarship, and I just want to tell you how
important this program is. Please, please, I’m asking for a 3 percent increase. I know
it’s.. .you know, I’m going out of the box but we need it. Thank you for your time.
_____

____.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here this morning. Erin Wade?
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MS. WADE: Thank you, Chair. Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. WADE: And good morning, Members. My name’s Erin Wade, I work for the Planning
Department. I’m the Small Town Planner. And for the last year about maybe
18 months, I’ve been assigned specifically to Wailuku Town. One of the programs we
built in the last year was the Clean and Safe program, and I’m here to talk about that
specifically this morning because I think there might be two things that could use
some clarification. In FY ‘16 we were given $100,000 for the Clean and Safe program,
we bid it out, I didn’t get any responses at the $100,000 level. There was no one that
could offer us a program at that level, and that’s what is in the current Budget. So in
FY ‘17 we asked for another $100,000. We put those 2 together to create a $200,000
progran-i, and that is the annual cost of our current Clean and Safe program. So just
for clarification, I know it’s misleading because it looks like last year we only spent
$100,000, but we actually married it with the FY ‘16 100,000 for a total of a $200,000
program. So technically it’s not an increase in cost, the annual cost is 200. And then
another just point of clarification and I know we mentioned this as we were asking you
the last couple of years to help us build this program, this isn’t the only
non-government clean and safe program, Lahaina Restoration Foundation also cares
for public lands within the Lahaina Historic District. They do receive a $170,000
grant through the Parks Department to do so. And that’s similar to what we’re doing.
They don’t offer safety, they do offer the maintenance and cleanliness that we are
currently offering in the Wailuku Redevelopment Area. So just for clarification, it does
happen elsewhere at 170,000. And then finally I just wanted you to know that we are
working at cost recovery, so one of the things that is going to be beginning actually
next week is looking at a parking fee schedule in Wailuku Town. So we do have a
consultant who’s coming on and will be visiting the Budget Committee probably
several times over the coming year, to work through what might be appropriate to
charge for public parking in Wailuku. We’re estimating over 200,000 in capture if we
do so. So we’re hoping to in fact recover the full cost of the Clean and Safe program
through that. I’m happy to answer any questions if you have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Wade.
MS. WADE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Carol Ball please?
MS. BALL: Good morning, Chair Hokama

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BALL: --and Committee Members. My name is Carol Ball. I am Vice-Chairman of
Maui Redevelopment Agency. And I’m here to, this morning to talk to you about
Clean and Safe funding. When I was appointed to the agency in 2013, most of
meetings were dominated by parking variance permits, but sprinkled throughout
-
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discussion was talk about the revitalization of Wailuku, my own home town. The
people who had come to talk to us about revitalizing Wailuku kept talking about
cleanliness and safety, and having grown up there, I thought why are they talking
about this until I heard the testimonies from people who are working and using
Wailuku as a place for their dance studios and so forth. And they couldn’t walk the
streets or have their little girls walk to the dance class without driving directly to the
location. And I realized then how important it was from the testimonies of others who
had developed and revitalized aging towns, the safety and cleanliness program. And
thus the Clean and Safe funding was requested of you. And thanks to Lawrence
Kauhaahaa who he had took it upon himself as his own who was an employee and
created a Clean and Safe program that is rivaled by none. If you hear the testimonies
of those merchants that, others who live in the, who work and live in the area, you’ll
see that it has just changed so much. But what I want to tell you is what Ms. Wade
already shared with you, the $200,000 that we ask for is not just... and we’re not just
saying oh just give us more money, that’s the total cost of the project. That’s what it
costs to run the program as it should be to make those streets safe for the people who
are coming today and who will be flocking there once we finish the revitalization. You
gave us millions of dollars for the development but we need this, this is the lifeblood,
it’s the heartbeat of the program. Please restore our 200,000 that we ask for because
that’s what we need. Thanks so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Ball. Marlynn Tanji?
MS. TANJI: Good morning, Budget Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. TANJI: --and Councilmembers. My name is Marlynn Tanji, I’m with Hale Mahaolu’s
Home Ownership and Housing Counseling Program. I’m here today to represent Hale
Mahaolu. Our Executive Director Roy Katsuda, Kathy Louis who is our Director for
our Personal Care Program and our Housing Counseling Program. I’d like to thank
you for rescinding the 25 cap on that Budget provision. That would have been
devastating for all of our programs. We do direct services for Maui County and that
would really reduce the services that we can provide. We are the only HUD-approved
housing counseling, comprehensive housing counseling agency on Maui. So we do a
lot of first-time homebuyer classes. We have a full-time counselor and two part-time
counselors and we provide all the services. So we teach the classes. We work with
families that are facing foreclosures. And that would have been seriously hard on
families that are trying to purchase a home or trying to save their home from
foreclosure. So I’d like to thank you for rescinding that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Tanji. Monique Yamashita please? Monique Yamashita?
Okay, thank you. Leslie Lau Tee?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the audience): Lau Hee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Lau Hee, sorry.
-
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MS. HEE: Aloha and good morning, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. HEE: --and Councilmembers. Well, I’m here again, and I just wanted to bring more
testimony from my previous students and parents and also agencies that I’ve worked
with. And by reading them, they will sell it itself. And I’m here to, on behalf of Hooulu
Na Kamalii and to ask of you for approving the budget that I have submitted. I do
understand that Budget is tight and I will work with anything that you give me. But
the number that I submitted is important to start up the program. And I do see in a
few years down the line we are able to sustain the program. Once everything starts to
flourish and the program is up to par, we will be looking at other means of funding.
Like Kihei Youth Center, we look forward to doing fundraisers. Our... the program is
broad and it’s different. We do have a lot of programs out there for youth, but I believe
ours is unique in the location that we are in. I traveled to Oahu just a few days ago
and I opened the booklet of Hawaiian Airlines and what do I see? A farm connecting
with the youth. So I’m like oh my goodness, this must be destiny or something. So
it’s, there is a movement going on in the islands and I believe connecting the ama with
youth will work. Bringing the kids back into getting down and dirty like everybody
else, healing the earth, healing the lands will help heal the youth and also help heal
the families and the communities. I believe in this program totally. You haven’t.. .1
haven’t mentioned this to you and I wasn’t going to mention it to you but I was
advised maybe I should. I left my previous job seven months ago and I’m doing this
because I believe in it so much. It takes so much time to write grants. Oh my
goodness, you know, I’m new at this but I am still continuing to look for funding. You
are not the only one that I’m asking for funding for, and I do not want to depend on
you and our County for funding. So I’m looking for donations. And I’m doing it. So
any questions? No? Well, thank you. Thank you again. I know you guys are tired,
long days, long nights, so I really appreciate your time. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lau Hee. Phyllis Robinson please?
MS. ROBINSON: Good morning, Chair Hokama and

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. ROBINSON: --Councilmembers. I also want to express my deep appreciation for the
long hours you’re all putting in to help us create a balanced budget. You know
Councilperson Cochran I thought had an excellent idea when she suggested that we
raise the property taxes for the hotels, even a small amount would help make up for
that $5 million and then some. So I want to applaud that idea and I hope it gets
considered. I also want to speak on behalf of the three-can plan. I’m a resident of
Maui Meadows. I partake of that plan. I look around me as I drive through the
neighborhood, and I have to say that every single person, every single house takes
advantage of that plan. And I believe that by cutting the program or moving it, that
we’re giving the message that we do not believe in recycling here on Maui. I believe
-
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that we need to create a culture of recycling. We live on a fragile island with limited
resources in terms of our ability to save every single part of this island that we so
deeply appreciate. So recycling is important and I wonder what’s happened to the
audit that was done when Kyle Ginoza was head of Solid Waste. And I would like to
ask the Council and recommend that you reopen that investigation into Anaergia. I
know they’ve changed their name and I know they~re working in some other part of the
island right now, but I would highly, highly encourage you to reopen that audit and
look at it. Because we may find something about Anaergia, I don’t know what their
new name is but that would maybe change our mind about recycling and keeping our
three-can plan and expanding it, what a good idea. And lastly, I want to speak about
raising the tax on biofuels at all. It is so contrary to our Countywide efforts to be free
of fossil fuels. So I would encourage you to do away with any taxation of biofuels.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much this morning, Ms. Robinson. Hoala Davis?
MS. DAVIS: Aloha and good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. DAVIS: My name is Hoala Davis, I’m the Executive Director of the Molokai Humane
Society. Mahalo for the amendments offered this morning to rescind the cap on the
percent of administrative funds received by so many organizations.
We are a
service-based organization. We require personnel and staff to provide vital services
such as spay and neuter and the administration of vaccinations and preventatives.
This fiscal year to date we have provided over 4,000 preventative products,
915 vaccinations, and 710 spay and neuter surgeries. These are steps that we take to
directly reduce the impact that animal overpopulation has on our community and
which County funding directly supports. On Molokai we are the only entity managing
the animal population. If we are not able to perform our services, there is no one to fill
our void. Unfortunately, mother nature doesn’t slow down and it would only be a
matter of months before feral cat populations and unwanted dog litters would impact
the community at large and the environment around us. We service almost every pet
owner on island as well as the many un-owned, lost, and abandoned animals that find
their way into our facility. Without our staff, we would be able to unable to perform
the medical services that we do. Limitations on expenditures are necessary and I
commend each of you for doing your due diligence to ensure that our tax dollars are
well spent and well managed; however, to perform these services, well-trained and
dedicated staff are also essential. The County funds we receive allow us to keep three
vital positions in place at our facility. These are Molokai born and raised women that
not only play a critical role in our services but they are highly trained and skilled in
their field, and they’re dedication to our community is what helps to make our
organization so successful. In addition, a small portion of our veterinarian salary is
covered. The County of Maui does not fund my position. Personnel limitations would
limit either the impact that our staff has or our ability to perform services or will place
the burden of the expense for our services on our community members. I am so
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thankful that this fiscal year we can continue to support our community and our
animals. Mahalo for helping to keep Molokai’s animals happy and healthy. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Davis. Eric Jayne?
MR. JAYNE: Hello.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. JAYNE: My name’s Eric Jayne, I’m the veterinarian at the Molokai Humane Society, and
I came over this morning when we heard about the cap just to talk about that, so I’m
also glad that that was changed. But I just wanted to talk about how important it is
to have the veterinary clinic on Molokai. And most veterinary clinics, the payroll staff
costs run between 50 to 60 percent of the total operating budget, and Molokai
Humane Society it’s at 57 percent, so the amount that’s spent on staff is totally
appropriate. And beyond that though, Molokai Humane Society does a lot of things
that private veterinary clinics don’t do. We have education outreach programs at the
school. On our own initiative we do zoonotic disease testing, that’s diseases that go
between animals and people. And then also we do the trap, neuter, release of feral
cats on the island. So there’s a lot more that’s getting done for that staff cost than a
private veterinary clinic would do. We’re the only veterinary clinic on the island. I’m
the only veterinarian. I’m actually a little nervous being over here right now because
something might happen while I’m gone. And the costs of not having a veterinarian in
the community far outweigh what it costs to help keep a veterinary clinic there on
Molokai. I moved here from Alaska and you can really see in Alaska what it costs a
community when there’s no veterinary services, and that’s bite wounds go up,
diseases go up, public health goes down.
And then a big impact also is the
psychological effect on people, especially children when something happens to their
animal and they~re not able to have it helped. An example that I always give people is I
used to teach classes throughout rural Alaska. One of the classes I was teaching, a
woman flew in from a remote village because her dog had gotten sick and she had to
watch it die over a period of several days. Every day of the class she would talk about
this animal and how much it affected her. She even had a picture of the animal in her
wallet. On the last day of class, I asked her when her dog had died figuring it had just
been a couple months ago. The dog had died 17 years previously when she was a little
girl. It affected her that much. So it’s just real important to keep a veterinary clinic
going on Molokai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you

--

MR. JAYNE: Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Jayne.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Jayne?
-
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MR. JAYNE: Oh sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Sir, I’m curious to know, does the State government also fiscally
contribute toward your community clinic?
MR. JAYNE: As far as I know, no. It’s just our own, you know, what we charge which is less
than in most communities because people have less money, and then the County
funding.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay. All right, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much

--

MR. JAYNE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Jayne. Lawrence Carnicelli please?
MR. CARNICELLI: Good morning, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. CARNICELLI: --Members. Who knew Budget was so emotional? You know I mean, is,
there’s wonderful stories and I’m actually humbled by how much help our community
gives to each other. And so that’s the part that I think is actually wonderful about
that. But my name’s Lawrence Carnicelli speaking on behalf of the REALTORS®
Association of Maui. And I feel like I would be remiss if I didn’t come here and talk
about affordable housing. Ironically enough, Ms. Cochran and I are in the paper this
morning regarding the TIG, and one of the parts of the TIG. actually, let... before I go
there, I’ll just say is what I’m actually here to speak of is enforcement of STRHs. You
know I get up here and I speak to you guys oftentimes in say opposition to certain
legislative, you know, options that you guys have regarding STRHs. There’s the carrot
and the stick, and I talk about how we have, yeah, to me is what we really need to do
is talk about enforcement. And so what I would like to see is heavier enforcement and
actually, you know, take care of the illegal rentals that we have. We don’t have an
STRH problem, we have an illegal STRH problem. So the roughly $80,000 that was,
that I believe Ms. Cochran proposed, to me is not actually something that’s going to
cost us, we’re actually going to save money ultimately. You know when you think
about it, there’s only so many ways that we can generate revenue; RPT, GE, TAT, and
fines. Right? So this is the way that we’re... oh wow, we~re actually going to collect
fines. So I think that ultimately and I, you know, you do the math, it’s roughly if we,
you bust two people a week and this thing pays for itself. So I just think that it’s
something that I would like to see for us to take a priority is to say, you know, we
really need to take a strong look at illegal vacation rentals in our community. And tied
to that also is, you know, the TIG. I was thinking about Stan Franco this morning and
. .
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he just kind of smiled at the TIG. He’s like we’ve been talking about this for ten years,
nothing, there’s nothing new in the TIG, there’s nothing new. You know so it’s like
okay, we actually can start taking action, there’s things that we can actually start
doing. And so to me, one of the things like, you know, his big thing is the housing
advocate. And, you know, Chair, I believe that you put I think it’s $250,000 proviso
around housing and affordable housing. Some people have actually called me up and
they~re like going do we finally have our housing advocate? And I’m like I don’t really
know ‘cause I’m.. .just maybe you could for clarity of people, you know, what that
money is for and if we’re going to actually put that towards an advocate or if it’s
actually going to go towards housing. That would be wonderful just for a little bit
clarity for the community. And I see that my time’s up. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for your comments, Mr. Carnicelli.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair? Question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. Thank you for being here, Mr. Carnicelli, and for
your involvement in our affordable housing, the various groups in the County that
have been focusing on affordable housing. The language that’s currently in the
proposed Budget for that 250,000 that you were talking about, is part of an increase
in audit services, and it says provided that 250,000 may be used for an affordable
housing policy and implementation analysis. And so when I was looking through
Mr. Franco’s proposal, I think the end goal is what we’re looking for. So my question
to you is does that wording sound like it’s going to get us to that same end goal?
Because I know the various groups are, that have been coming before us have been
saying we need a plan, we don’t have a plan. So if we have an implementation
analysis based on, you know, a housing audit, would that get us to that same goal
that the various groups, I know Sierra Club has put together a group, FACE put
together a group, MEO had recommendations many years ago for an affordable
housing advocate, the TIG had that. So but everybody’s saying it needs to be outside
of our Housing and Human Concerns Department. So this is actually under the Office
of the County Council.
MR. CARNICELLI: Thank you for the question. I’m always afraid of when government says
analysis. You know I come from the private sector where it’s just like, you know, we
don’t do a thousand charrettes and workgroups and TIGs and summits and things like
that. It’s just like hey, let’s go ahead and implement. So that would be our hope is
that there’s something that’s, you know, implementation-wise, you know,
something.. .let’s do. Even if we miss, even if we miss, I think that it would be a good
thing to just go, you know, let’s do. And I believe you and I actually have had a
conversation in the past about the other part to me that with the housing advocate if
that’s what, where we’d go is to give that person some teeth, to give that person some
sort of power. It’s one thing to say okay, we have this housing advocate that’s going to
participate in all these things and analyze all these things, but if that person can
actually have some teeth and some pull, then that would actually be, you know,
-
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wonderful. And I don’t even know how this body could do that, but I think that that
would be the thing that, you know, would start moving things. I mean I think that’s
the part that, you know, I think that the TIG did do was it got us focused, refocused
on these things that we’ve been bouncing around for ten years. And it’s like okay now
we can start pushing some of these things. And again, and even, you know, I’ll just go
back to enforcement is another aspect of it too. So thank you for bringing that up.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your comments.
Sugata? Christopher Fishkin?

Noelani Sugata?

Noelani

MR. FISHKIN: Good morning, Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. FISHKIN: I’m testifying on behalf of No More Corruption Maui. Our website is up and
live, and impeachment proceedings have commenced with the impeachment of the
Mayor and three of his appointees. The petition will be available for the first time at
the Earth Day event celebration at the VFW Hall in Kihei this Sunday afternoon
April 30th. Public interest groups are joining hands. Mr. Hokama at the beginning
stated that the County is $5 million short in revenue. You’ve all seen the thousands of
developer agreements which are uncollected and for which the County has been
unaccountable. And we’ve given you the simple math on this, a conservative estimate
values these agreements at around $135 million. No one on this Council has reviewed
them. The Mayor and his Department of Finance is withholding public records of
collectible debts. Only one person, a county resident has a copy that the Mayor,
Corp. Counsel, Keith Regan, David Goode, and Milton Arakawa withheld all these
years. There’s a reason, there’s multiple overlapping unlawful subdivisions and plenty
of fraud. Councilmember Cochran is the only Councilmember in 2012 who tried to get
Director Goode to take action to assess and collect on these agreements which he
represented he would do. Letters between Ms. Cochran and Goode clearly show how
Corp. Counsel has prevented these agreements from being assessed and collected
since 2012. After the agreements were accounted for which makes all the budgets for
all the past four years and now this one, incomplete financial plans in violation of the
Charter Article 9, Section 9-3.1. Mr. Hokama, your own father in 1974 helped to
create this ordinance. Please look at the Legislative history which I have presented on
behalf of No More Corruption Maui along with the proposed TIG to finally investigate,
produce findings and conclusions, and bring millions in recovery to the County. Or if
they are now uncollectable, to hold those in the Administration responsible pursuant
to Article 9, Section 9-12. The public has a right to transparency, accountability, and
the money. We the public are not waiting any longer for our County officials to follow
the rules. Mr. Hokama, you said emphatically to me personally that “everyone must
follow the rules, everyone.” That includes yourself. You have an obligation now to
disclose to the public here in these Chambers and to those home watching at Akaku
that the Budget which the Mayor submitted and now the proposed Budget this
Council is getting prepared to vote on is not a complete financial plan pursuant to the
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Charter.
We understand that addressing these agreements during this Budget
process will take too much time; however, being honest doesn’t take any time. And
yourself, Mr. Hokama, as Chair have failed to do so and call out the Mayor and his
Administration since these agreements were found years ago. Councilman Cochran
did... Councilmember Cochran did. How long will County officials require private
citizens to enforce the laws of this body? Mr. Hokan-ia, you haven’t even looked at
10,000 pages of assets. How can you not have your own assets available on your own
financial plan and then fail to disclose this to the public? So since you won’t say it, Ill
say it again. The Mayor hasn’t followed the rules. This is an incomplete financial plan
submitted by Mayor Alan Arakawa which violates the Charter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Fishkin, if you

--

MR. FISHKIN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --can have a concluding

--

MR. FISHKIN: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --sentence.
MR. FISHKIN: Yes, sir. My concluding statement is that No More Corruption Maui has
submitted into testimony a draft of a TIG to assist you in resolving once and for all
this issue. Everyone is welcome to Earth Day in Kihei on Sunday to sign our petition
of impeachment being brought to the Circuit Court pursuant to Article 13 of the
Charter. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Fishkin, for your testimony. Penny Dearborn?
MS. DEARBORN: Good morning, everyone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. DEARBORN: My name is Penny Dearborn. I am the co-founder and President of Hawaii
Animal Rescue Foundation. I’m here on behalf of the Molokai Humane Society. I
work very closely with them. We’ve pulled about 200 animals from them that we bring
over and find homes for to help them out. They also are going to be helping us out
with some of the medical expenses that we have on this island that they~re going to let
us borrow their guy.
I can’t imagine anything being worse than losing their
veterinarian and their Humane Society over there. I actually went over to Molokai for
the first time a month ago. I had never been over there in 28 years. I’m ready to
move. The place is absolutely stunning. I agree that it’s very rural and I know the
people like it that way over there. And that’s what Humane Society helps them do.
They also help educate them into more modern things that can work for them. We are
building a shelter here on the island in the next few months. We bought ten acres.
And we’re going to be working with them, helping them take their animals, helping
them with a big surgery thing that they want to do. We’ve also arranged for private
-

22

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

jets to bring the animals back and forth and to bring the humans back and forth to
help save some money on their budget. I really encourage you to give them as much
as they need. I mean I just can’t imagine any of us over here doing what they do with
what they’ve got. I mean unless you’ve been over there and you’ve worked with them,
and I don’t mean just drive over and drive in and say hi. I mean go over and spend a
day. Go over and see what these do. These are people that have lived there all their
lives and several generations deep, and they all know each other and they all work
together. And when there is a problem, they work it out. I know it’s stubborn, I know
it’s very much so they want things their way. But you know what? It’s worked so far.
I’m glad that they can do what they can do. Please encourage and enforce and help
them out with their finances. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your testimony. Kalani Ho-Nikaldo?
MS. HO-NIKAIDO: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. HO-NIKAIDO: Aloha. My name is Kalani Ho-Nikaido and I’m here on behalf of the Ka
Ipu Kukui Program. I want to share a quote, JFK, leadership and learning are
indispensable to each other. This program is a very important educational program
for new and emerging leaders in our County.
I was very honored along with
Councilmember Atay to be part of the first group ten years ago. This program
introduces participants to current issues on Maui, giving an unfiltered access to all
sides of the issues and keep people in our community. This program works very, very
hard to stay unbiased and non-political. And even though it’s, that’s its mission, it’s
also inspired the people and the members of this group to take a seat at the table and
become political, get involved with nonprofit organizations, take seats on boards and
commissions. I think we’ve shared the brochure about the depth of the program
participants and where their participation is and reach in the community. I wanted to
ask for you to please restore the program budget. It’s a very small change in the grand
scheme of things but hugely important to the success of this program and the viability
of it. The collaborations that have come across that, across industries through the
involvement of this program are astounding. It’s really, really amazing to see what has
come out of this program over the last couple of years and the connections throughout
the community. I know you have a daunting task ahead of you with balancing the
Budget. A lot of people are asking things for causes that are all very, very important.
This is just a small adjustment. I’m asking you to please restore the Budget. I’m here
for any questions. And thank you for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for your testimony. Kimberly Thayer?
MS. THAYER: Good morning

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.

-
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MS. THAYER: --Chair and Councilmembers. Thank you again for all the hard work you’re
doing. I’m also here for the Ka Ipu Kukui’s. for, to advocate for restoring funding for
the Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Program. I was lucky enough to be part of the third class of
Fellows that graduated back in 2010, and to this day, that year of my life is still
stands as one of the most enlightening, enriching, and empowering years of my life.
Having grown up on Maui and spending all of my entire life here, I thought I knew this
island in and out, but after going through that program, I found there was so much
more to learn and to be grateful for and to build upon into the future. Beyond each
monthly halawai experience which took us everywhere from a garden farm in Huelo to
the State Legislature and everything in between, it’s really the fellow Fellows in the
program that add to the richness of the program. Just in my class, we had someone
from a credit union, from a city planning consulting firm, some people were
self-employed, from small business, from Akaku, from other nonprofits, from the
college. And these were all people that would probably never have met otherwise in
their daily lives or circles were it not for this program. And these relationships go on
through today. And different Fellows from different classes get together and the
network builds and expands and people have traded jobs, people have created
nonprofits. I myself joined a board, a County... I myself joined the Maui County
Arborist Committee after a previous Fellow termed out, and I am still serving on that
Committee today. Fellows have served in your County Council offices, more work in
this building and in other buildings of the County. So restoring that little bit of
funding really is an investment in the future of this County. And it’s such a small
investment that will pay huge for the good of this island. So if you can just think
about that as you go through your mountain of a job, we would all be very, very
grateful. And I’m sure there are tons of future kids who would be grateful too. So
thank you.
. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Thayer. Garrett Ancheta? Garrett, are you here? Puu
Kukui Watershed. Okay, thank you. Kainoa Pestana? Kainoa? Puu Kukui? Okay,
thank you. Let’s see, it’s Pomaikai Kauiaupio-Crozier, I saw him. He left I believe. I
think they were all part of that 25 percent overhead. Lori Tsuhako?
MS. TSUHAKO: Good morning, Budget Chair Hokama and Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. TSUHAKO: I’m Lori Tsuhako and I’m the Wellness Coordinator at the Maui County
Office on Aging. I’m here this morning to again offer testimony in support of the Office
on Aging’s position HC-0 138, the Computer Application Support Technician III. This
position appears to be at risk in our budget. The Statewide data system called SAMS
is the vehicle through which our service to kupuna has been made much more
efficient over the years.
So electronic record storage, electronic communication
between service providers and staff, more automation in the collection and analysis of
data have all contributed to increased numbers of kupuna that we’ve been able to
serve. The position being considered for deletion is critical to ensuring that our office
take advantage of these technological supports and translate them to more efficiently
take care of our elders. So there may be an inclination to assume that this computer
-
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position has nothing to do with direct service such as taking care of our elders,
ensuring they’re fed, enriched, and kept safe. But that would be a faulty assumption.
This position is very critical to keeping the largest system of care that we use
functioning efficiently for our services. Without the expertise and the work of this
position, our ability to deliver services to our kupuna and to their caregivers will be
negatively impacted. And as I detailed in my previous testimony, this position will also
analyze data and data trends so that we can continue to plan our services with
efficacy on what we~re being told. What are the trends? You know will there be more
senior citizens living in Central Maui, or are they all moving to the west side or to the
east side? We’ll know that with this data. So you as a body have asked us as
departments to measure our performance, give us data, show that what we do is
making a difference. This position is really important to our ability to do that process
and to show that this work really does make a difference. So our operation is a
County operation. We served more than 12,000 people in the last year. And there are
12,000 other people who need the services the most. So I’m asking that you allow us
to continue to do our work in a way that’s efficient and that leverages our ability to get
more Federal and State funding to match what our generous County already gives.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Ms. Tsuhako, since you’re with the Office of Aging,
is it true that the Kupuna Care Program, the Feds are reducing their financial
support?
MS. TSUHAKO: No, it’s not true, because Kupuna Care is a State-funded program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is the State reducing its support?
MS. TSUHAKO: I don’t think so. I think the State request... Governor’s request in the budget
was approved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Was approved. Okay, no, I just was wondering if we were getting less
support from the other funders.
MS. TSUHAKO: I think as of right now the answer is no. I think the President is suggesting
that there might be a decrease in the current fiscal year funding, but that hasn’t
translated to immediate reduction right now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you so much.
MS. TSUHAKO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Kelly Pearson please?
MS. PEARSON: Good morning, Chair Hokama

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
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MS. PEARSON: --Councilmembers. Aloha. My name is Kelly Pearson. I’m the CEO for the
Boys and Girls Clubs of Maui. I’m here this morning to discuss couple items. First,
our Paukukalo Clubhouse $300,000 request for planning and design for a new facility.
After further review, I did look at some of the numbers, kind of pulled some numbers
from last year because we did submit a CDBG request, and I had come up with
approximately needing 81,400 for an EA, about 115,000 for building design. So that
would be a total of 196,400 which I am hoping that we could accomplish these 2 steps
in about, in the first 10 to 12 months. I’m hoping that we can raise the other 48,500
for permits and other pre and post-construction costs for the total of approximately
250,000. So I thank you for the recommended $75,000. If it is possible to put more
back in, please do. At this time, I have not heard if we are receiving any funds from
the GIA request that I put in for 1.5 million. I’ve been trying to call people and see but
I haven’t heard anything. So that’s in, at the State. And I have not had a chance to
approach any other State agency for funding at this point. And I just wanted to wrap
this part up by saying the, just remind you that the total cost for that project is
$3.375 million. The second part is just like Lehua from Kihei Youth Center said up
here, I wanted to thank you for rescinding the 25 percent cap. The County of Maui is
our best partner, funding 44 percent of our $2.2 million operations budget. We raise
the other 56 percent which is over another million-plus dollars, through fundraisers,
special events, solicitations of donations and grants. Every year we worry about our
funding sources but, you know, I think we really work hard to bring in that other
56 percent. We bring in State and Federal dollars. We have been fortunate in
securing dollars from visiting corporations. When destination companies come, they
call us up and hey we’re looking for a nonprofit. We also have in-kind donations.
Example, KOR adopted our Lahaina club. Two weeks ago we... no, last week we
received $50,000 from Lowe’s to fix one of our roofs. So we bring in those kind.
Again, thank you. I just wanted to, you know, reiterate that our personnel are the
ones that open the doors to our clubs. Our personnel are the ones who talk to the
kids, who ask them about their day, who helps them with their homework, who teach
them how to cook. So again, thank you, Council, for rescinding that 25 percent cap.
Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Pearson, for your good work. We appreciate it.
MS. PEARSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Vicki Bellnomini?
MS. BELLNOMINI: Good morning, Budget Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BELLNOMINI: --and Members. My name is Vicki Bellnomini and I am an Aging and
Disability Program Specialist at Maui County Office on Aging. I’m here to testify today
in support of keeping position number HC-0 138, the Computer Application Support
Technician III in the Maui County Office on Aging. Without a position dedicated to our
SAMS database which is a Statewide database that all of the County area agencies on
-
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aging use across the State that holds participant records used for assessment, service
authorization, and all communication with our service providers, MCOA cannot fully
automate and use this database as it is designed. This will slow the process of getting
our kupuna the services they need to remain independent in their own homes as well
as lowering the number of elders that we will be able to serve in the future. In
addition, we just released our request for proposals this month for Fiscal Years ‘18
and ‘19 and will be bringing new service providers in, in October of this year. Without
this position, training the providers in the appropriate use of the SAMS database will
be greatly delayed resulting in the inability to automate referrals, assessments, and
service authorizations.
These delays will mean seniors will be waiting for
much-needed services.
Please do not remove this very important position from
MCOA’s budget. Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Ms. Bellnomini. Joy Singh please?
MS. SINGH: Hi. I’m Joy Singh with the Maui County Office on Aging also and I’m an
outreach worker with the office so I’m the one who goes... one of the people who goes
out and does the assessments with our seniors. And I kind of reiterate what Lori and
Vicki said. But my perspective also is the idea that having.. .it’s a... a database is a
complex system and everybody interprets things differently, so having one centralized
person telling us and showing us how to do things and use the database and who is
coordinating with other State islands and making sure it’s being done properly is
important. And secondly, and it kind of reduces the hours of waste, we’re all trying to
follow up on things or like teach each other, that kind of stuff. And it’s a lot of, the
game of telephone if we interpret one thing and somebody else hears it differently, so
having a centralized person do that is very important to us in just working more
effectively and efficiently in that it gives us more time with our seniors. And secondly
as, what do you call it, as a taxpayer, I feel that the database, I see the potential in the
database to analyze where if we spend a dollar here, we save $100 there by keeping a
senior out of a long-term care facility which costs a lot more money than making sure
they just have meals or having a couple hours of personal care or just having people
be able to go to work if they know their parents are taken care of. So in both sides it’s
more efficient to me. And this person is the one who’s going to help us do that. So
thank you for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Ms. Singh. Jeanne Skog please?
MS. SKOG: Good morning, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. SKOG: --and Members. I’m with the Maui Economic Development Board, but today I’m
testifying on behalf of the Ka Ipu Kukui Program. I sit on the board of Ka Ipu Kukui
and I want to provide you with more information that might help in your decision
making. Ka Ipu Kukui was born out of the 2003 Focus Maui Nui process and the
earlier Decisions Maui process. And with Focus Maui Nui, it really was an articulation
by our residents of the values and priorities they hold for the future of our community.
-
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One message that came out very strongly from that process was that all needs are
valid, but our collective goal is about balancing those needs, and they articulated
education, environment, water, housing, transportation, basic needs, culture, et
cetera, and how to balance all these was a strong message. The other was that if we
really wanted to perpetuate our values, we had to look to our young leaders and our
youth. So when we were asked to partner with Decisions Maui on the Ka Ipu Kukui
Program, it was a no-brainer for us to marry up with them. So Ka Ipu Kukui is a
values-based leadership program and I think that’s an important point for you to keep
in mind. So as we shape the halawais to introduce the Fellows to systems and
operations in our community and leaders, balancing the needs is a guiding principle
for everything that we do in these halawais. We take great pains to bring multiple
perspectives on these topics and issues, and then charge the Fellows to, with weighing
all of these different perspectives on their own against the values that they’ve heard
from Focus Maui Nui and Decisions Maui. So for example, when NextEra was talking
about taking over the utility, we had a session with Eric Gleason from NextEra and the
next session was with Jeff Ono who is the consumer advocate, and very stark
perspectives on both of them, but we threw it out there and it was great that they gave
them all their time, but that’s an example. Same with Na Wai Eha and planning in
general and so forth. The balancing principle is also a guide for us as we select the
applicants. So it is as you heard from previous testifiers, about bringing those from
business, nonprofits, public, private, et cetera. The last thing I wanted to bring out is
the governance part of it. Twenty sixteen and ‘17 is a milestone year for Ka Ipu Kukui.
It started out as a very grassroots groups. MEDB started to serve as fiscal sponsor
about a year and a half ago, but we charged them with coming up with their own
resources for the insurance needed so they got out from under our insurance
coverage, and they have done that. We have become a Hawaii nonprofit corporation,
and so it’s truly a public/private initiative. So I hope this is helpful for you and we
appreciate any decision that you would make.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Skog. Ailina Laborte?
MS. LABORTE: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. LABORTE: So my name is Ailina Laborte and I’m here to testify on behalf of the Maui
County Office on Aging’s position HC-O 138, Computer Application Support
Technician III. And I am also the Division Secretary. This position is simply not just a
technical support position. This position is specific in nature to the data analyzing of
County programmatic and direct services, and to augment and increase the national
growing trend of open data as relatable to our funding sources is very important and
helps us with sustainability in what we do every day for our kupuna as well as
researchable evidence-based practices and policies in regards to the aging population.
The aging population has been one of the most prominent features of Hawaii, and the
share of the population 65 years and over increased from 8 percent in 1980 to
14.5 percent in 2010. This trend will continue in the future, increasing the share of
the total population to 23.6 percent by 2040. So we~re asking our County as well as
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other counties do, to.. .I’m sorry, to invest in this position to keep up with the data.
And not only does it provide general data that we can share nationwide or with our
State Legislators or with yourselves, but it does as Lori Tsuhako said provide a health
record of senior and disabled clients. And it helps us to be fiscally accountable with
the monies that we receive from our County as well as any other investments. We
must ensure our programmatic policies are working and that we are transparent in
servicing Maui’s seniors, and the SAMS database allows us to do so. The removal of
this position will hurt not only our Division’s operations in being responsible for the
use of public funding, but will hurt Maui and Hawaii senior services in the future by
moving backwards in all that we have worked so hard to move towards in the past
several decades. It is not only imperative we keep working for Hawaii’s kupuna
population but most importantly our very own here on Maui. Thank you for the
opportunity to speak and your support and investment in Maui’s kupuna.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Laborte. Deborah Stone-Walls please?
MS. STONE-WALLS: Good morning, Budget Chair and

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. STONE-WALLS: --Members. I have submitted written testimony and I do not feel the
need to read the testimony. It basically is in support of our some of our staff members
that have spoken. I will simply emphasize the last paragraph, MCOA has been
extremely successful in our ability to serve seniors effectively and efficiently. We’ve
demonstrated the quickest response times in meeting the direct service needs of
seniors in the State as reported to the State Legislature in January of 2017 by the
Executive Office on Aging. However, without the ability to maintain necessary levels of
technical assistance to our contracted service providers, we are very concerned about
the future of our ability to maintain response rates that reduce wait times for the
critical services that support the health, welfare, safety, and independence of the
elderly constituents in each of your districts. I will also add that the, Lori was correct
in saying the State funding this year is slightly more than last year. I think that will
result in about $60,000 coming to Maui County of what it appears that they’re going
to grant. With regard to the Federal funding there is of course some nervousness. We
believe that the Budget Control Act may not have the same... Congress may not put as
many controls that reduce the effects of sequestration on our services. With the
emphasis on increased defense spending nationally, the only place for them to pull
that is in the discretionary, non-defense discretionary areas and the Older Americans
Act does fall in that section. So there is a bit of nervousness nationwide as far as what
will happen with our Federal funding. We’re hopeful. We know that today they
passed the continuing resolution but there is a threat that they may reduce our Fiscal
Year ‘17 funding if the President I guess gets all of his priorities. So thank you very
much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate you being up on those situations
MS. STONE-WALLS: Yeah.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Stone-Walls.
MS. STONE-WALLS: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much. Kaala Buenconsejo?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Good morning, Chair, Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Different look from this angle over here. But Kaala Buenconsejo,
Director of Parks and Recreation. First off, just want to thank you guys for your guys’
late-night deliberations and everything you folks have done throughout this tiring
Budget Session. But as we get closer to finalization, we’d like to just ask you folks in
consideration and a little oversight on our part but it appears with the potential
diversity of the security contract and the five additional park rangers, we’d like to ask
with the CORA Fund, with the, as testified with previous vendors, there’s about half a
million dollars sitting in the CORA Fund. We’d like to ask this body if they could
allocate no new monies but the existing monies in that CORA Fund for three vehicles
for the expansion, five positions for the park rangers. This would be substantial for
the enforcement of CORA. With the vehicles that would be used we could put that
into the cycle with our current vehicles. No vehicles were requested this current fiscal
year due to some of the cost restraints that we were put upon. So we ask that we
could put some potential monies. We’re looking at 35,000 per vehicle, totaling
105,000. That money that would come out of the CORA Fund would be replaced with
this coming, upcoming CORA fees. Even if we do the increase or without, the fees
would be put back into that CORA Fund, but the biggest potential is that is we have
the vehicles for our manpower coming in and we can start enforcing the true CORA
potential with all of the permittees that have the illegal ones coming in and we can
enforce that through the CORA permit. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, a question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. Thank you for being here. I have two questions, one
is about the CORA, the ordinance that addresses CORA and whether there are
restrictions on what that fund can be used for?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Ms. King, yes, there are restrictions; however, the vehicle
purchases to my understanding is allowed within that CORA Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And my second question is, since we, we’re discussing
putting those 2 positions back in that you~re replacing security, do you still need that
full 98,000 for, that’s in there for the first few months for Blue Protection?
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: The ideal plan... Chair? The ideal plan is to not have that funding. I
hope to have.. .with these positions that are coming online, the hiring process is a little
easier from where that bargaining unit sits. So we hope to have that tied up in the
next 2 months and potentially not use it, but having that as a backup for that interim.
But I can assure you, the entire fund if still within the Budget will not be used for that
entire 98, I think it was 99,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: It was 98,000 so maybe we can cut that in half.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: ThatIl be fine as well

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --if you need to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for the Director?
recommendation, we’ll take that under consideration.

Thank you for your

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Council.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you so much. Edel Baguio-Larena?
MS. BAGUIO-LARENA: Good morning, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BAGUIO-LARENA: --Councilmembers. Thank you for allowing me to come again in
front of you to testify. I was going to testify against the cap, the 25 percent cap, but I
heard that you have rescinded that. So thank you for removing that because it means
so much, a lot, especially for our agency and the other nonprofit agencies that are
providing much-needed services to our community. So we all want a balanced Budget
and so thank you for working for that, and none of the personnel costs that we’re
asking you are for administrative positions. They~re all for positions that provide
direct services to the vulnerable families that we serve. So thank you for doing that.
And to just to put a little bit of perspective, of the over $6 million overall budget of our
agency, 80 percent of that comes from the Federal government, so your support which
is about 5 percent coming from the County brings, it’s a big leverage for us. And
about 20 percent come from the State, 5 percent come from in-kind donation from our
volunteers. So it means so much, a lot to us that you hear our perspective, you heard
our concerns. And I’m not going to take so much of your time, but I’m just here to
reiterate what the other testifiers have said. So I appreciate all your support and your
hard work.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
comments.

Thank you very much for being here this morning, we appreciate your

MS. BAGUIO-LARENA: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Rosemary Robbins?
MS. ROBBINS: Good morning, everybody.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. ROBBINS: To begin and end my time at the mic today, thank you. You people have just
worked tirelessly and have done a good job in addressing people’s particular needs.
Just I don’t envy you, your positions in having to do this with the same amount of
hours that the rest of us have in our week. So thank you very much. I would ask if
you had had any possibility of reading Section A3 and 5 in this morning’s paper.
Okay, well, I read it for you ‘cause I know you were doing other things. But it’s talking
about State Legislature... Legislators seek to iron out wrinkles in the Sunshine Law
bill. I’d like to read just from a couple of the paragraphs. State House and Senate
Conference Committee meeting members are expected to reconvene this afternoon,
28th of April, to consider a revised bill to provide greater public access to government
meetings. This is not to can the bill, this is to revise it. It goes on to say a report on
the bill by the Senate Committee on Judiciary and Labor, and Ways and Means, and
the lawmakers found that the public is best served by increased government
transparency, understanding, and participation. So I’m not going to talk in any letters
from mnemonics. The folks who are at home are fairly lost when we get into that sort
of thing. But I just do want to point out that this is an opportunity, and it goes on,
Pages 3 and 5 in here goes on to talk about the fact that the data that was given out
the other night, for those of us who were sitting in the peanut gallery as well as the
folks who were here, was very, very helpful. And for your carefully identifying what
page and what numbers, we could be on there, very, very helpful. And that hasn’t
happened over the years all the time. So a change already en route and I thank you
for that. Yesterday less than an hour or less than 24 hours after something came up
that was controversial here, a number of us concerned citizens were allocated to the
lobby. So we went out for an executive session. Executive sessions obviously have
their place for better. They also stand the opportunity to have their place for worse
when it turns out to be a cover-up that then is exposed later on and we pay a fortune
in debt reduction for bonds that we fly to be able to overcome this. So one more time,
thank you so much for all of the good stuff that you~re doing, and this is something
that affects all of us, not just folks who want whatever their particular needs are. I
learned a heap by sitting and listening to things that I wouldn’t have otherwise known
anything about. So thank you for the opportunity to have been there and to do the
learning. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Robbins, for your comments this morning, we appreciate
it.
MS. ROBBINS: You’re welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, that’s all the requests we have for testimony today. With
no objections, we shall close testimony.
-
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COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so ordered.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s five to 11:00. Okay, we’ll take a 15-minute recess. Return at 11:10.
(gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:56 a.m.
11:14 a.m.

ITEM 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2018 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 17-69 CC 17-156, and CC 17-165)

(Revisits

-

DECISIONS
Exhibit 1 Fiscal Year 2018 Budget)

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... We’ll be back in order, Members. At this point in time, the
Chair had directed Staff to put together a revenue versus expenditure by district.
We’ve done this before in the past. The last time we did it was two years ago. So I’ve
asked the Staff to continue this practice. We’ve adjusted it for this coming year’s
Budget consideration. So I’m gonna show you now... I gave you some rough comments
yesterday regarding the benefits versus tax generation, but this is now your Chair’s
formal submittal to you that I had asked the Committee to put forth. So it’s very
much straight-out forward. The Budget Staff assisted me in putting this together. So,
going through the pages first, you can see on Page 2 this is my premise, that the more
we understand how real property is generated and how we appropriate, the better it is
for the general community. Okay. Page 3 tells you the process, we’re using year ‘16
and ‘17 and proposal of the Mayor’s ‘18 Budget. Okay. Costs that could not be
associated with a district was lumped together to develop a per resident cost. Costs
that could be associated with a district was accordingly allocated. And revenues for
this portion is just RPT. So on the next page you will see that we did not take into
account the TAT, fees for services and other components of General Fund. So for the
FY 2018 general cost allocation per resident, our number is $1,860. We broke it down
also. We used the estimated population of 164,637 and broken down by districts by
the 2010 Maui County Data Book information from the US Census. And then
population figures was updated proportionally based on US Census estimates. And
the exact numbers as you know is done once every ten years so the next Census is
2020. From Page 6 on we go by the districts. So your first district you’ll see is
Wailuku-Waihee, you will see the ‘16 numbers, ‘17 numbers, and the ‘18 numbers.
And then you have the graphs of total benefit versus tax generated. Okay. And again,
one of the reasons you will see is because of the great amount of homeowners in this
..

.
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district. Next is Kahului. Again, Kahului has a large segment of homeowners in the
district. So you see the numbers there. Then we have West Maui which is a different
situation. Our taxes generate are greater than the benefits received. And this is our
number one district which is a great turnaround from the late ‘60s when it was not a
healthy district.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, do you want us to... Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, well wait till we go through this.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: You want us to wait until the end to ask questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Then we have South Maui, South Maui is again, with the policy
toward the visitor industry, South Maui now is the number two district that generates
more
revenues
than
benefits
received
per
resident.
You
see
Kula-Pukalani-Ulupalakua, the chart goes back the other way, benefits outweigh taxes
generated. So there’s two components, there’s the impacts from homeowners but the
greatest one is the agricultural subsidies. Makawao-Haiku-Paia, I thought it was
tighter but it is what it is by the numbers. Hana-Keanae-Huelo, you see the numbers
there, tax benefit versus taxes generated. And you have Lanai and then Molokai. All
districts was applied same. And then the last Page 15 is your district summary by
districts. And of course the conclusion that we have on the last page. So when you
look at the charts and especially the summary sheet, you can see the adjustments.
And then so the districts line up one to nine, West Maui, South Maui second, Lanai is
third, East Maui is fourth, Makawao is fifth, Molokai is sixth, Upcountry is seventh,
Kahului is eighth, and Wailuku is ninth. Okay. Questions? And again, I appreciate
the Staff’s assistance in giving us this updated... this is just for information. This is for
your information and guidance. You know you use what you wish to use from this,
but I think it’s important that we know how each district participates in the total pot
and that how we look at the total Budget for the total communities. Okay. So well go
down the row. Ms. King, you have anything you want to ask at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
Budget?

Yes.

Do we have this same analysis with Chair’s proposed

CHAIR HOKAMA: What do you mean, with...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: With your proposed Budget. This is the Mayor’s right, the last
column it says Fiscal Year ‘18, that’s the Mayor’s proposed Budget?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We used the proposed, right, mister...
MR. HASHIMOTO: Yeah, the proposed numbers were utilized ‘cause it takes a while to
calculate all of it, so in order to update the numbers itIl take a little bit to update it.
But when you take from year to year, the numbers have been pretty consistent. So
the fluctuation because the numbers are so, you know, don’t change dramatically
from year to year should be almost the same.
-
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another question I had was I’m not sure this net
a net gain then I think the ones that are in red
benefits, when you subtract the taxes generated
that correct?

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then
per resident if that’s supposed to be
should be actually black because the
then the benefits are a net gain. Isn’t
MR. HASHIMOTO: That’s correct. I think...

COUNCILMEMBER KING: So the ones that are in red should be black and the ones that are
in black should be red.
MR. HASHIMOTO: It was looking at it from a perspective of how much they were generating.
So if they weren’t generating enough to cover their expenses they were red.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah but if you’re calling it net that’s usually a net gain.
MR. HASHIMOTO: And we can update it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, okay.

MR. HASHIMOTO: But that was how the perspective was in terms of looking at it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then the last question I have...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, please don’t get it from an accountant

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --thing where we, accountants use red or black, okay. That’s not
your.. .what your Chair is into. So yeah, we can adjust and make those subtle
adjustments, but...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then the last question I had was what, if you have a, if
you have some like way of, what was your way of calculating the costs that were
associated with the district? Is that
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hashimoto?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --capital, is that CIP or is that a combination?
MR. HASHIMOTO: So we didn’t.. .yeah, so we didn’t include any CIP. We also tried to omit
equipment because it fluctuates from year to year. So essentially when you take a
look through your Budget Details, anything that you can attribute to a district within
your Budget Details was attributed to a specific district. If there was nothing specific
in the Details then it was put into the general cost.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So but none, no CIP?
-
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MR. HASHIMOTO: No CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. All right, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman, any questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m okay. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. My recollection is the last time we did this, we were
just using straight revenues and expenses, but this time I believe the numbers reflect
also the... and because you’ve changed it to benefits it also includes the subsidy,
whether it’s homeowner subsidy or agricultural assessed value subsidy. Is that
correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Troy, did we calculate that?
MR. HASHIMOTO:
So we just took how much taxes were generated from the RPT
certification. So whatever.. .yeah, so it will include any benefits that people are
receiving, including exemptions. So all we really were focused on is how much money
are we gaining from residents in that particular area after everything, all the
exemptions.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. So I’m trying to figure out this, I’m just
looking at West Maui and happy that we generate so much to help other areas. And I
appreciate you pointing out that during the ‘60s, I mean the climate was a different,
was different then and here we are today though. So these benefits per resident,
Mr. Hashimoto, you said did not include any CIP calculations or equipment
calculations
--

MR. HASHIMOTO: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for the district?
MR. HASHIMOTO: Because it fluctuates from year to year so it’s hard to get an exact
number from year to year. So it, you know, I think we can make an estimate. So if
it’s... I take that back, if it’s an equipment that will happen from year to year like such
as a copier lease, we will include that. But if it’s something that’s an outlier, we will
omit that just so we can kind of know a base cost from year to year.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. ‘Cause I was thinking the, my, the benefits were up
there because of the 24 million for the Wastewater which is kind of in reference to the
whole litigation matter going on which is not a question of whether West Maui needs it
or not, it’s West Maui needs it.
MR. HASHIMOTO: Right. So for that one that wouldn’t be General Fund so we wouldn’t be
calculating it in this cost. So because we kind of look at that as a Wastewater, you
know, kind of project. So that’s generated through fees which is in addition to this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. ‘Cause I unfortunately have like 8 pages of stuff I
submitted that 0 got in and overall 117... over $117 million is generated from West
Maui and 1 truck for $350,000 did get in. So I don’t really see the equality there in,
and this whole beneficial per resident thing at this point in proposed Budget.
MR. HASHIMOTO:
Fund costs.

Right.

So it was... the scope of this study was just to look at General

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you for doing this, Chair. It surely puts it in graphic
forms, the visuals in terms of the impacts of our districts. And I agree with you,
because of the open space and the agriculture that we enjoy Upcountry, you can see
the vast difference between, you know, in the graphs. But thank you, everybody, for
helping and participating to keep all of our districts what it is in terms of its signature.
And I think this is just another format of us seeing the picture in another way. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Atay, questions, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I appreciate the opportunity to see the graph and the correlation
with the connection with taxation, and I just use this as a reference. But I also want
to look at the bigger picture in the decision making of our islands and if we can
understand the age-old concept of the moku of the.. .if you’re in charge of a certain
district and you are also in charge of your resources, not necessarily only taxes
generated but your resources. I look at where I’m at, I’m on the moku of Wailuku on
the top of the mountain, of Wailuku mountain, Mauna Kahalawai. This mountain
area has resources that provides for other districts. You look at the two number one
districts in your area of taxation, South Maui, West Maui. Wailuku mountain provides
them water. Eighty percent of the water generated from Wailuku goes towards South
Maui. So the success of South Maui’s ability to generate increased economics,
generate increased taxes is correlated to the success of Wailuku providing them water.
So you gotta not only look at the taxation generated, you gotta look at the concept of
ama momona, we are fat with water in Wailuku and we provide the other districts of
our island that does not have water. If we shut the line down and old the waterline
from Wailuku to Kihei-Wailea-Malcena, how successful would this graph be with no
-
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water, no economics? So yeah, I award and accomplish you guys for giving me this
graph about taxation, but that’s not the whole picture of each districts involvement.
We all connected, we all one island, we all one County. You can break ‘em down like
that and look like that and show that we’re not producing and carrying our load, but I
tell you, we carrying our load. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I am happy you made that. comment, because that is how Council’s in the
past have approached it. This is, we know where the water comes from, you~re
absolutely right. We know what Kihei looked like in the ‘60s. So yeah, you’re
absolutely right, Mr. Atay. Just like we know without the EMI, Upcountry ag would be
very different also.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah. Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So no, I appreciate it. We just giving you one perspective, it is not
the only perspective, yeah, as you pointed out correctly. And your statement was
quite accurate, yeah, that was part of Central’s sharing to allow the other districts to
catch up and grow to then now carry their load. Yeah. So part of it is now the
balancing back from those districts to return back to the districts that have helped
them in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: And I would say same side for West side.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: West side success, you’re taking water from this mountain that
supplies all of the development, all of the hotel activities that comes from Wailuku
mountain, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
People like me are in agreement.
I’m not... have no
disagreement with your analysis, Mr. Atay. Ms. Crivello, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not so much questions but comment if I’m allowed to

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --in regards to my colleagues. First of all, I appreciate the
support that Molokai receives. We’d like to probably say we’re the last of the Hawaiian
islands, and that’s the expense that comes with us trying to hold on to our yesterdays
and see... and yet we still have to work to find compatibility with our economics. And
for... and I have learned to appreciate our way of representation for Maui County.
We’re unique, we’re separated by waters, and however, you know, we all run at large.
When the time comes, we will try our best to support our districts; however, because
we represent all of Maui County, there’s a dependency.. .it’s like Mr. Atay just shared,
there’s a dependency to share, you know, the waters of his moku or our moku of
Wailuku. And it... and that’s what it is, it’s our moku. It’s moku Maui, you know,
Lanai, Kahoolawe, as well as Molokai. So someday maybe we’ll generate the taxes that
-
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is due to what is expended to us, and but I can say we are... and I’m sure you’ve
witnessed that when you’ve come to our island for district meetings, that are our
people are most grateful. And we have, able to continue with resiliency because of the
support we get from all of Maui County. And we take pride that you can travel over
this ocean to come and feel how, what we all grew up with and to remind us that our
local residency are of strong values that we all carry whether you live on Maui, Lanai,
or Molokai. We want to instill that and continue to embrace it and hold on to who we
are and where we come from. And I believe that’s the value we bring for us as a true
population of our islands, our islands, you know. So thank you. Thank you, South
Maui. I used to kid, the different areas oh go come hanai me. And then so I get... and
then I am, you know, sometimes I have to wear my puka shirt, you know, and then
whatever. But I.. .it’s through the generation of the revenues that are coming through
throughout all of our County, and that’s what makes our County so unique. You
know we know that this area may bring in the mostest, if we want to say it that way,
but we have not lost the true value of who we are. So we work it out so we can
support one another. And that I say is the living way of our aloha for our residents,
our constituents and for that I say mahalo nui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. And I really appreciate that because it
gives us an idea of what we are responsible to as far as cash flow and money and
supplying services. But along the line of what has been brought up by my fellow
Members, historically until today we say East Maui and Hana and we consider the
whole district. But Kaupo we consider our self completely different. Kipahulu is in
itself. Hana is in itself. And that is split in different places. Puuiki, Haou, that is
different. Nahiku, Keanae, Kailua is a whole different thing and yet we put ‘em all in
the same basket. But they do have different needs. And even though it’s a small area,
certain areas even have different cultural traditions and needs. And you can carry
that throughout the entire island and Molokai and Lanai. And even Kahoolawe I’m
sure, although I’m not really up on Kahoolawe. But we are still all one. All of.. .1 have
family on every island. We have relatives in every district. We cannot go over there
and say we are by ourselves or we’re in Wailuku, we~re going to withhold the water to
South Maui, because Wailuku people have family in South Maui. It’s like cutting off
your arm. We have to share because we are one, we are spread out. Anytime we go
over there and we’re going to go and say we’re going to withhold something from a
district or a people, it’s just like cutting off our arm. So we need to work it out to
where we take care of everyone, because by doing that we’re taking care of ourselves.
And I hope that we can keep on with that philosophy. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay, as the Chair stated earlier, this is just one perspective
for you to look at. This is not to be used as an indictment or any type of sort of one
district over another district. Yeah. For, you know, for those that follow through the
history of this island, especially the last 60 years, you will see the changes of how the
districts have adjusted in numbers and whatnot. So I would agree, since we’re using
Wailuku District, you know, the civic area is one thing but then again, you move out
toward Waihee, Waiehu, it starts changing, you see more ag, you have the Hawaiian
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Homes subdivisions, you go further out toward Maluhia and whatnot, it’s changing
again. So I get it, okay, it’s just like Lanai. The city is the city, the rest of the island is
country, as country as you can get. So I understand your comments. This is just to
give you one perspective yeah, of how each district although different has similarities
and a connectivity. Okay. So this is just one indicator to, that you should look at and
be at least knowledgeable of. That’s all we’re presenting you is information in case
somebody says I thought we was generating more than that. You can say no, this is
our numbers, this is how we arrived at this numbers. And yet we will still make sure
that the district and the County as a whole can perform. So this is nothing more than
that. It’s just for you to be aware of by districts what is and isn’t. For Lanai, we know
that we generate more now since we’ve allowed certain development on Lanai. And so
we are in a little better financial position, but we are still... and again, this is not to say
that each district needs to be zero-zero, no. Okay. By policy of the County, certain
areas of the County we would say we would like to retain it in a certain manner so
we’re going to give it that extra financial support ‘cause we don’t want the whole
County to be developed. We want areas that will remain country, we want areas that
will remain open, we want... and we’re going to support it in that manner because
that’s the policy of this County. Not everything will be developed, not everything is for
certain things. There’s still a sense of keeping this County this County, and every
island will have its portion of keeping its identity true to itself. Okay. So again,
don’t.. .it’s not like Wailuku should generate another 43 to, so that.. .no, I’m not saying
that at all. Okay. Neither am I saying that Upcountry has to find another way of
generating 37 million more to balance out, no, I’m not saying that either. Okay. This
is just so that we have a good sense of how we’re adjusting the money to keep certain
things a certain way or how we’re going to promote certain things for certain purposes
of community benefit. That’s all this is for, a tool, nothing more. Yes, Ms. Crivello,
you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I’d like to read this latest... since we’re talking revenues
and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have good news for us? Sure, share some.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t know if it’s good news. Okay. So this is news release
from the Hawaii House of Representatives, I’d like to read it verbatim. House removes
proposed two-year extension of general excise tax surcharge for rail, replaces it with
increase in transient accommodation tax totaling 1.3 billion by 2027. The House
today issued a counterproposal to the Senate on construction funding of Honolulu’s
financially troubled rail project estimated to cost a total of about $8.1 billion. The new
counterproposal allows for a massive infusion of money now for the rail project
without putting the cost of it on the backs of our most vulnerable citizens, the poor,
elderly, and low-income working families. The money generated by the increase in the
hotel tax in today’s dollars is equivalent to receiving 2.4 billion in future GET
revenues. This would provide more funding for rail than any package currently being
proposed. The House counter proposal also calls for a moratorium on redeveloping
the Neal S. Blaisdell Center which should cost 500 million. The provisions of the
House counterproposal include removal of the Houses’ proposed 2-year GET extension
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for 2027 till 2029; increase of the transient accommodation tax, TAT by 2.75 percent
from its current 9.25 percent to 12 percent for 10 years from January 2018 to
December 31, 2027. Revenue generated from the TAT increases will be distributed as
follows. Fifty million dollars will be set aside annually for education in a newly created
education special fund. The remainder of the $1.3 billion will go to the Honolulu rail
project concurrently with the GET surcharge revenue that they are already receiving
now. Reducing the distribution of TAT funds to the counties from 93 million to
80 million. The difference of $13 million will go to funding the Honolulu rail project.
Maintaining the House position to lower the State’s share of the administrative service
fee to 1 percent.
Giving all counties the option to extend the GET surcharge.
Requiring Honolulu to repeal any ordinance prohibiting use of county funds for rail.
Prohibiting the use of the GET surcharge revenue to fund HART administrating,
operating, and personnel expenses. So it says to see the entire Conference draft
proposed by the House today, we could go on. So I just got this from our Scott
Ishikawa, our media person for HSAC.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, that’s not good news but it’s news that will impact this
Budget so thank you for sharing that. Wow. What can we say about the State? Okay.
Members, hearing that, I’m going to recess till 1:30, so please work on your proposals.
And then Staff and I will figure out what Ms. Crivello just shared. We may need to
consider adjusting the TAT revs and lower the number which means less revenue. It’s
interesting the State’s attitude because I don’t think they’ve exhausted their review of
all their tax generation tools that the Constitution gives them before looking at hitting
the counties for everything. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. This is a House proposal, I don’t know whether this
is likely to be the final version or whether the Senate will come back with some other
proposal. So they’re playing hardball with City and County of Honolulu and we are
collateral damage.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that’s a pretty accurate way of stating it. I know the rail project is...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just the... I’m sorry, Chair, go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, you~re right, the rail project is a big factor for the Leg, definitely they
have their chasm of differences on funding with the City and County. Unfortunately,
this County is going to get some of the brunt, you know, we’re going to get it on the
tort coverage, we’re going to get it on the TAT now, and then still yet they deferred it
for one year the assault on property tax for additional DOE requirements. I don’t
know why they’re not looking at their own excise tax. Excise tax is under their
jurisdiction. They’re punting to us to exercise a half percent which tells me they
telling us to do their job again. Okay. We’ve managed well and I feel like now we’re
getting punished for managing the people’s money well that the Constitution gave us
as our kuleana to manage our finances. You’ve heard my comments about how the
State trustees chose to raid the excess investment profits where now we’re getting the
payback, because now with the increased contributions to make up the unfundedness
is a burden on us being able to provide more for our community. I would agree with
-
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all of you and almost every request has merit and should have some consideration.
And I wish we were at the stage of the ‘70s when the State was looking for projects
because it had more cash than programs and projects. How times have changed.
Okay, ‘78 at ConCon, we looked at how to return surpluses back to the taxpayers.
Okay. And we had a requirement placed in the Constitution that after two or three
consecutive years, the Leg must rebate back to the tax base X amount of money and
still do the job we were doing. So I don’t know what happened with the Legislature
between 1978 and today but it’s going the wrong way, people. Mr. White, anything
else
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --before we recess?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know the thought of charging or... charging the neighbor island
counties with generating money to go to rail is just beyond my imagination.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The same way we pay for the

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If somebody asked me...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Honolulu Convention Center.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, same thing with the convention center. So here we are. You
know when the Legislature increased the room tax by 2 percent, 2 points back in 2010
and ‘11, that resulted in us shifting about $25 million more into the State coffers that
was no longer available to be spent on Maui. This move sends another 40 million. So
that’s a total of $65 million a year that we’re shipping to Honolulu that cannot any
longer be spent in our hotels, activities, restaurants, retail outlets, and so forth. And
then on top of that, theyire reducing our share of the TAT that comes back by taking it
down by $2.9 million on top of the 2 point--I can’t remember--2.3 I think that it was
reduced when we thought they were going from 103 down to 93. So this is just a total
affront to the counties and to especially the neighbor islands, because our visitors and
therefore all of us are going to end up paying for the rail with money that everywhere
else in the country is generated, the room taxes are generated to facilitate the
provision of services to visitors in the municipality where the money is raised.
Everybody else gets 67 percent. I don’t know what this does to our share, but it takes
it down to probably around 10 percent. No, it’s going to be even less, way less than
that because they just increased the TAT
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --by 30 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then they deleted another 13.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So from 103 we went down to 80.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right. So it’s just... I am astounded, I’m offended, I’m disgusted, and
I’ll come up with a few more adjectives by the time we come back at 1:30. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, we’re all not happy at this point in time, but we will do our
best to do what we need for our County. Okay, Members, we’ll be in recess till 1:30
and then we’ll start up. Okay, recess.
(gavel).
.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

.

11:52 a.m.
1:39 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).
We’re back in session, Members. At this point, we’re gonna
go back to Operations. We’re gonna go to the areas that after last night’s pass, we still
have areas of revisit so that’s what we’ll do now, and if you have your proposals.
Yeah, so Staff will also hand out you a updated worksheets after we cleaned it up after
last night. Okay. So where you see initials, that’s the area of the revisit and the
Member that requested. So if we go to the first area under Operations, w&re going to
revisit, Members, is Page 9. Okay, we’re gonna come back to Revenue, so we’re in
Operations. First area is Page 9, under Wastewater Operations Program Sewer
Fund. Ms. Cochran?
.

.

.

.

.

-

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. That was portable air compressor I was
looking for is where I was I guess looking to insert it, and I guess Ops was the section
for that. And so is that just put another plus sign there, is that... I’m just wondering
where and how. And of course during, where I’m going to find the money, that’ll come
later. So 27,000 for a portable air compressor.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty-seven?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Twenty-seven, 2, 7.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And you’re plan is to what, pay it out of this fund?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Either MVA or increasing taxes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. MVA is General Fund, so, you know, you have a plan under the
Sewer Fund you want to...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So then you’re saying to increase sewer fees then in order to
put funds into the Sewer Fund?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I’m just asking what was your plan, how you wanted to pay for this.
So out of the Sewer Fund?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Actually increasing tax rates. So is there a way to do that in
order to put that increase in there or it has to come from sewer fees?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sewer Fund is mostly sewer fees, the sewer fees. We have a small transfer
I think yeah, Sewer Fund? Small General Fund transfer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So
CHAIR HOKAMA: You can put it

--

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --equipment...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --under the Sewer Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or I mean I think that’s been a question, does it have to be
under Sewer Funds or can it be from cash?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can be General Fund but it’s gonna then be transferred, the Sewer Fund
is still going to be...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it’ll be part of the interfund transfer section?
CHAIR HOKAMA: If it’s supplemental transfer. So you can.. .if you want to propose it from
the Sewer Fund then we’re going to need to make adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: From General Fund to adjust...
CHAIR HOKAMA: From the Sewer Fund, yeah, from this amount.
Account there’s $14 million, 14,211,687. That’s...

Right now in the B

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And it’s all spoken for? Is there a way to get $27,000 out of
that 14.whatever million?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I had hoped you guys would have done all that due diligence.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I’ve been trying to ask the questions along the way, and I’ve
been sort of been put back...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I would say if this is where you want to fund it from then you can make
the proposal and say you want to fund it from this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I’m just trying to figure out what would work best. I’m
not dictating one way or the other, I’m just trying to get help into figuring out where it
would be best suited in order to find $27,000 for a piece of equipment for Wastewater
in West Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You can propose it from this.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you’ve heard Ms. Cochran’s request, 27 Sewer Fund. What is it
called again please?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It’s called a portable air compressor.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Portable...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And my justification, Chair, is because within the last year,
they’ve spent anywhere’s... and the Department cannot break it down ‘cause they
don’t... anywhere’s from 19,000 to $32,000 just for rentals alone on this particular
equipment. So I’ve been told it’s something that’s an ongoing rental and use for the
proper function of the wastewater plant. So for me it seems a very good investment in
$27,000 to just purchase the equipment that we continuously have to rent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So I’m trying to understand, so if you put in 27,000 in here,
you~re going to take it out of the Sewer Fund, so how do we balance that out?
CHAIR HOKAMA: More than likely I would say we should reduce the account from the, one
higher, transfer... we just reduce the transfer to the Sewer Capital Improvement Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so that’s the proposal. Okay. If there’s no consensus then in the
next round well do a vote on it. Okay. So that is the proposal. Okay. Any questions
or comments on the proposal? Is there a consensus on this?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Please, Members, it’s not your Chair’s job to find you your money
for your requests now.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, Chair, where is this fund coming out from? This...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Taking out of the Sewer Capital Reserve Fund.
-

45

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And it’s 27,000?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Okay.
Line 246. Ms. King?

The next area of request is on Page 11, Solid Waste Ops,

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yes. I’m... I... it’s a different line on... okay. It’s on Page 11 on this
new document; it was Page 9. And so my proposal is to put back in that curbside, the
three-can plan, and also it’ll be balanced out by adding back in the revenue which is I
have to find the new page now. It was on page...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Don’t worry about the revs, we’ll get back to the revs side.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Well, you’re.. .yeah you’re gonna...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just take care this side for now please, Ms. King.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Well, you’re going to ask me where to fund it from so

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I understand

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that we need to adjust the rev side on this

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --one.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So the revenues would more than pay for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard Ms. King’s proposal, Members. Any questions or
discussion on her request at this time? Okay. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll move forward. On Page 16 under the Fire. I did have.., do we
have anymore updates on the helicopter contract?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Regan?
-
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Okay. So we have a transmittal, I think it’s with Mayor’s, Mayor for his
signature. When I checked, he wasn’t in his office so I have it here without his
signature though. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, if it’s.. .you have... I mean the bid is the bid, so.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: I’ll provide you the information. Let me just get it online. One moment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Okay. So helicopter. Okay. So the question was to please provide the
total annual contract cost and duration or helicopter service operations for the Fire
and Rescue Operations Program based on the recent bid the Department received.
Their response was the helicopter bid for Fiscal Year ‘18 was $769,368. The total for
the 4-year contract is $3.267 million. This is to have Air One on standby only and
does not include the actual airtime charges. For Fiscal Year ‘18, the hourly rate is
$509 per hour for Air One and $1,200 per hour for Air Two and Three. Based on an
average of the past 3 years and this year to date, the additional expense would be
approximately $182,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So with that, I thought we put in 850,000? Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the, after the $40,000 reduction, it would be 850,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll have 850?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And they need what, 819?
MS. YOSHIMURA: According to the information that Director Regan just provided, it’ll be a
total of 957,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine fifty-seven. Okay, so 107 is the adjustment. This is getting real
expensive. Okay, Members, you’ve heard the number from Ms. Regan. Is there a
move to adjust the number? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So you’re saying we’re going to add.. .instead of the delete
40, you’re going to add 107, correct, for the helicopter? What is the number? I’ll move
to adjust it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If we restore the 40, we just need to add what, 67 to reach the
9-something, right? Sixty-seven thousand addition, if.. .with the restoration of the
plus 40.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

.

.

.

(inaudible)...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. So we restore the 40 and we need another 67,000.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay. Chair, so I move to restore the 40 for helicopter
service operations and also adding another 67,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: For Fire Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Any other discussion, Members?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

.

.

.

(inaudible)...

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Okay, is there a consensus on that?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Since that was my adjustment, I will address the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. On Page 17, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have a question on this Page 15

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that just ‘cause it looks like an item got moved to another
line and added back in. The 345, line 345.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So now that’s been added back in on line 379, is that what
I’m reading?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Just wanted to... and yet the operations, just the line
above, 378, the minus 200,000 still stands there as a negative for operations?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That 200,000, can I restore for skis and lifeguard tower?
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that’s already consensus’d. You can make that.. .let’s see, how shall
we do that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That was a pot, originally speaking to department just to
move into the C Account. B... ‘cause you’re correct, it’s not needed so you deleted...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll take it up under C Account.

.

.

.

(inaudible).

.

.

equipment. Yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Equipment?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Under...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would be under C Account and is it an operational type of equipment or
you see this as capital improvement equipment?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Skis, the skis that come with sleds and trailers in order to
get it to the beach in order to be used. I guess that would be ops. Oh C Account,
equipment, equipment. And maybe on a side note, can CORA funds be used for this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We double checking on, already under the Director’s request for vehicles.
So I’m going to consult with Mr. Ueoka, but my understanding is it could be permitted
if it’s addressed at CORA-used beaches, beach parks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, you know, so if we.. .let’s say you want

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this to be at a beach park, let’s say on Lanai but there’s no CORA
program on Lanai, then I would say that wouldn’t be an acceptable use of the CORA
funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. It’s in, on Maui island.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know because if

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is Maui island.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --let’s say it’s D.T. Fleming’s beach, there’s a CORA program, whatnot, and
you say
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ukumehame.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --the sled is for Fleming’s beach then I would say that I would consider
that as a permissible use
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of the funds for that site because of that program being at that park.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I’m, I probably gotta ask where these five are utilized,
but I believe it’s all in the vicinity of say Fleming clear down to South Maui perhaps.
I’m not positive on that though. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. But if they’re going to put it on a trailer and take it to any beach
park then I would say more than likely it wouldn’t be a permitted expenditure from
that fund. It has to... we have to show a tie-in relationship to the CORA program to
use the CORA funds for that kind of... so if you designate only for the CORA parks,
more than likely then Corp. Counsel’s Office would be able to sign off on the
document. Would that be a good understanding, Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA:
Yes, Chair.
The Ocean Recreational Activity Fund is allowed for the
furtherance of the CORA program. So if you were to put it or restrict it to use at those
beach parks, we wouldn’t see a problem with it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you can think about it

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --if, or check with Parks if the areas that you’re looking at

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --is CORA parks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. So, Mr. Ueoka, do you have 13.04A.OlO in front of
you? ‘Cause the purpose of these funds is for County parks and of course all of our
lifeguard towers are at County parks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I’m referring to 13.04A.370, the Ocean Recreational Activity
Fund. Any fees collected pursuant to this article shall be deposited in the Ocean
Recreational Activity Fund, are deemed appropriated upon receipt, and may be
expended for purposes relating to the implementation of this article--which would be
Article 7, commercial ocean recreational activity--such as the provision of salaries, the
purchase of equipment, and the maintenance of County property. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. So I guess do I need to find out where these five are
being utilized then and to double make sure that they’re being utilized at CORA
participating areas?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be the limitation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So I guess under CORA...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe during the break you can have a chat with Corporation Counsel to
see how you might want to approach this, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There’s more than one way to do it as you know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So as far as Parks’ understanding is this does get
utilized in their areas, CORA-permitted areas?
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause that’s going to be my...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So should we wait until we get to special revenues section
where the CORA Fund itself is?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, we’re going to go through this. We’re going to take a
break and that’s when I would suggest you chat with Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There is, again, besides what you’re proposing, there’s, you know, another
way that we can recommend you to consider. But that would... but since you brought
yours up, my position would be the same with the Parks Director on the vehicles. If
it’s vehicles specifically for CORA parks then I would say that’s a permissible use for
him to request us to use CORA funds to pay for those vehicles. If it’s going to be for
all beach parks, I’m going to tell him that it won’t meet the litmus test for us.
Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Is the request for vehicles for general park use or is that for the park
rangers’ use?
CHAIR HOKAMA: As I understood his comments, it was to assist the park rangers in doing
their job which is
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --all parks.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. That’s consistent I would think.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, again, there’s a line on the ability of the use for this specific
purpose from this specific licensees and, you know, and that’s how we ensure that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So if it’s again, enforcement specific for CORA program then this money
can be used especially for enforcement personnel to take care this program which is
one of their concerns of CORA is enforcement. So we could consider that also. But
during the
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
least

--break, Ms. Cochran, I would say have a chat. There’s another way, at

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. No, very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --two ways I know that you could approach your request.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, sounds good, will do that on the break. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Under Housing and Human Concerns,
Page 17, 409 we have Ms. Sugimura and Mr. White asking to revisit this. Your
proposals? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, this is as we know the computer person that the
Department, Lolly sent written testimony as well as we’ve had
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --verbal right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So the question is where do we find the $50,772.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, that’s the question.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Can we take it from Countywide source?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I prefer not at this time because Countywide is again, where we~re going to
look at to already try and absorb the 3.4 million that we were told about that we have
to make up.
The other 600,000 on the increases of the retirement system
contributions, that’s 4. And then last night we added back more than $1 million. So
part of your Chair’s challenge is
--
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Finding this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --how we’re going to pay for all this, and if we whittle away Countywide
which is supposed to take care all the needs for the next coming year then that’s going
to come to.. .you know, I...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, I hear you loud and clear and please bear with
my lack of experience
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, no, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --of trying to go through this. But

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --by looking at the unfilled position

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --HC, Housing Assistant Specialist for $44,000 which is in
their A Account is a possibility. But it doesn’t get to the total amount that we need,
we’re like $6,000 short.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, worse comes to worse, I’ll push back my Lanai full-time to
half-time one year.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Wow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And you can delete that 7,335 for Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay. So line 408 will be deleted, the 7,000 to go back to
part-time, and line 409 which is that Computer Application Support Technician III
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --for 50,772 will be reinstated.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, you gotta find the difference.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King? I’m willing to give up something from my district to help you
out.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: I just wanted to say that I would support putting those funds with
line 393, because I don’t think that this.. .1 know we are trying to address what the
community wanted but I don’t think that this position is what the community was
asking for. They, you know, there was a pretty adamant thought that this should be
something outside of the Department from the, as a community advocate. So and I
think that’s what Ms. Sugimura was talking about using that 44,000 in line 393.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Is that correct? And then

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --if you put it with the 408 it covers the technician for 50,772.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If that’s what you...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Well, actually I’m just trying to get to 50,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I mean you guys gotta

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: It’s still short.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --make a choice. You’re going to help Human Concerns and take away the
homeless position, that’s your guys’ choice.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay. So it’s the Housing Assessment Specialist on 393 for
44,000, so delete that. And then also thank you, Chair, for your sacrifice for Lanai
and that will take us to the 50,000 that we would need to get to.. .oh, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s your proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah. If you would allow that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I think yours is the big...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --discussion? Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Does that make sense?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So if...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, w&11 return.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re moving on. So everything’s off the table.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 18, line 413, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So I would have to find 15,000.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mic.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh sorry about that. I would like to restore. I don’t know
where the money is so just want to restore it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How you want to pay for it?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And I am.. .so I don’t have the information, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: So just disregard it then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re going to move forward.
Paukukalo. Mr. White?

Page 24, line 588, Boys and Girls Club,

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I think that they will probably.. .yeah, my concern
is that I want to have them have enough money to get started on their design and have
something that they can prepare and present to people that they’re asking for the
construction funding. And so I... after hearing the discussion, I think I’m comfortable
with the 75,000, because I think if they need more than that to get major funders on
board then maybe they can go, they can raise some of that. If the 75 is adequate and
they get large funders on board then they would be able to ask them to help with the,
you know, building permit level of design as well, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Miss.. .that’s only Mr. White on this one. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Excuse me. So I think Kelly came this morning and
she looked through her... or her grants that she had written, and she said
her.. .maybe and you can correct me, but I think she said closer to like 100,000
little over 100,000 but she will gratefully accept the 75. She said something like
in her testimony this morning.

said
that
or a
that

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you want to increase it, you gotta tell me how you want to pay for it.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah, I’m not prepared for that, so I don’t know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re moving on.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 27, Department of Liquor Control, line 669. Mr. Guzman, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know, Chair, I’m going to forgo that ‘cause I

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --it appears that I had... I didn’t have the opportunity to reach
out to them, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Same page, Members, 27, Department of
Management, line 682. Ms. Sugimura, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah. So let’s see, hang on. The positions for MD-001 [sic]
for 141,551, MD-0015 position is...the amount is $114,012, and the MD-0055, the
CIP Coordinator is 85,509, and then the Energy Coordinator is there for the period.
Those are the amounts allocated to those positions and, Chair, I was hoping to take it
out from the Countywide account.
CHAIR HOKAMA: All three, the whole amount, 341?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Just remember, if there’s no Countywide, what happens now
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --if there’s no money left

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Well, if you have a

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --in that fund?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --more creative way of doing it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard Ms. Sugimura’s proposal. Discussion? Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Question? Oh, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. My take on this is a little bit different. I would... I’m
in favor of restoring MD-0001. I don’t feel that the MD-0055 needs to be restored.
And the MD-0015 there was a suggestion which I think makes some sense is to move
that individual into Risk Management because they deal with ADA compliance, they
deal with security access issues. And I think that it would be a good fit in the Risk
Management area. And they could possibly, that individual could possibly work hand
in hand with the folks in Risk Management and Corp. Counsel and really step up the
degree to which we are responding to and planning for our access and security issues.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let’s.. .that’s an interesting tweak to it. Thank you. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, actually I was just going to ask that, ask a question. And
that was that
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --if this amount gets reduced, we can’t, it’s not really within the
purview of this Council, it’s pursuant to Ms. Cochran’s point yesterday to describe
which position. So weU be basically cutting three positions and then it’s up to the
Department to reassign, is that what we~re talking about?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s a program.. .yeah, once we pass the Budget Ordinance it becomes
program, and the MD gets to decide how he wants to allocate whatever is the amount
funded in the program.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So if he wants to fund himself, he funds
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I just wanted to clarify that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --himself.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Because we had talked about that for another department, but we
didn’t... I think it applies to every department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Let me just ask Mr. Ueoka if he has any comments.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I know it’s still preliminary but if, the Council could also if
that transfer does happen, allow us some, the Corporation Counsel, Division of Risk
Management some time for the appropriate reorganization. There might need some
work to be done there. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we understand that and we understand our general provision seven.
So yes, miss.. .wait, before I ask Ms. Sugimura. The other one that asked to revisit is
Mr. Carroll so let me ask Mr. Carroll, your... any comments or considerations,
Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
recommendation. Thank you.

Very simply I support Mr. White’s

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Ms. Sugimura. Ms. Cochran?
. .

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, so let me... can I just get it clear then

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --is the motion going to be to restore the full amount but
transferring one of the, part of the amount to another area as Mr. White mentioned?
Is it the whole dollar amount that we’re looking to restore here?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or just partial?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. Partial.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And what is that dollar amount then?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s what we’re going to work out right now. So

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this is what I’m going to ask you to consider after hearing Mr. Carroll,
Ms. Sugimura, and Mr. White, so they can work through this, you know, in a
reasonable time. I would say at this time why don’t we consider restoring enough
funds for the first position, transferring the second position to Finance and Risk
Management, and the third one we just delete, keep the cut. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You said Finance, Risk Management should
-
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Corp. Counsel.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --be Corp. Counsel, Risk Management.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, excuse me, Corp. Counsel, Risk Management.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the correction. That is what is before you, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I have consensus with that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh wait, there’s couple noes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we had a no so we’re going to return. We’re going to return. That’s
fine. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m sorry. I just have another update on...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Wait, let me read it to you, if I may. Okay. So Rail
Conference Committee Tokuda appreciates House da-da-da for rail sources. Senate
wants to make changes. Only fair that Honolulu get the $13 million reduction and the
neighbor island counties get their full share at the $93 million level. Representative
Aquino states this is a measure we can all live with and we accept its amendments.
So the counties...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we still get less than this year.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Than the 103.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 103.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so we still need to, yeah, make.. .well, we made an adjustment that
the Chair will say is still a good adjustment. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The understanding that I have is that the City and
County of Honolulu is going to take a $13 million hit from the...and the neighbor
island counties will not take the hit. I don’t think the counties as a whole are getting
93, so I’m questioning what the calculation ends up being. But it sounds to me like
we’re going to get what we would have gotten if they had left the number at 93. So I
think the number that you have in the Budget is an okay number based on that
calculation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I based it on the 93.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My number is based on 93.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That’s why what I think they’re saying is that City and County of
Honolulu is going to take the hit, and the neighbor islands are going to be held static
at the share that they would have had at 93.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So yeah, well wait for verification.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Well, it could change anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I got that from people who are at the hearing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: It’s like following one football...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, so well stay abreast, Members, as we go through this
process. Okay, Page 29, line 707 regarding the reduction of professional services.
This is General.. .yes, this is General Fund request but this is the one that for the
system upgrade right for Solid Waste? This is the one that the consultant gave us a
great bid, then they told us that was an incorrect bid so they told us that they’~re going
to resubmit a bid that caine in 109,000 higher. And of course this is I believe, this
was for the... hold on, the update SQL for Solid Waste’s billing system, if I recall
correctly. And that’s why I was thinking that maybe Solid Waste should pay for this
but you know the numbers, Solid Waste is a fund that doesn’t have money and we
infuse great General Fund transfers. So my only comment to you, Members, is that I
-
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don’t know why we need all this different systems all over the place. I would hope we
would get some consolidation and some smart savings by eliminating all these little
programs here and there, but we’re not there yet. And although it irks me greatly, if
you folks want to restore this 109 professional, I will not object but I will not request
it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Restore and consensus. Oh, it can’t be consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys want to restore it? Make it known. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Can you explain that again what this is doing? The...
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is restoring the professional services contract that is needed to help
Solid Waste back on upgrading their SQL on their billing system. They~re on a
separate system. Just like Water is on a separate system. Okay. The original
consultant contract I think it was 20-something thousand, then they complained that
that was incorrect bid they submitted to us and so they asked the, I guess MAPPS or
whoever, Management to be able to resend an adjusted bid and that is why we have
this higher number, because we allowed them to come in with another bid which was
much higher than the original bid they presented to the County. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I, you know, hearing that explanation and I recall mister...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is the best that I have, that I understand it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, no, and I’m just wondering if, you know, we’re kind of up against
the wall. If this were my company, I would say I don’t want to put it in the budget,
you come back to me with a better ~number. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we have Solid Waste here if you folks want Solid Waste to come down
and respond to the Committee.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But I also don’t know how far along we are in the project. Is this, you
know, have we already gotten to a point where we’ve committed these funds or not? I
mean we shouldn’t have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I not too sure where the upgrade for this SQL component billing system is
currently.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Could we ask? Could we ask them to come?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any objections by the Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Ratte and Mr. Kehano or, you know, whoever needs from Solid
Waste, come on down. Thank you very much for making yourselves available,
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gentlemen, we appreciate it. This is under the ITS program, Mr. Ratte, but it’s the
$109,000 that we were informed that was needed for the billing system’s upgrade for
your SQL, next SQL. And this is our understanding that originally you folks were
now.. .you did receive a bid, the consultant then said that was incorrect, asked I guess
for an adjustment in the scope, had a rebid, and now came in with this new higher
number, and that is what is now being asked of us to fund. Is that accurate,
Mr. Ratte?
MR. RATI’E: Yes, that’s accurate, Chair. A small clarification.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, please.
MR. RATTE: Small clarification. IT’s actually handling the bid and the process and the
scope of work and those contracts. Just a slight historical, Solid Waste Division
installed a system back in ‘09 called Northstar so that’s what we’ve been using since
‘09. In 2013 Finance mandated that the whole County use iNovah and transactions
through iNovah to allow the use of credit card purchases which I think everybody
would agree that’s a good idea, it gives the community more ability to pay. So we set
ours up in ‘09. In 2013 I think they’re trying to address what Chair’s concern was
about trying to standardize. So we support that; however, we’re not involved with that
bid per se and that scope of work. At the end of the day, what this money is for as I
understand it is an upgrade to our existing software so that it’s compatible with the
iNovah system. So I believe ITS correctly put it in the FY ‘18 Budget for this upgrade.
So yeah, I would tend to agree with Councilmember White in that we’re slightly in a
situation where we may not have a whole lot of choice here at this point other than to
go with the upgrade. But certainly negotiation with that contractor that submitted the
bid could be done by IT potentially. I’m not sure of the details there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Ratte? I thought he
gave us a very straightforward, concise response. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I don’t know.. .maybe Ms. Yoshimura knows the
answer to this, but I know Solid Waste has a fair amount of accounts over 90 days,
and I’m wondering if we can hang the carrot out there that... I don’t know that the
accounts are generally counted into the Budget, you know, the receivables. I wouldn’t
have a problem paying for this out of the receivables collection of accounts over
90 days.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t know if we have that information available.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We have a sheet on it. I don’t have it handy.
always has things handy. I don’t know how she does it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know what, we’ll return to this. We’ll return to this and we’ll get
back. Thank you, Mr. Ratte, for being here this afternoon. Okay, the next area is
Page 30.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I believe we also were revisiting the HR payroll system.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: That’s right, the million dollars.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, thank you for that, the 710. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: After hearing the discussion, it seems as though they would likely need
somewhere between 1 million and 2 million, maybe 1 million and a half, I don’t know.
But I don’t know what the.. .it sounded like the timing was going to require us to have
the, you know, close to the full 2 million by the end of this coming fiscal year. So
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: I know what you’re saying.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --your call, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We all heard the comments from Mr. Underwood, we all heard the
comments from Mr. Verkerke, so.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I am concerned with incurring additional costs if we lengthen the term
of the engagement because it’s just...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So am I, so am I. I think we heard five years pretty much lifecycle for this
type of technology before things can change. Any other comments, Members? I’m
interested in what some others may think about it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I have a question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. So I’m looking on Page 10-15 where that amount,
total was 2,350,000. The original request or the original amount from last year was
200,000. So but it says that the contract is 2 million and then they needed an
additional 150 to create, 150,000 to create electronic signatures or approvals. Does
that mean that they needed a total of 350 for the signatures?
CHAIR HOKAMA: What page are you referring please?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I’m on 10-15 in the Details.
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: The Details.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let me grab my...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I’m just trying to figure out because the line that you put in was a
reduction of a million so that left 1.350. But I’m trying to figure out if they’re saying
they need 2.150 or they need the full 2.350.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, my recollection is you took the million dollars just out of the
payroll system amount.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct, only the payroll component.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So the other amount would be...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, it’s on the line that says reduce computer software so I was
looking at the computer software line. Oh, so maybe I’m looking at the wrong line. I
was looking at the, on Page 10-15, the 6244.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, yeah, this is the line.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the line I reduced the 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I was just trying to figure out if they, if their need was 2.150 or
2.350.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, they were explaining that yesterday. You know for me the key part
of course is to stay in compliance which we are, we are in compliance, okay. So I want
everybody to know there is no issue. We are in compliance with whatever standards,
whatever GASBI requirements, whatever IRS requirements, we are in compliance.
Okay. The issue again is the State tends to always do what works for them regardless
of whether it works for others like this County. I understand the financial impact to
this County if we don’t do it and we do have potential future compliance issues. I’m
not so concerned about the penalty amount, I’m concerned about not getting the
appropriate credit where that money would go in case we had to pay it. Because if
this County is going to get 100 percent recognition and credit for that monies, I would
say that changes the picture a little for us. But since we know the problems with the
retirement system, I’d rather be cautious. So I’m leaning to add money back. I’m not
convinced the whole million should go back at this time, Members. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I totally understand your hesitancy. The only thing
I would add is that the... it was explained to us that this new system will provide us
significantly better management tools and reporting. And with the interest we have in
controlling spiking
--
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --and things of that sort, if we’re able to get tools that allow us to do a
much better job of managing our payroll, we may be able save the million dollars in
the first 6 months. I mean our payroll is 200 and.. .what is it, 240 going up to 250
or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Around there.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So all we’d have to do is save half a percent and we’d pay for this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I hear you, I hear what you’re saying.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So I would feel that we should probably leave it at.. .restore at least
750,000 of that, but I’ll leave that up to you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments? If not, the Chair will work on a number and
present it to you for the next round. And I’ll take all your comments, you know, I hear
where you folks want to go so Ill make the adjustment for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I guess my only comment would be that I agree in theory with
Mr. White, but being in business myself for a long time, I know a lot of times, you
know, you think you~re going to save money, the reality of it is six months goes by and
doesn’t materialize. So that would just be my caution.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And we appreciate that perspective you shared with us, Ms. King. You
know I heard this, the same thing about when we converted from manual, it’s going to
save us money, it’s going to do all these great things for us. And here I am 20 years
later still complaining about it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING:

.

.

.

(inaudible)...

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay, you know, so you’re going to sales pitch and then you gotta
deal with the reality. Okay. So I understand what you’re saying, Mr. White, and I
hope what we were told will, the fruits will bear and we’ll get those benefits. Again, it’s
a complex payroll system. You heard that yesterday again. It’s complicated, we have
multiple contracts, different rates. And then when you... eventually we receive the
specifics of the arbitrators on the, what, five we got yesterday, and then we’re going to
get I believe possible six, six more today, arbitrator’s decision on the other units, we’re
-
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going to be working on that. So I’ll come back and give you a number that I think is
reasonable. I get the, the main message is, I got is we’re going to restore some money
back, and it’s going to be between zero and a million dollar, one and a million back for
the restoration. So give me time, Ill give you a good number that hopefully you will all
have consensus on. Okay, we’ll move on to Page 30, line 743, Ms. Sugimura.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Thank you, Chair.
This is the Office of Economic
Development and it involves Hawaii Tourism Authority, it’s a contract.
They
submitted that document to us which is an HTA agreement with the County of Maui,
it’s for 70,000, it’s in Appendix A. And the way that the office has used--I think
Mr. White also explained this--is that a portion of it was used for the grants
management person who processes the contracts in the office as well as the other
employees who are helping to monitor the HTA, it’s called PEP grant, it’s no longer
called CPEP but it’s PEP grant processing which... system. And the reason for this is
because as Ms. Rasmussen said is that the money... because we don’t, we no longer
process their grants for them anymore, but they expect us to do reporting and
monitoring of the grants, that she has utilized this amongst her various employees
within the Department. So that’s what this is about.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
person.

So we need... so requesting to restore especially the grants

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How you want to pay for it?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: And we can’t pay for it with that $70,000 contract?
thought that’s what would be covering it.

I

CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought it was being used.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: With the money that comes in is being used for this, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought they spread it around, the 70,000? Isn’t that what we were told?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So how are you going to pay for this one?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: That’s how they’re using it within these 2 positions. The
$70,000 contract is being utilized by OED within these, well, these 2 lines I guess is
more than 2 positions. So it’s on 74...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think you need to come back and give us a better plan than saying it’s
spread out over all these employees. I don’t know how they~re going to verify to the
State that each person did what they were supposed to do for the State money every
day.
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay, revisit then

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, ‘cause I’m not gonna...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --is what you~re saying. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Plus you haven’t told us how you’re going to pay for this.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: And the $70,000 contract doesn’t pay for it? That’s what I
thought.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought that was already utilized.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I’m sorry, what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought it was already being utilized.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Here.
these 2 lines, 743 and 744.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well,

_____

The 70,000 contract is being utilized here within

still doesn’t make sense to me. So, Mr. White?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I don’t know whether the Budget Director may have
an understanding of this, but my recollection is that the HTA gives us $70,000 and
my... I think that $70,000 covers both salary, and I would imagine that, you know,
over the years we would have insisted that they cover fringe. So I believe that only a
portion of that $70,000 is used for salary, and then the balance would be used to
cover the fringe for that salary. And I believe the $14,000 simply is the additional
salary on, you know, for that to bring it to full time. Because I believe it was a
three-quarter time position. I don’t think that’s where the other 52 comes from, but I
don’t know if the Budget Director has any clarifying thoughts for us because it is a bit
confusing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Regan?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yes, that’s my understanding, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The way I outlined it? Okay. So I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I guess HTA determined that there’s not enough work for a full-time
position then so they only gave us enough for a three-quarter time?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Regan?
-
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yes. It’s my understanding in talking with Ms. Rasmussen that some of
the duties that the HTA grant specialist had originally were I guess transferred to HTA.
So HTA on Oahu is doing more of the work.
Whereas currently according to
Ms. Rasmussen, a lot of the work that needs to be done here on Maui is basically
attending the various events and reviewing and providing some type of, you know,
review or
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Reporting.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: --reporting of each event that the County of Maui HTA funds. So there’s
less work involved and so it doesn’t necessarily require like a full-time person, because
a lot of the responsibilities have been transferred to the State. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. So why would we want to make the three-quarter time full
time if there’s less work? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
So, Chair, by a correspondence, Office of Economic
Development also adjusted I guess these, for the information regarding the Economic
Development Specialist II, the number is 24,637, and then for the remaining reduction
continue or request for salary adjustments and proposed increases over
Fiscal Year 2017 is another $42,207. So those were changes that she suggested by
her communication.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Okay. So first thing, Mr. White, we did verify yeah, the
Economic Development Specialist from HTA, three-quarter time at SR-22J is 52,155
and then on... and then the balance is taken care of by the HTA grant for the fringes,
so that’s the whole 70.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So yeah, they’re asking now to make up this quarter time.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If the organizational work on the grants has been transferred to
Honolulu, you know, it seems to me that HTA is allowing us to keep the $70,000 and
it looks as though that has been applied to our Grants Manager position. So HTA is
paying for the Grant Manager position and... or say three-quarters. I’m not sure what
that works out to. I guess about two-thirds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two-quarters.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. And then the amount here is 14,700 and Ms. Sugimura says
that it’s 24,6-something. But
--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Six two seven.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --that’s... so basically we’re getting a discounted Grant Manager at this
point. And then the other salary adjustments are from a position that was vacated
-

68

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

and they wish to reorganize the salaries I guess. So anyway, I think we need to do... I
think we should restore the Economic Development Specialist, because that is the
person that is handling all the other grants, not just HTA.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
this?

Okay.

Anything else, Members?

Okay.

You folks have consensus on

COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I don’t agree. Too bad, we’re returning.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So we’re returning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 31, Mr. White, 6...769, Maui School Garden Network.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m... my only concern is I’m just not certain that the, of the timing of
training a replacement for Ms. Huff and, you know, a lot of cases, you know, a training
period is relatively short. I don’t, you know, I’m not going to lose any sleep over it
though, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes. I also would like to support this increase for the Maui
School Garden Network. And if the Members would permit, taking that 10,000 from
the Maui Nui Botanical Gardens. And here’s my rationale behind that. You have a
network school garden which children are growing various plants and vegetables
which is the sanie concept of growing in the botanical garden. So if there could be a
cooperation between the two entities wherein the botanical garden would be working
with the school network by using some of the taros and the native plants that are
being grown there and planting those in the school network garden, I think it would
work out. So by, you know, I’m taking... I’ll probably take a hit for this publicly, but I
think it’s a good concept in my mind, if they could work together. And then pulling
the 10,000 from the 150,000 from the botanical and place it into the school network
garden. And thereby maybe put a proviso in there with the school network garden
saying that 10,000 provided that they work with the botanical garden.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Or we could do it the other way, we could proviso the botanical
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Or yeah, vice versa.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --side and have them work

--

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with the school garden network.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that’s an

--

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And maybe someone at the

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --interesting concept.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
--botanical garden who’s interning there would find an
interest in taking over Ms. Huff at some point. So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting concept.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for that unique proposal, appreciate it. Anyone else on this
area?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I would support that. So you’re.. .1 just wanted to clarify
what Mr. Guzman is saying. So you would put the 25,000 into Maui Nui Botanical
Garden with the proviso that the 25,000 go into the Maui School Garden Network?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, no, no, it would be initially, Chair...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say we would leave it the way it is.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: When we go to the Maui Nui Botanical Garden line then I would say we
can work on a proviso
--

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That 10,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that says provided that

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: That the 10,000...
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Program.

--10,000 would be in a coordinated effort with the Maui School Garden

COUNCILMEMBER KING: To support the Maui School
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: --Garden Network.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. I would support that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And like I said, maybe there’s a intern at the garden... at the
botanical that could
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --work alongside with Ms. Huff.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Just to follow up on that

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --idea, Mr. Guzman, do you know if there is any coordination
right now between those two entities?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: As far as I know there is none. So it would be helpful. I
mean if they’re not going to do it on their own, let’s proviso it in and see what
happens.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, I would say I’m open to that. And again, Members, this is an
annual Budget, if it doesn’t work out in the next 12 months, next Budget we can make
an adjustment and a shift. So, you know, this is a good idea we can consider.
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you. Does the Parks Department utilize Maui
Nui Botanical services? I think there was something in reference to growing the
natives in regards to us, you know, beautification efforts in our actual County parks
with that entity. I thought maybe from last year and the year back there was some
kind of cooperation
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m pretty sure they use some of

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --native plants and trees for certain landscaping requirements I think they
work out with the Maui Nui Botanical Garden.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Specifically for our County parks. So I’m...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, because that was one of the things we told them, if they~re going to
stay on County land and receive County funds, they need to offer County departments
services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And so is there a way to utilize, I don’t know, park
assessment, some kind of other County dollars to enhance what people want to take
away from them, Maui Nui Botanical? Because
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: They can enhance it by their sales.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --these are way two different types of entities doing way two
different types of services to this community I feel.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I’m just trying to say if we’re going to offset Maui Nui
Botanical, is there someplace in Parks or somewhere within our County? I know we
already, the land and, Chair, I know you bring up the point, X amount of years they
said only one-time ask and here they still are. But I believe they really do a huge
service. The Hoomau is provided there that, you know, help with our immersion. And
yeah, they~re a huge entity in propagating, perpetuating our cultural native plants. So
I don’t know, that’s just my thoughts because I’m not really in favor of this.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m going to segue off Councilmember Cochran’s, what she
just shared and I have to agree with her. I.. .we don’t know for sure if they have that
capacity to go out further. But I will not be in consensus to touch... anyway, when we
come to the Maui Nui Botanical. I think the funds for the whatever network that... I
don’t agree in taking out of the botanical.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, no, that’s fme. That’s fine. Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair, I’m very familiar with both of these agencies. I’ve worked
with the Maui School Garden Network. Not, they~re not only involved in public
schools, there are... they’re also involved in a lot of afterschool programs, especially the
garden down at Ka Hale A Ke Ola. So they, you know, and they~re growing and
expanding, and more of our children are getting educated and connected to growing
food. Something that they do every day is that they eat. So I would highly encourage
to keep their funding at the same status level as the previous year, keeping it at 25
and not deducting it at 10. I was entertained with colleague Guzman’s proposal to
involve Maui Nui Botanical Garden which I also am very familiar with, and I agree with
Member Cochran that these are two similar entities but yet different involvements and
missions. And so my concern about tapping into their 150, would it affect anyone
else’s job at Maui Nui Botanical? Because I think a lot of the brothers down there,
-
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they~re farming and they’re growing all the plants, but if we take away 10,000 from
them, will 1 of them lose employment because of that. So it’s kind of like I think I
would want to fully support both entities, keeping the 150 and keeping the 25 and
finding the 10 elsewhere. These are 2 entities that we need and can’t change it. So I
would
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --let it float in the side and wait for real property.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So I want to thank my colleagues for the information, because I’m
not as familiar with Maui Nui Botanical. So thank you for the information about that
organization. I’d like to just float another idea of taking the 10,000 out of the Farm
Bureau, because that’s a pretty big chunk there, and for the school garden network
and see what everyone thinks about that.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: It’s teaching kids.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: If I recall, the garden network, when they come to ask us for
funding, they didn’t want to have--oh sorry--they did not want any of their monies to
be conduit through Maui Farm Bureau I guess because they plant organics and they
didn’t feel that was the
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --same philosophy. So maybe we can take it out of the
Hawaii Farmers Union. That was their... that was what they asked us with their
funding is not to go through anything with the Maui Farm Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair? Chair, just to...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: May I clarify that I’m not saying that it would go through that
entity, I’m saying just take the 10,000 out of that 300,000 for the Farm Bureau, move
it to the school garden network. So it’s not, it wouldn’t be working underneath any
entity, it would still be its own separate entity which is what I think I heard
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING:
separate.

--everybody saying that the school garden network should stay

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, maybe with the Hawaii Farmers
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So

--

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --Union.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --I think...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we don’t have consensus so well return to this. And the Members
can make a proposal, and we’ll.. .next round is with votes so whatever is the vote is the
vote. Okay. Page 32, CTAHR, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I would like to come back to CTAHR. I’m not ready to give
my proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Thirty-two, 786, Mr. Guzman, Central Maui ED.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh. Yeah, I lost my.. .yeah, I’m not ready to give my proposal
and the monies to support this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: However, I do want to let the Chair know that I am searching
for monies to support this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, no, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Yes, Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yes, I was also one that asked to revisit this item 786

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --Central Maui Economic Development and Cultural Programs. It
was suggested that we delete the 102,500 down to 0. I’d like that, you know, being
that my colleague Guzman here, we share Kahului and Wailuku in the Central area.
You know I, the solution of finding money is located on Page 36, item 886, and on
Page 37, item 924. These are categories that are similar in addressing cultural and
economic development initiatives for the community. One was set aside at 150,000;
the other was set aside for 100,000. I think to consider that to be placed in both
-
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Kahului and Wailuku for that additional funding of cultural and economic activities
would be appreciated.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yes, I think we, you know, probably all looking at the same pots
of money. I think West Maui and South Maui also has economic development funds in
here for 102. So I would like to revisit those, you know, those pots of money in
relation to all of those asks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: In terms of our Economic Revolving Fund, I’m not sure how
much money we have left in that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it’s zero.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is it zeroed out?
CHAIR HOKAMA: What was that?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I thought we had

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty thousand.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Forty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --40,000 left in there? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, because that was part of my disappointment in those. It was a
revolving fund but what we gave out was outright grants so the revolving fund will not
be replenished.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we defeated the revolving fund purpose.
about, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the balance is $20,127.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, 20,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s all that’s left there.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. So we’ll return to this area. Not a problem.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You mentioned a little while ago that we were going to take a break.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. No, that’s a good time. Yeah, this is a good time. Okay, well be in
recess till 3:05.
.(gavel).
.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

2:57 p.m.
3:13 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
.(gavel).
Okay, we are back in order. We’re on Page 32, top of the
page, CTAHR. Ms. Crivello had asked to revisit. She’s busy on a conference call at
this time with the activities at the capitol. So...
.

.

.

.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Let’s revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, well come back till she can participate on that. Let’s see, cultural
and arts, we heard mister.. .well return to that since Mr. Atay and through
Mr. Guzman well provide time. So then the next one...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What page is that on, sir?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was 32 so we’re going to go to Page 33, Ka Ipu Kukui, 15,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Is that your revisit?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, ‘cause that’s still my number.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, that’s still your number?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I would like to revisit.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Page 34 and on 841, 845 we’ll revisit that. Page 36 cultural and
arts, 886.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m going to revisit this. I’m going to give you folks a proposal later.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: What was that, what line was that that we’re revisiting?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight eight six or 889, 888.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’ll give you a new number

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or a new proposal. Eight ninety-five, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’d like to make a proposal next time around.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Let’s see, I... on the, on that 890.. .no, I’m sorry, 895.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I’m proposing to increase Maui Nui Marine Resource Council to
169 and the money is already in there. I think we all got a memo from Rob Parsons,
our Environmental Coordinator, that show that that money is.. .let’s see, the heading
is Fiscal Year ‘18 projected environmental protection. And so the money is, the total
would be 169,000 which includes the 94,000 for expanding the marine quality
monitoring to South Maui shores. And I also would like to inform my colleagues that
this article was in the paper on Wednesday at the Star Advertiser that says Maui’s
seafloor coral reef erosion found to be severe, and it also talked about the water
quality being the worst in the State and comparing us to other island communities
unfavorably I might add. So I think this is a really important piece that probably is a
dire piece of service to our tourism community as well. I’d like to ask if I could get
consensus on that.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Miss, we’re not too interested in that. Mr. White already said he’s going to
give us a proposal
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for the next round so I’m honoring that just as Mr. Guzman asked to
give a proposal next round, and I think Ms. Cochran has a proposal next round. So
once a Member requests that, I’m going to honor that and allow them to give a
proposal next round. Okay. Kaehu Bay, Mr. Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yes, Chair. I’m kind of confused about--oh sorry--kind of
confused about our County’s commitment to our County properties. You know just
recently acquired that, my understanding, the area of River Mouth. Finally the folks
down there finally got organized, just received funding, just trying to get everything
cleaned up, and then now we’re going down to zero and bailing out. I’m confused on
that.
I want to push to reinstate and finding it’s either under environmental
protection because this is our shoreline management area, as well as I guess finding
the money out of real property tax. Because I feel that we just recently acquired this
property and we gotta keep it, we can’t just not do nothing with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You make a good point, and if you would look at that pot, environmental
protection, under that $1.3 million, there is a consideration for Kaehu Bay for 75,000
so that’s where we’ve put the money.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Oh, okay. I thought it was zeroed out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again yeah, Members, part of the difficulty is there’s different pots
and, you know, a lot of times we just look at the line items, Members, but it’s hiding
someplace else. So Kaehu Bay is in that $1.3 million, Mr. Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The only one I had a question, Budget Director, is why we giving money to
Oahu Economic Development Board, that $15,000?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair? Oh. Chair, that was deleted so the new, the proposal we
got...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay hold on, hold on, hold on. ‘Cause I just got this dated 4/28. Okay,
I’m reading a communication we all have dated 4/28. I’m looking at that addendum
we all have and it says Oahu Economic Development Board 15,000. I thought it was a
misprint, I thought it meant Maui economic but no, it says Oahu.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so, Ms. Rasmussen, why are we giving Oahu our money?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, so that organization is managing the Hawaii Green Growth
Initiative for the entire State, and all the counties are putting in equal $15,000
appropriations, and the Big Island is putting in 25,000. So this is that Aloha+
Challenge that they come and they do the measures of how we have progressed with
the green jobs and green sustainability around the State. And it was.. .that’s what it’s
going for. It’s just that they’re the fiscal agents for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
15 percent?

How much overhead do they charge this County?

Twelve percent,

MS. RASMUSSEN: That, I don’t have the answer to that.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Well, we have to use that, them as the, for the pass-through,
Ms. Rasmussen? We couldn’t use it, our own MEDB or another entity, a Maui entity
to fund the money through?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I don’t think so because they’re managing the project for the whole State.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that response.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So I’m to believe looking at this under University of Hawaii, MISC,
895,000, this is separate from the 500,000 that’s being proposed for coqui and
separate from 300-something thousand for Miconia. So, you know, as your earlier
statement, you know, the sleight of hands, why can’t we just put all of this dealing
with invasive species all under environmental protection aloha ama? Why are... why
is, it’s all over and then come to find out that these guys are getting 2.35 million. You
know so I’m all for protecting and using and going up against the invasive species, put
‘em all in one pot, give ‘em 3 million and we clear. But I’m looking at this, this is the
first time I see this, and I’m seeing that they’re already getting funded 895,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Out of our 1.3 million now.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s our money now, Mr. Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s not UH money, it’s our money going through them
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: County money

--

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --going through.. .yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --going through the University of Hawaii.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The funnels, the funneling. Correct. Correct. And that’s why, you know,
maybe there was some misconnect on my earlier statements about the pots and how,
you know, you need to look at a lot of different places to figure out exactly what an
entity is really truly getting instead of just a line item amount.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I was born at night but not...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I know, I know what you’re saying. I know what you’re saying, Mr. Atay.
And that’s why, you know, a lot of times when you said, oh, you know, the Chair cut
out Kaehu Bay, but now you find out there’s Kaehu Bay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah, right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Chair, could I make one comment about the DWS amount?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, she’s going to make a comment on the MISC.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I just wanted to make one comment about why the Department of Water
Supply provides that money for Miconia. So it’s really important for you to know that
Department of Water Supply funds are paid for by water users. Okay. So that money
is... and it’s strictly for watershed protection, and that’s why the Department of Water
Supply is involved with that. And they want only work that takes place inside the
watershed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So our funds are for MISC to do work in other places and the coqui frog.
So I just wanted to make that delineation.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Is that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Oh, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Is that watershed County watershed?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We’d have to look at their water, the DWS contract.
much.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: The question is it’s State land, DLNR land

I don’t know how

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Private land?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --private land that we are using local County coffers, what is the
percentage of involvement of the landowners as well as the State government
partnership involved or is it all our bill?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Regan?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:
minute or so.

Chair, I’m checking with Director Taylor and I’ll get back to you in a

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll get that response for you, Mr. Atay. Okay. We’re going to
keep moving on, Members. Okay. Page 37, this is coqui frog eradication. Original
was 300, I am, I propose to add 200,000 more for 500,000. We had a request to
revisit by Ms. Sugimura.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair. This is the MISC Coqui Frog Eradication
Project as stated, and the, this project I guess was.. .not I guess, they were requesting
for a million dollars which was to take them to where they were in 2016. Twenty
seventeen, the 300,000 represented what they received at that time because a lag in
contract processing with UH or whoever it was. And so they decreased their amount
with us actually for 300,000. But for this year when I met with them, they were
requesting, they~re hoping to take them back up to the million and continue on with
the eradication, of the coqui frog project. So if it has to be a revisit to assess this,
500,000 is much appreciated, it takes them closer to where they would like to be, but
to continue in tackling the problem, they were hoping to get closer to the million dollar
allocation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How you want to pay for this new half a million dollars?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So revisit, I’ve got to search for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll come back. Thank you. Nine twenty, Ms. Cochran, MCVA.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, looking to cut for my tower, lifeguard tower and TVR
enforcement, equals to 178,000.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah. This is, is this in the same economic development area that
all of these pots of, the 102 economic development for South Maui, West Maui and
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Is it?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --Central as well. So this is actually where I was looking for that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, sorry. Sorry, what line are we on, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maui County Visitors Association.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The $4.2 million?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, okay. My statement stands.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, thank you for that. So you heard her proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So shall I repeat?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So I am completely, completely clear for everyone, so
total deduction, I’m looking for a decrease is 178, $178,000, and that breaks down to
$100,000 for a lifeguard tower at Puu Kekaa also known as Black Rock, and 78,000
for that TVR enforcement proposal that we talked about through Planning. So this is
the funding and those items, line items are in another part of this Budget.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So Puu Kekaa as when I looked at the maps, that’s either State or
Sheraton Maui’s property. So how do you plan to get this tower on
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So there has...
-

82

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of’Maui
April 28, 2017

CHAIR HOKAMA: --a property we have no site control?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. So there has been initial discussions with Ocean
Safety and the Sheraton property, and they are very, I mean there’s no solid
settlement but there is negotiations. So this is just to start that going. And they are
interested also in cost sharing. So at this time, that’s the full cost but between Ocean
Safety and Sheraton they have been in discussions and manning the station would be
part of the Hanakaoo tower there and the Sheraton tower. And they can utilize
existing manpower to make it work for the entire area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I’m not sure...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --they want a tower but they don’t need more personnel?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, they do not, they will not. So it doesn’t affect that part
of the Budget. The only thing is the tower, the physical structure itself which is 100 to
build, ship... order, ship, and all that stuff.
But again, there’s very favorable
discussions being had via Ocean Safety, Fire Department with Sheraton Maui in
particular.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, may I ask a question?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So the 100,000 is just to build the infrastructure, meaning
the tower, and does that include the permitting process for SMA and everything else
that comes with that kind of construction, or is this money looking for the planning
and design?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair, this is strictly for the tower itself. So all those
other added features would be I’m hoping, I can’t guarantee but that cost sharing
perhaps of sorts via the Sheraton and the, whatever entities in that vicinity where this
is chosen to be at. But currently the positive interaction has been with Sheraton, and
the highest amount of drownings in the entire State is there at Black Rock. Granted
people from all over go there to swim, but it does, it has been really impacting yes, our
visitors but also our Ocean Safety as a whole in order to address the situation that
occurs in that particular area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Atay?

-

83

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY:
Association.

Chair, in regards to this item on line 920, Maui County Visitor

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I’d like to also if there is a possible way of getting some type of
proviso involved where some kind of safety education for the visitors in Ocean Safety
or even hiking in the mountains, and getting it at the airports and/or in all the
rent-a-cars for our visitors to be safe. So if they~re going to focus on marketing for the
visitors, I think they... some of this money should also be set aside to marketing,
educating the visitors so that they don’t cost us local money in responding to go save
them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think that’s a very solid comment. I know, I believe Kaual uses their
cable visitors channel, and they always run their loop about... Kauai is always
concerned about their surf and their undertow and their strong currents. So I notice
they play a lot of informational about visitors, never turn your back to the wave, never
enter the water backwards, always check with the lifeguards and water safety
personnel upon, on conditions of the ocean. So I don’t know why we couldn’t do it
with our own Maui visitor channel either. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. All of us have responsibility to let people know the
dangers of the ocean, especially in, fronting our properties. We do pass out the
brochures. I didn’t check to see whether we have the safety video on the visitor
network. But Mr. Atay makes a good point. I think it might be more appropriate for
us to work through the Hotel Association rather than the Visitors Bureau. Visitors
Bureau can help with some of the, possibly with some of the printing and distribution
of the brochures, but the responsibility goes, you know, it goes beyond the Visitors
Bureau and to the hotels. And every time there’s a high-surf warning, we put a voice
message in every room. And as people are leaving, we let them know that, you know,
to be watchful. And as far as the lifeguard station is concerned, I’m all in favor of it.
At the same time, I’m an immediate neighbor and I haven’t had, I haven’t been called,
there hasn’t been any inquiry. And I would imagine that there would be more cost
sharing that the Sheraton would be looking at than taking that on on their own. So,
you know, for now my beach guys are doing a very good job of keeping that area safe.
And we, you know, we can’t do everything, but we have had support from the Ocean
Safety personnel. They’ve come down and helped our guys and in some cases
provided some small equipment that can be utilized. So I, it’s certainly worth the
discussion, I just am kind of surprised that I haven’t heard much from my neighbors
as far as participation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Sugimura, then Ms. King.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair. I remember Alika Atay or Member Atay’s
comment and that I believe the Maui Visitors Bureau or Teena Rasmussen did say
that the Maui Visitors Bureau does do education and existing. Is that correct? They
do safety warnings and have...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Rasmussen?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you. Okay, thank you. Yeah, I had stated the other day that a
year and a half ago, the Visitors Bureau brought together Ocean Safety, the Maui Fire
Department, OED, and there was a couple other departments, and we had a big
meeting about visitor safety. And out of that, we created a safety video that is now
currently playing at Kahului Airport in baggage claim. It also is on the visitor channel.
And then from that also they talked about the individual hotels that are doing a lot of
work, even like I said trying to put something on their pillow so they’ll actually pay
attention to it to remind them how, you know, about ocean safety and hiking and so
forth. So they’re active already in this. It’s an issue for the entire industry, and we
obviously never want to see our visitors get injured. So it’s, they’re very active with
that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. Thank you, Chair. One of the other things I wanted
to add to that is I think there’s such a grave concern for conservation, is there some
message about conservation and not taking things from the reef or taking things from
the mountain? You know not... I mean I know, the only thing I’ve seen actually when
I’ve been out there has been the I think Federally-funded ranger that’s out there at
Ahihi Kinau, telling people about the chemical-laden sunscreens and what it does to
the reef. So is there anything that the Maui Visitors Bureau is doing to alert tourists
as far as caring for our environment and being cautious about, you know, stepping on
invasive species and... or stepping on native species and things like that?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I think those initiatives are coming out of the conservation groups
themselves, and the Visitors Bureau is always totally willing to help disseminate the
information. But because they’re the, the conservation groups are the experts, I think
they need to be the one to create the
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right. No, I totally

--

MS. RASMUSSEN: --messages.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --agree.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: But I’m just saying the, you know, if we~re looking at

--

MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --a proviso then...
MS. RASMUSSEN: But as of right now, I don’t know of any specific piece or something, you
know. But certainly they would welcome the conservation groups creating something
like that. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And then disseminate

--

MS. RASMUSSEN: And then they would help.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --disseminating it.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, they would help get it out.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah. ‘Cause I think that’s just as important.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And the other thing I wanted...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Point of order. Sorry, sorry, sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, state your point.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, are we... I’m trying to see if I can get support on a
lifeguard tower and the TVR enforcement idea.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I understand all the talk, I love all the discussion, but I
think we’re really veering off what I’m trying to get consensus on here if at all possible.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your Chair takes your point well taken and the Chair will end this
discussion right now. Okay. We’re on revisits. So unless there is a specific budgetary
question that we need resources, we are not going to use resources. This is our time.
Okay. This is our time.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So well move on and consider Ms. Cochran’s proposal...
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I mean I think I mentioned it earlier, but it is a proposal
that I also wanted to make out of this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we have a proposal

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --currently on the floor and that’s what the...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So we’re going to take that one up first, w&re going to do
one at a time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Ms. Cochran, the first component is

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The tower.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the tower and the second is the enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I’m going tell you I’m not going to support the enforcement from
this fund. I’m going to support the enforcement, and I am already looking at how to
fund that component and I’m running it out to 80,000. So I’m taking that under my
own wings and I’ll address that separately. If you don’t mind, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh no, I don’t mind at all, Chair. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --it’s just the tower, that we need to take up

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, right, right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --now is the tower, whether you can get consensus for the tower

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and that your proposal is to take an appropriate amount for the tower
from the MCVA amount.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, that’s what’s on the floor.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, that is what’s before you.
Ms. Cochran’s amended request? Ms. Crivello?

So any further discussion on

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So am I to understand that this is not.., this is State property

and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: State and private property.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: State and private. And then we will assign our Ocean Safety
personnel to man that particular tower? Yeah and considering the situation that we’re
in today with determination on dealing with our Ocean Safety/lifeguards
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
personnel or are we...

--and this is already a decision made, are we adding new

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, this is no additional personnel. It’s going to be one interesting thing
yeah, about this, ‘cause potentially the current way the Leg is moving, our Ocean
Safety person that potentially could be at this site Black Rock, potentially could be
covered by State law and indemnified and given immunity. That same person goes
back to let’s say D.T. Fleming’s Beach, now he becomes personally liable and open to
personal suits
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for doing the same job. Okay. So part of my issue right now regarding
this is how to deal with this tort issue. Yeah. And so I don’t think any of us question
the safety component of the request. But, you know, there’s more than just that one
thing for me to consider, the exposure
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And for me...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the liability.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause right now if the State, you know, for us and our employees, the
problem is on the litigation portion and the payment of the penalty and judgment,
because those kind of things will be in seven digits okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I don’t want to expose our employees unnecessarily to unfair litigation
because the State won’t give us coverage. Okay. So that is my main concern right
-
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now about creating for this one employee, two different rules depending where he’s
being stationed. But back to the main one
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the key is do you want to take MCVA money for this proposed stand,
lifeguard stand that is not going... it’s going to be either on State or private property.
And under current law, guess who gets indemnified and full immunity? Private
property owners and the State of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not us.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, I can appreciate Councilmember Cochran’s efforts,
but I cannot be in support at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, and thank you very much. And so let me give a little
bit more detail, ‘cause I think Corporation Counsel was also wondering how is it that
we can add on a new station but yet not need extra personnel. And so there’s
Hanakaoo Beach Park down a little bit away, and on the weekdays, it’s not as busy
with users and people, it’s the weekends that kick in with of course your families, your
canoe races, and what have you. So Ocean Safety felt it would work out very nicely,
those Monday through Fridays, their same people man the station over at, by Puu
Kekaa, and then on the weekends they man more so over on Hanakaoo area. And so
that’s kind of how they were going to juggle the manpower portion. And then as for
the tort liability, you did mention would it work out and I don’t know, it’s too early to
tell. But if our people, granted they are State individuals at a State landing, State
whatever, private, then they can be indemnified under that while they’re working out
of that section perhaps fail under their protective, you know, protection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t know because they’re still paying
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I don’t know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --paid by the County, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They~re County employees.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. That’s

--
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So but

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --the rub.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I mean obviously those are more things to work out, but in
the meantime while those kind of negotiations and details are being worked out, the
funding here was to just put in place in order to get that tower and, you know, the
cost sharing perspectives into place too.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that’s a little more added information. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White, Ms. King, then Ms. Sugimura.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I’m... I don’t know whether we would be running into more
challenges if we’re... it sounds as though Hanakaoo will not be full, as staffed as well
as it is now during the weekdays, and then the, on the weekends, the new tower would
not be staffed or not fully staffed. So I think we’ve got a long way to go before we get to
the, get to a solution here. I appreciate the idea but I think we’ve got a lot of issues to
work out because it, the, putting the tower there is just one piece of this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Yeah, I, you know, I support the idea of
a lifeguard, but I’m trying, I’m having a hard time wrapping my mind around the fact
that we’re saying that we’re going to cancel all of the lifeguard program at the Makena
State Park because of this issue and then we’re gonna add another lifeguard at a
State, on State property in Lahaina. So is there a difference between the two State
designations? I mean all the Makena...
CHAIR HOKAMA:
program.

Well, my recommendation regarding Malcena is that it’s a grant-funded

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So my thing is I would ask you to consider that the County cancel being
the agent for the State, ‘cause that’s what we are now, we’re acting as an agent for the
State doing the State’s responsibility at a State park. So it’s State monies, they’re all
limited term because they work for the State, and we’re the contractors. So if, even if
we terminate, the money doesn’t disappear, the Leg can assign it to DLNR and have
DLNR with the same grant revenue provide the service at Makena. The State can hire
another third party to act as their agent to run the Makena program. So yeah, we
just...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So if we’re the agent for this...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: What we would say is, I’m recommending is that the County stop being
the agent for the State.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So but if we have a lifeguard at a State property are we
not, are we the agent or not the agent for the State?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Currently we are the agent for the State at Makena State Park.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we have...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, that’s what I’m trying to figure out, if we have a State
property in West Maui that we’ve got a lifeguard on, is that the same status or is that
a different status.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, technically the lifeguards at Makena are State employees. They’re
paid by the State. They work through us as the agent, but we’re only the intermediary
and that’s why they’re.. .in your Budget, you will see all the lifeguards at Makena are
LTAs
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --they’re not permanent E/Ps of the County. ‘Cause that grant funding
goes, their jobs goes too. Yeah. So regarding the State property, that’s the rub right
now with the Leg. Anytime an Ocean Safety Officer enters the water, that’s State
jurisdiction, so every rescue we’re acting as an agent on behalf of the State to perform
public safety. Now they’re telling us that there is a fine line. They only get protected
by the State if you come out of a State beach park. Adjacent park which it could be
the County or private.., or private, they give the private owners indemnification and
immunity. Okay. So to deal with the Bob Toyofuku’s and the tort lobby, the only one
left to sue is the County.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s the big push.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, I understand

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Who can the lawyers sue...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --that, I’m just saying is that... so we’re in a different situation
with the West Maui one because that’s a County employee?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s where we would ask, you know, we would need advice from
Corporation Counsel, is there a difference, doesn’t that make a difference as far as our
employees’ liabilities are concerned. ‘Cause the key point right now is under the
current law they cannot go after the individual life... Ocean Safety person.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. They taking away this coverage to our people. So part of my
concern is how much exposure will our employees be for personal damages. Okay.
That’s my concern. If they go after the employee personally, I find that very difficult on
how we’re going to respond. ‘Cause I don’t want to put the individual employee on
that ledge. That’s just me. Okay. So that’s the battle we having with the Leg, and
we’re not winning too many battles lately down there. But for this, it’s important and I
think we need this for the next round.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair, I was gonna

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --request if I could, we could have a revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, me too.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thereby I can talk to Ocean Safety

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and get a lot more details for this body to consider.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then maybe if, a chat with Corp. Counsel regarding the

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --exposure and whatnot please.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And I think Makena is a State park per se

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and all those are County parks, so this is different. Of
course we’re saying State because the ocean portion, right, the beach portion is State
then you have private which would be your hotel owners. But
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so that’s why the State entity word had gotten tossed in
there. But I think.., anyhow, so hopefully I can get a little more honed-in details next
time we come to this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. So we’re happy to revisit

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --next round. We look forward to your proposal

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and I will come up with the one for the enforcement side.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Excellent. Thank you very much, Chair, for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Line 925.. .926, Mr. White, EDI, economic development
initiatives. Anything at this time?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, Chair. I think that should be revisited along with the other...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
proposal.

You had mentioned earlier that you were going to come up with a

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I’m going to give you folks a proposal

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I assume that you would do that on that line as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --hearing all the Members’ comments. Thank you for that. We’re moving
forward. Thirty-eight, 944, Workline, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, as I said yesterday, I think that’s a good value that we get for the
work done. If the State would be willing to come up with the money to do the work for
us, I would be more than happy to accept it. But I know there are a lot of events that
depend on the work of the Workline. And I know Parks gets a significant amount of
assistance from them at a very reasonable cost. So I’ve not been able to look for where
that money should come from, but I’ll leave that at your discretions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other.. .you know, Members, if you guys want to look at certain things
like this for consensus, then I’m gonna say you’re going to need to authorize and trust
your Chair to come up with a funding proposal. Okay.
-

93

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And if you don’t then I’m going to say everyone of this, you better provide
then the funding proposal. Okay. So that’s what it’s going to come down. You guys
want to move some of these things forward, I’m open but I’m going to tell you then, as
far as tonight and tomorrow morning when we wrap up, you~re going to need to
consider authorizing your Chair to come up with a funding proposal and allow me to
work it through. And I know you guys want to shoot it down, that’s fine, come up with
your own funding proposal. So that’s where we are. You know if you guys want to put
this kind of money back but with no recommendations on how to fund and you expect
your Chair to come up with it, then you have to authorize me and know that you~re
going to need to put a level of trust in me to come up with what I feel is the best
balanced approach to providing the resources to your decisions.
Okay.
Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, based upon your wealth of knowledge and depth
of your Committee who have been working on weekends and grinding it out for us, I
totally trust that you know. And I know that you are so frugal you will make the best
decision for the citizens of Maui County, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
that.

Well, people have complained I’m too tight.

Okay.

So you gotta know

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: That’s good. So for myself personally I would defer to you
because truly from the time I realized I was supposed to have, you know, if I want to
add something I have to find out where to take it from, I am not, really truly not
enough knowledge at this point being on the job for three months or some, you know,
and I can’t speak for my colleagues ‘cause I know, you know, there’s a lot of senior
Members here. But for myself I value the input that you and your Committee
Members can give towards finding solutions for this ‘cause it’s too important. So
that’s my comment to you, and if you could help me with, you know, my adds, would
truly appreciate it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I was waiting for that hook at the end.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you for those comments. Okay. So with Workline, anything
else, Members? You guys, if you guys want to give consensus, that’s what I’m going to
tell you with no funding solution. That’s the only way we’re going to move forward.
But if you guys want to return and prevent.., present your funding proposal, the Chair
is open to that too.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I trust leaving the funding source up to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, there’s eight Members, yeah, on the floor.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Consensus on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, you need...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just for clarification, you had mentioned earlier that you were going to
make a proposal on the various pots.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m comfortable with you making these or adding these adjustments to
your proposal as far as funding and the distribution of the various economic and
cultural funding sources.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, there’s other Members so, you know, if you folks have a
concern, please state it because...
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I am in agreement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I trust your Staff and the expertise that comes from...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have new Members too, so, you know, Mr. Atay hasn’t had the years
with me so he’s not sure. Ms. King is brand new so she’s not sure how I operate.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The other Members with years with me know, and that’s why last year the
Committee was comfortable enough to allow me to come up with the funding proposal.
Okay. But last year we had all senior Members. This year’s a little different. And so
again, it depends what the, all the Members want yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: In particular on this item, 38, Page 38

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --line item 944

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --grant to the Maui Community Correctional Center for the
Workline Program. You know initially it was set at 175, recommended to take it totally
out. I know the attempt was to kind of look at programs that questioning should the
State government being paying for this for, instead of County funds. But having time
to reflect on this, you know, you look at who we’re helping. You know we’re helping
our inmates, these are residents of our County, giving them that next step of
reintegrating back into our community. On the flipside, doing great things for our
needy causes of our community all over, you know, they help set up for the County
Fair, they help.. .you know, so they play big roles in helping other community
organizations that it is our kuleana from the County. And so for me, I would like to
see the 175,000 for the Workline Program to be restored. I want to say leave it up to
your plan, but at the same time I say as far as us, the only we can collect money and
set our Budget is through setting the real property tax collections, rates and fees, and
fines. So whichever way we’re going to find it, I’d like to keep this program in and help
these guys through.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So, Mr. Atay, that’s why if there’s a consensus for this then I’m
going to ask you, allow me to prepare the funding proposal. Okay. It’s going to be a
proposal
--

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --which this Committee is still going to have to discuss and adopt. Okay.
So what I’m going to present is not.. .is what of course I think is best, but my decision
alone doesn’t stand. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Committee’s decision will stand which means all of you will have to
decide and the majority will make the call on whether or not a proposal will stand or
not stand. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I would be supportive of putting this back to the
amount that was authorized last year at 117 or something closer to that. I don’t feel
compelled to provide the State the additional $35,000 or so that they were asking for
to hire a, I believe a bookkeeper for this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct, yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

.

.

.

(inaudible)...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Does that, that 35,000 is part of the 175 so it was at 140 before?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was that they were asking for an increase to cover
additional supervisory staff and additional lunches and...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I know there was a clerk.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And a clerk.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: There was a clerk, I know that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, that’s what they’re asking for.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We already paid for the equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, I just wanted to comment because you, I know you, you
know, it’s my first year and... but I am happy to look at the proposal, and I fully
understand that any proposal that is put out here has to be voted on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So I’m comfortable with you looking for the funding for this
amount. And I do think and I think it was brought up by Mr. White that this results
in, this equates to $5-an-hour labor for the County. So from the business aspect
that’s a pretty good deal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah. Yeah. Numbers-wise it’s a good thing. Yes, Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Chair, so reading the details that the Department
submitted, just so.. .it talks about the 175 from the 117 of last year, and it says
expansion of Maui Community Correctional Center requesting 50 percent increase to
offset cost of food and hiring of guards, but there’s no mention of a clerical person for
the Workline Program. So that was the detail that was submitted to us in writing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I think some of it was also in testimony. But I would say the 117
should be the right number for us to consider for consensus. Yeah. They gotta take
care of their own payroll. Okay. Those people are not under our contracts either.
-
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Okay. That’s a State public safety salary issue. Okay. Not this County’s issue. We’re
got our own issues going to pay for our own employees. Okay. If they want our
money, this is what we’re going to provide, and they are responsible to fulfill whatever
grant requirements it takes to get the money. They don’t want our money, they don’t
have to apply for it. Okay. So we have consensus on 117?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 117 is in.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, thank you, Members. Quickly, we did have a couple of
responses regarding Oahu’s Economic Development Board. They charge a 7 percent
overhead. And then for Mr. Atay regarding Miconia containment, the goal is to contain
4,500 acres of lands in East Maui. Geographically, very little of the land is County
property. MISC uses leveraged funds for most of their work, but this project is
primarily for Department of Water Supply. And of course while the crews are out
there working specifically for Miconia, if they find other invasive plants, they will do
appropriate action of either removal or destruction.
Okay.
So we thank the
Department for the response. Okay. Next we’re under Waiehu Golf Course, Page 39.
We had a request to return, Ms. King.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, I don’t know why my initials are on there because I didn’t
remember being...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, if you’re not then I apologize. No, that must have been my notes. I
apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, I mean I support the golf course.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, this is my error.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No.. .but I’m not sure on the one...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay, I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: That’s okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My error, my error.
going to move next then.

Not a problem, my error. Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I had in my notes the, I did speak of the equipment on line
980 and was, I think it was the mowers, the lawnmowers. .1 mean the large rough
mower
.

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --as well as a Toro Reelmaster Fairway Mower, was asking for
an additional, what is it, 85,000. Because the, this initial 100,000 would cover the
large rough mower.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I know and I believe the Department did send back a response
regarding their review of lease versus purchase for those big equipments, and so they
did their analysis and came up why certain things are being requested for lease versus
outright purchase. Okay. I know we made the...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, there was a request, they were going to check on lease
versus purchase.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We got the answer and I’m satisfied with the Department’s response
on how they make the determination between lease and purchase. It makes me happy
they have a process in place to make that review. Okay. So you have a consideration,
Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
Oh yes, I was requesting for... the large rough mower
according to the, this information given to me by the Parks Director is roughly around
84,883 and then the fairway mower it looks like it’s 85,075. So whatever those totals
would be, would be in addition to the.. .not addition, would be 100,000 plus, I don’t
know, 85,000 or 83,075, something like that. I’m not good with numbers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you need 85,000 more?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This is Golf Fund so either there’ll be a General Fund transfer, or
we’re going to need to look at rates and fees under golf course. Members, other
discussions on Mr. Guzman’s proposal? Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I have one more, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: On the... I believe we had discussion on the starter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, hold on, on the.. .we’re still on the 85.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, sorry. I apologize.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, you’ve heard Mr. Guzman’s

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proposal for the equipment, 85,000 more

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Golf Fund.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, are we also giving consensus on how to fund it? I heard
you say something about increasing fees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is under the Golf Fund so, you know, the Golf Fund is going to take
the hit yeah, and we’re going to
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --need to review that. But that’s the decision by the Committee then, you
know, we’ll.., going to need to find a way and make adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Guzman, anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, on... I know we had discussion on line 977 about the
starter that had recently retired.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I did speak to the Director and I proposed possibly could they
get by with a part-timer and therefore not have to expend for fringe. And according to
the Director, they could get by with a part-timer. So if we could at the bare minimum,
you know, at least put in a part-timer, ‘cause there’s only three starters and you know
how the golf course runs, Chair. They’re constantly there until late in the afternoon or
early evenings and then they work on the holidays, and there’s only three of them so
I’m not sure how they’re going to manage the
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --work schedule but at least give them some type of coverage.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The reconsideration is to put back half a position under 977,
Operations Clerk. Other discussion, Members? Again, this is going to have to be paid
from the Golf Fund. Questions? Is there consensus on this?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Half of the 43...
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anything else, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Nothing further. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We are going to move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just had a question ‘cause I was talking to some people,
some other golf courses, management people, and I know there has been some
discussion with Administration and that’s why this whole Mayor’s proposal was the
way it was. And what happens or what if there becomes some really great opportunity
that, you know, satisfies everybody’s needs in the golf world for this course comes
along within this F’Y, this type of... what would happen to this? Or is that a decision
that only... is that a decision that has to be in conjunction with Administration and
this body? Or how would that type of situation, what would happen with that
situation? If, I don’t know, if there’s an answer then great, if not, that’s just a
thought.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, the Mayor... the Administration is always able to propose anything
yeah, Council is the disposition branch of government. Yeah. So Administration
proposes then we dispose of the item by our, whatever action Council takes. So yeah,
if they come in, they can ask us to consider and then we would do that. If we want to
move forward then we’re going to have to come up with a transition plan. If we want
to move away from a total County program to a third-party program, yeah, it’s going to
take time and considerations of the proposal. But at this point, we’ve made the call to
keep the course open, do the appropriate adjustments, see how they perform in the
upcoming year, and then we’ll reassess again where the course is. And again, that’s
the advantage of this, we will have annual reviews of every program. So by next year
we’ll be back and if there’s a proposal, we can consider it, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay, anything else under golf course? Okay, under.. .let’s move to
Department of Planning. Page 41 at the top, Administration and Planning Program. I
have, Ms. King, you had a request here.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING:
That is me.
So, Chair, when... in speaking with Planning
Department, the line I’m concerned with is 1013.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And we had met with, Mr. White and I had met with the Planning
Department about potential professional services to help streamline the community
engagement part of the community plan review so that we can get through them much
faster than the 2’/2 years that we’re currently doing it. When I.. .and the amount that’s
in here in the Budget is 258,000. So in speaking with the Department I asked them
what the minimum was that could still fund that and they said 200,000. So my
proposal is to drop that negative number to 58,000 so that would leave 200,000 in
that professional services. And then I would request that you add that to your
funding. But I think that’s, that’ll help us push the process through so we could
actually, you know, my goal is to do the West Maui and South Maui one right after the
other as far as the community engagement and get through that much faster so the,
we’re not waiting three years to get to the South Maui community and then three more
years to get to the next community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard Ms. King’s proposal to you, Members.
comments? Mr. White?

Any other

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. What was the net adjustment?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would be a reduction of 58,000 so the balance would be 200,000. Is that
correct, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: The balance in the account would be 200,000 so the net is about
90,000, a little.., maybe 90,500 of a difference.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so the reduction would be 90,500?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, the reduction is 58,000. Because what’s in there right now in
the Budget is 258.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I’m just looking on Page 41.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right. So change that

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It reflects 148.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --148,500 to 58 so the net difference is

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh I see. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --9.. .yeah, a little under 9,000.. .90,000. Is that...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other comments on Ms. King’s proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So basically we’re adding 90,000 back in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any questions or other comments? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So I see here.. .that my understanding is this is to provide
the funding so we can help to administer especially our community pians. And if that
is the case, are we also utilizing the professional services for our community plans
too?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So there are other services that the Planning Department uses,
and I asked them if they could still fit the professional services that Mr. White and I
talked to them about them. And I thought was that if we utilize a group like Focus
Maui Nui to do the community engagement part, that we could take that 18-month
stretch of time that we allow for community engagement and shrink it down to
somewhere between 3 and 6 months and we can get through the community plans
much faster. The idea... the thought was it’s much more relevant when it’s a short
period of time, because when you stretch it out over a year and a half, oftentimes that
becomes 2 years and then from the time you start to the time you finish, things have
changed in the community, different people are involved. And so it, you can get to
relevancy quicker, you can get to the next phase of it which is the CPAC quicker.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So, you know, I was just trying to move things along, because
people are really impatient with this plan, this process.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Councilmember. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I have a question, by looking at the detail and I think
that Director Chouteau came and talked to us and about the also to do scanning of
files and to reduce their filing, it was also part of this in here. And then I wonder
about that as well as the impact of that. And to... and also if you’re thinking of using
MEDB. .is that what you’re thinking of using?
.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, it would go out to RFP, so, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, RFP

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
this part of this?

--so that would be like an additional charge to this or is

COUNCILMEMBER KING: No. It would just be a process we go through to find the best
agency to do that, that portion of it. But, you know
--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Just an idea then.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --I use--yeah--I use Maui, Focus Maui Nui as an example,
because they actually participated in the GPAC for the General Plan and did that
portion of it.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else? Okay, is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Would it be here that we would add Ms. Cochran’s program?
CHAIR HOKAMA: For which one?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
The 80,000, Host Compliance, but it wouldn’t be called Host
Compliance. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, this is the area.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So Chair had a recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --do we have consensus on that

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I thought the Chair was gonna...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --since you’ve offered to find the funding for it?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, I thought the Chair was gonna find funding.
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I thought Chair was going to recommend.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This would be this area. Mr. Ueoka?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Oh, so you only gotta find 22 now. Oh, 2 1,5.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any comments? No? I’m sorry.
MR. UEOKA: Chair, yeah, I believe if you wanted to make a compliance thing under
Planning, this is where it would be. It probably should be an investigative-type
program versus the actual enforcement type. The actual enforcement probably should
be under the Planning Department. I’m not sure if you guys are talking third party or
just hiring another employee for the County. So if it’s
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
MR. UEOKA: --third party then it should probably be limited to investigations, ‘cause the
actual enforcement should be done by the Planning Director. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I’m pretty sure that’s

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh yeah. I think that’s what...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --Ms. Cochran’s intent is

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --although this... that’s why I’m saying we shouldn’t call it by its name
which is Host Compliance, we need to... so if you can help us with wording. Because
my understanding is that the intent is to have this program as a tool for our
enforcement folks in Zoning Enforcement. They would be providing information from
computer programs that will allow the enforcement people to proceed much more
quickly with doing their job.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: I think I get the intent. I can work with Staff on language that hopefully can
further that intent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So it would be under professional services
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --right, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So, Chair?
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
80,000 onto that?

That would be an increase of 22,000 for that line if we added

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Ill take care of that when it’s the next round.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But yeah, this is where we’d look at it.
page, 1021, Ms. Crivello, Sea Grant.

Okay. Next one on this

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I would have to revisit this for, to search for the funding of
the 15,000. I have not done my homework on all of my funding. But I value the
position, especially if we’re talking about our seafloor coral reef erosion, and much of
the work that our reefs are under such stress. And even the water quality throughout
our Maui island is, needs to be addressed further as to the cause. I believe that it
would be important for us, and if you can find the fund, I’d appreciate it, but if not, I’ll
continue to look when we reach the second round. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, it depends where we are after we finish this round. Ill give some
comment and ask for some potential authorization. So thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
Just wanted to support Member Crivello’s support of this
position, and I think it would play into the Molokai Community Plan as well because
climate change is a key issue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
Engineer V.

Okay, Members, Page 43, line 1082, Mr. White, Civil

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If you could share with us your thoughts on eliminating this position.
My recollection was it was something that was needed for M54.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I believe that... I used PS-i, BF- 1 regarding the status of vacancies
and everything. And so I believe this one was one of those that I believe had no
request to fill, and then of course it’s always interesting yeah, once I say that, all of a
sudden it’s in the process to be filled. So you heard the Department say now we plan
to fill it. So yeah, so that’s how we are here, Members. You know I assumed the
Personnel is talking to the departments and that’s why they put those comments on
the side of each vacancy. What’s in process, what is internal, what they~re going to
reallocate, what they’re making adjustments, and then there’s no request to fill line.
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It’s on a lot of lines on that report so I used that and saying the Department is giving
me a signal.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Well, I’ll go along with your

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: So that’s how...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --recommendation, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so are you saying that when it,
when they have that no request to fill, also funding is not there anymore? Or how...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, and again, depends yeah. Police and Fire, they’ve been upfront with
the so-called 9,000 Series, we have the positions, we fund it, they don’t intend to fill it
so they use that as part of their premium pay cash pot to take care of some of their
overtime requirements. And so you need to understand that, because they also ask
for premium pay besides the positions that we fund that is going to stay vacant for
similar uses. So again, for me, Members, if it’s not funded, it’s something critical,
Council can always reestablish positions, okay. We can always reestablish positions
when it’s justified. We can delete positions when we feel it’s justified. We can...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And so

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: So...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I guess with that being said though, I, because this has
every bearing on the MS4 Program that has been now mandated down.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, yeah, yeah. So no, so yeah, again

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So.. .yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --my thing, Ms. Cochran, is now we hear that this is for MS4.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
So yeah.
But that’s why it doesn’t make sense.
Where is the
coordination? The one report says no request to fill, then you have the Department
say critical for MS4. Where are we missing? ‘Cause we seem to be flying by each
other in the night because we’re not going to.. .it doesn’t match up. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. If I recall correctly, last year we put in.. .we
increased professional services by a fairly significant amount because of the
complexity of M54.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We did.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And we needed consultants to help us wade through the various
regulations. And so I having... I mean since we’ve done that, I’m assuming that that
number is pretty much still in there.
I think I’m comfortable with your
recommendation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. And so this line where it has the four Xs, is that
because there’s no designated number? ‘Cause a lot of times we see a particular
position actually has those numbers in there
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. ‘Cause

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but this one does not

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --it’s for...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so it’s new?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And so they have existing positions there not filled?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That we gave them last year.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Chair.

Right.

Sitting unfilled and funded.

Okay.

Thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comments, Members?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So.. .consensus. I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Well, are you going to...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have consensus on this, 3,783,194. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So just to clarify, I think I remember Director coming in
and saying... I don’t have the history that Mike White or Chair and yourself has on past
history, but I remember that the Director came in and said like Member Cochran that
this is for the M24 requirements that this engineer and they were in the process of
hiring.
-
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: MS4.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: MS4. What did I say? Sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: M2.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, MS4.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Sorry, that’s me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I mean I’m, only my concern and I hear you and I’m
comfortable. As long as I know that our MS4 Program was going to have oversight, it’s
going to have somebody rolling it out and implementing it, because yes, unfortunate,
it’s an unfunded mandate down to us and if we don’t fulfill it, we could be in a world of
hurt with perhaps consent decrees which completely want to make sure we don’t get
into that predicament. And so that’s all my concern is. And if, you know, you feel
that there’s plenty of positions to go around, fulfill that then awesome and all good
with that. And also if it comes to a point where they do not, they can always come
back to this body for that amendment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And as we have done in the past, if truly we have misread the
signals and their comments, we have occasionally, not too often but occasionally we’ve
made last-minute adjustments during first reading if need be.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So again, there’s a committee, then there’s first reading for
last-minute adjustments more than likely because of the State Leg, and then final
reading on the second and final. So there’s still additional reviews and approvals that
are required before this Budget is going to pass. And under the professional services,
one of the things that I looked at was the amount of money we gave them. They have
a current encumbrance, 400,544 under professional services of the 350 we gave them,
because they already encumbered the previous years of another 297,000. So for me,
under this component, professional services, I think they’re in, well funded.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding the engineer, again, they can come back to us if need be but I
think we’ll let the Director use his management skills as best as possible and see how
he can perform within the authorization that we will, this Committee will recommend.
Again, Members, I, you know, I wish we were Santa Claus, I wish we was that great
old grandfather/grandmother but we are not, okay. We don’t.. .we cannot give every
kid a present in the world.
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So consensus then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus, 371,194?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Thank you.
We’re moving that forward.
Okay, we are under
Transportation.
Page 47,
Members.
Human
Services Transportation
Program General Fund. Ms. Crivello?
-

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I would like to come back to this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, happy to. Public Transit Program

-

Highway Fund, Ms. Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. So this was in reference to the
route expansions in particular for the South Maui, West Maui ioops routes. There’s
huge, huge ridership. I appreciate Mr. White had brought out that form that showed
the lack of ridership I guess so to speak up in the Kula District and what have you.
But in West Maui and I can’t speak directly with south but because I guess it was
explained about the looping system that we do have, I would assume that both ends of
our island are growing, expanding and more utilization. So I would surely like to keep
the suggested expansion routes in those particular areas. I gotta pick my battles of
sorts I guess so I’m not.., for Waiehu side, I mean I completely agree, if we have all the
money in the world great, but I was mainly focusing for that West-South Maui loops to
for sure be expanded because of the, you know, the stretch and the utilization by the
people that do use our bus services. And thereby offsetting the cars getting off the
road which already is a lot, so I, that’s my reasoning. And monies were going to be
just RPT...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, this is Highway Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Is there... do they get transfer, interfund transfers?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that’s strictly off of gas tax?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Gas, weight, registration fees, relicensing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And... okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, one second.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So all right, how would I find out where the details are on
how they~re breaking down this 1 1...this 10... 11.799 mil?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We have it in the... do we have it in the Details?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it’s in the detail?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, can I have a revisit and

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --maybe talk it over

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --with the Department to see maybe how, if there’s a way to
juggle something around in order to make this happen. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I just... I had a question about that, because it looks like, it
says expansion and it looks like only those two routes were deleted so I was going to
ask the same thing. Like what does that mean, what is left in there as far as
expansion?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nothing.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Nothing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I cut all expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
expansion?

Okay.

Those were the only two routes that were planned for

CHAIR HOKAMA:
There was I believe a part of south, a part of west, and part of
Wailuku/Waiehu or Waihee.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, ‘cause it just shows two expansions cut, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, anything that was new, I chose to... ‘cause for me it wasn’t fair to just
say at this time knowing the fund, yes to one and no to the other. They only gave us
for the Kula...
-111-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
Chair, may I add? Just I recall I believe the
Department indicated it was an all or nothing on the 3 connecting looping routes in
South Maui. Is that correct? And they broke it down, 66,000, 62,000, and 67,000,
and 47,000.. .46,400. Yeah, I just would put my pitch in for Waihee because of the
fact that they don’t even have a route and South Maui already has routes. And these
are just interconnecting loops within. So if there’s a way that we can somehow
compromise or figure out a way to expand to Waihee, that would be good. So I’ll just
wait until we revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’ll return to this yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because

--

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --what you see on Attachment A all the way on the right, we cannot keep
this level of subsidy. Okay. My thing in previous discussions with the Department
through this Committee and Council has been that the County should look at a target
of only 50 percent subsidy for these routes. Mass transit has a difficulty paying for
itself, I understand that, but I thought 50 percent was a fair amount for the subsidy,
and the rest shoUld be borne by the users and through our other fundraising whether
it be advertising or whatnot. But, you know, when you look at 83 percent subsidy,
85 percent subsidy, 96 percent subsidy, that tells me couple things, the Department is
late in their updated requirements of surveys, passenger or user satisfactions. What
is the problem with the route? Because obviously with 96 percent subsidy, people not
riding it for whatever reason. Either it’s at the wrong street, the wrong road, wrong
time, I don’t know, but we cannot afford that kind of routes. And, you know, my thing
to the Department is you want to recommend expansion, that’s fine, bring us your
numbers, we did the survey, this is what shows, this is what our expectations is on
ridership, revenue. This is the level of the potential subsidy and we’ll make the call.
But to come here and ask us to expand and give us nothing, no anticipated ridership
number, no anticipated revenue, no changes in rates, then my question is what are
you doing in the Department?
You’re not providing this Committee and this
membership the information we need to make a smart decision. And looking at this
subsidy numbers, they need to do a hell of a lot more to find out why people aren’t
riding the bus service we currently provide. So that’s part of my rationale, Members. I
mean we’re not a business per se but we cannot afford only losses. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I agree with you wholeheartedly. My reason for
supporting your recommendation on this area is based on what I was given as the
Kula numbers and the fact that I don’t think the Department at the time or now gave
us any.. .well, made any effort to really establish how many people really would take
the bus and at what times of day, to craft something that would, you know, allow us to
provide a service with a minimum of loss. And to, you know, to find out after asking
for the numbers, that we’re providing a 96 percent subsidy on a line that has been
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going for 4 years, that means that, you know, we’ve given up somewhere in the
neighborhood of 1.5 to 1.8 million in highway funds that could have been used for
paving. And one of my concerns with the bus service has always been that it’s been,
you know, for years has been eating into our funding for paving and so forth. And in
your, in the responses that we got from the community, I believe roads or highways
were, was listed as the number two priority. And we all know, I mean I’ve got lots of
potholes on the road I drive. I’ll never ask for funding because I don’t want to be
blamed for, you know, for paving a road to my place.
But the reality is the
Department of Public Works does a good job of identifying what projects need to go
and which ones need to go first. And I would, you know, as far as I’m concerned, I
would rather see this added to road projects than sending buses out to, you know, in
Kula’s case 1.2 passengers per trip. And at this point we don’t have any estimates on
what the, these new routes will garner in the way of revenues, we just know what the
expense is. And we will have to provide additional paratransit as well, so I think this
is a real challenging decision to make when we have nothing to base it on. The other
reason I don’t support it is that the Department’s plan shows I believe Kihei was the
first area in which there was going to be added routes in 2019, and then 2020 I believe
routes were going to be added in Central and then Waiehu, and then Baldwin Avenue.
So I think we need to take a step back, take a breath, and let the Department check
with other transportation entities and see how they go about establishing utilization of
the routes so that we have a, we have something more concrete to work with. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Other comments? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And yeah, thank you for reminding me
about the rates and there was no submittal into trying to, you know, toss in their fair
share or efforts in this move. Having talked to that Department previously, they said
that we probably will have this happen, just they can’t promise when obviously
because Federal monies will be coming, can be.. .well, that’s another who knows, but
they feel quite confident. But it’s anywhere between now and three years. So when
and how much and all that stuff is definitely if factors. But at this time I know it can
be an item that could be discussed during the MPO, you know, discussions. So I’m
okay at this time. I mean we can go ahead and support your recommendations,
because I really do not know how to find this type of money. I agree, total additional
cost for expansion will be $800,000, 300,000 for the West-South Maui loops and then
the new addition, 500,000 for Waihee area. So that’s close to a million bucks right
there and I have no idea where that will come from. So at this time I think we... I can
say for myself shown best efforts to try and address it. But I really am stumped as to
how to cough up this kind of money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else? Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, in the discussion and the example provided by
Member White regarding the Kula Villager route. I just want to say that this is
staggering information to be presented. I did talk to some of the officers for the Kula
Community Association, and I don’t know if the, if this body will be making any kind
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of decisions regarding this route, but if you do, as I asked the Department, if we could
have some time to communicate with the community. I will also say that the
community association was surprised at these numbers, and if this has been going on
for four years then maybe in the future the Transportation Department can try to
communicate with the community as long as we go along so that we don’t have kind of
a bombshell like this at this juncture. And that, you know, everybody can be part of
the decision in terms of marketing and overall communication as well as ridership
information. So I just wanted to make that statement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. You know, Members, there is a benefit for the routes
when we implement the right time with the right money. I’m asking you at least this
year to defer the expansions. I would like the subject matter committee to really work
on this during the off-Budget Session period and really get the Department to go and
survey the expansion communities. You know get the information from Waiehu. Ask
the people what times work best for you? Maybe for them it’s early morning and pau
hana because that’s when those, that those roads are congested to the max. And then
maybe the schedule makes sense. And then for us, you know, we should get a sense
of a pro forma at least with anticipated ridership, anticipated revenues. And then
putting in the route is not your Chair’s concern, it’s how to make the route continue
the following year, the following year. How are we going to do the bus replacements
eventually ‘cause that’s high-ticket items as you all know, we need PTA grants and
other support. So for me it’s how do we... if we expand, it should be that we can
sustain it. And if it doesn’t, we gotta make the adjustments and make the smart
decision. You know it’s your Chair experience, unfortunately for many of us or all of
us, most of the hard decisions that will be the right decision will not be a popular
decision. Okay. But that’s why you were elected to be in these chairs, to make the
right decision, not the popular decision. And that’s part of the burden that we all
share together as the Councilors. So that’s how I looked at this, Members. And, you
know, again, I’m just one person, I’m just your Chair that gives you my
recommendations. It’s going to take the Committee to make the call. So on this one
you’d like to revisit?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, folks. Okay, we can revisit unless you guys...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, consensus. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
you...

No, consensus.

I mean for me anyway because I think as

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, I want to ask Mr. Atay because Mr. Atay has, you know
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --some stake in this so I want to ask if Mr. Atay has something he wants
to share.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Just as you say, Chair, you’re just one person, I’m just one
person. I put it out there that, you know, my constituents, I know a lot of them
walk
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --those miles and two miles to go get a bus

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --at Waiehu just so that they can get to work. We talked about
the possibility of some of the golfers, if the golf course is so, kept open, that would
they use the bus if a bus service went all the way out to the golf course thus
eliminating traffic on the road? So, you know, but I also understand the situation of
timing. And my input for that was primarily on the statement from the Director of
Transportation saying that there’s potential money lapsing. My thought of the funding
and the future funding was with the weight tax, you know, whether it be half a cent.
In fact, if we really look across the board and just say one penny should offset a big
chunk of the operations of the entire bus service, you know so... and putting money
back into the Highway Fund. So that was one of my strategies was to look at
increasing the rates and fees of the weight tax on registration one penny.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. You know...
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: But at the same time, but like said if I’m one person and the
consensus of my Members is saying consensus to wait till the next Budget year, it
gives us time now to plan, meet with the Department, and organize and get the
surveys and so on. However, before that I will also like to say, share that, you know,
many years ago, I was involved with youth transportation. There was no bus service
on Maui. You know we were involved in trying to get children from the mountain
down to the ocean, and children from the ocean, give them that chance for go mauka.
And so for many years the bus service, there was a bus that ran from Pukalani-Kula,
cut across Makawao, went through Makawao Avenue down Kokomo Road, cut across
to Haiku Community Center, come through Maliko, go up Skill Village in Paia, go back
down. That was the loop, yeah, it went all the way down to Paia Youth Center and
then headed into Kahului. Many, many months we called those runs ghost runs,
yeah, until the kids understood the necessity to use the bus route. The bus routes
were determined from one youth center to the other youth center. And then the kids,
you know, we shared with them, because eh, you like get to the beach, you gotta use
the bus. If there is no number then the County going cancel it. So here we are, you
know, several years later looking at the numbers and looking at the ghost ridership of
the bus running. Yeah. So the plea gotta go out to the community and say if you
want this route to exist, you need to use it. Look today, I mean we’ve expanded the
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bus route. It wasn’t that long ago we had no bus route. So I agree, you know, maybe
timing is not there, but I’m willing to abide with the consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate your comments, Mr. Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I’m wondering if we shouldn’t ask the Department to give us a
number that they feel would be adequate to provide a survey, an opportunity to do
surveys in the areas that we’re talking about now, and to see if they can come up with
a more solid recommendation next time around. They may have enough in their
budget but I don’t know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is what I’m going to ask the Committee, because I’m, you know, I
understand where Mr. Atay is coming from. I mean for Mr. Carroll, Ms. Crivello, and I,
we get it ‘cause on Lanai, on Molokai, I mean it’s either yes or nothing, right. We have
something or we don’t have anything, so I get what Mr. Atay. I would ask at this time
we consensus the 10,810,015 but we, we’ll contact the Department. Two things, I
want to know how much it’s going to cost for a survey as well as if and also to see
what would be the price to run a more reduced program that we maybe can just run a,
for a trial or a temporary shuttle program. Instead of a bus route, you just do a
shuttle from a pickup point and get them to the key bus pickup point where we’re not
going to use the buses, we’re going to use maybe your big 15-passenger van. I mean I
don’t know but, you know, I understand what Mr. Atay is saying. And for me, I rather
not... I mean we see our youth walking the roads. Okay. I get problems with Waiale
Road and whatnot with our youth and whatnot. So I’m open to that and I’ll ask
Department for comments, and then I will be willing to reopen this one consensus
area. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Hearing Mr. Atay’s thought in regards to
adjusting fees, is that a potential to make happen? ‘Cause I didn’t realize there was
a
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a.. .yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --answer to a funding...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a public hearing on the rates including highway components like
weight tax and whatnot. So we’ll have that hearing May 12th. So people can chime in
on that, but that’s one area that can be adjusted to impact
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the Highway Fund. And this is
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I think...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --what we’ll... and this is funded through highways.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. So I think with that in mind then it is
worth keeping it open like you said in order to see if there’s any kind of adjustments
that can be made. ‘Cause I understand the, yeah, there’s a whole stretch out to that
area that has zero, and I would bring my girlfriend home over there because she had
no say.. .with bags of groceries and school books and everything, so. And then in
Lahaina, I have the issue of over-ridership when it comes, when the ship comes into
port, when added tourism
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: The visitors, yes, yes...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --comes into the town, and you have your regulars who
utilize it, professional people trying to get to and from work and now they can’t get on
that bus. So I understand currently Department decided to do some type of like pass,
a monthly pass you get on the bus first thing. Like
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --kamaainas go first type of thing ‘cause it’s hard to... a
person has to get to work, they live here. So they~re trying to address things without
having to, you know, if they don’t get this funding type of effort. But so I’d like to keep
this open. But if you want to.. .yeah, and so if that’s...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s why I made a caveat.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, okay, very good. I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The caveat is that, you know, if things.. .weM return and see if we can
massage it a little.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And, Chair, another question just to clarify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
So that hearing is... so we will still be within the
first... second reading of this entire Budget document then? When is the final-final
then? When... ‘cause I thought that date seemed after the fact but I guess not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, it’s going to need to be before first reading of the Budget. What is
the date for us on that one?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Twelve.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I believe the public hearing is on May 12th, first reading is on
May 19th.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. That makes sense then. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, thank you. So, Mr. Atay, if you have no objections, we’d like
to give this consensus with the caveat.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay, this is consensus again with the Chair’s caveat that if
we can work out something, we’ll, gonna reopen this one area. Okay, department
of.. .you know what, we’re gonna take a short break. You guys deserve a break. But
before we take a break I have good news.
Ms. Wendy Hee, Sandwich Isle
Communications, that she and her company made contact with the County IT
Department, and they are, have obtained the technical specs needed to consider the
fiber requirements for the Watehu Golf Course. And the course, gonna be reported
separately to the course so that Parks and Rec with the course can then choose the
type of service they feel is appropriate for their needs and then report to us. So we
want to thank Ms. Hee and Sandwich Isle Communications for being open to the
County’s request, and we thank them for moving on this quicker than not. So thank
you to Ms. Hee and Sandwich Isle Communications. Okay, Members, your Chair
needs a break. Well come back at 5:05.
.(gavel)...
..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

4:56 p.m.
5:09 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).
Okay, we are in order. May I direct you please to
Page 40.. .wait wrong, Page 49. Auwahi Forest Restoration, Ms. Sugimura.
.

.

.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair. Auwahi Forest Restoration, I’d like to
know if we could increase this to a total of 50,000 and proviso it so that the remaining
balance which is 13,000 to come out of water/electricity under B Account.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Out of what?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Water Department ‘cause they’re in Water and.. .well, in the
B Account, Water.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is a... let’s see, this is a Water grant.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you could use Water monies. Okay. That’s your proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: That’s my proposal.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other discussions? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, Chair, this is part of the grant program with all these other
grants that are listed here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I just, I understand the desire to fund something that
somebody requests, but I have a real problem with going through and changing these
amounts when they were granted, especially higher than what was asked for. ‘Cause I
believe they said that what was asked for in the grant was 39,000. But I think if we
start going in as individual Councilmembers and changing the amounts on these
grants, we’re really getting into politicizing these, this particular, these line items in
here. So I have some reservations about making that move.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I can understand where Councilmember Yuki Lei is coming
from; however, you know, we have to look at the grant application before we make a
determination to increase or decrease, because that’s a, that is a grants program. And
I agree with Councilmember King, if they need more, then their application should be
resubmitted for an increase at the appropriate time with their application.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, Chair. And so yeah, I concur with Ms. King and
Ms. Crivello at this point. I do know... I mean everybody obviously if you’re going to
give extra, they~re going to take it. But I know this particular entity and they do
awesome work and they~re not as huge... again, I think it was.. .was it OED? Yes.
Miss.. .no, sorry, it was Blumenstein
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Water Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Eva Blumenstein who mentioned from Water that reason
being the way they appropriate or where the main water sources are and the
protection of it versus this end of this island not as much. I mean they do awesome
work like I said, Auwahi is.. .works wonders with what they have. And so I think.., and
they are just fulfilling the grant request as asked. So again, if they would like more in
the upcoming then great and I’m sure we’ll.. .111 be here to support it for sure. So
--
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --at this time I’m comfortable with the amount.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Okay. Thirty seven thousand, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, moving forward.
Containment and Removal. Mr. White?

Page 50, top of Page 50,

1201, Miconia

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The reason I asked for a revisit was partially
because I believe we got to this one, Mr. Atay was unavailable and he had brought up
some concerns or wanted to revisit on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But after the discussions with Ms. Blumenstein yesterday, my concern
is that it’s been this amount for Miconia control for several years, and it sounded to
me like they’re fmding it in more places and I’m just concerned that the problem is
spreading faster than we’re able to catch up with it. So I’m, you know, I’m okay if
everyone wants to leave it as is, but I just feel that this is something that we may be
better off putting a little bit money towards, and I would recommend increasing it by
50,000 to 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I think the same rationale goes to this is a grant and it’s
through an application, ‘cause we do have concerns in addressing how grants are
handled. And I think again, if the applicant needs more then should apply.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: By the same token, I know that there are some people who are in the
world of asking for money that are very hesitant to ask for additional funding, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand all of your comments. I understand. Anyone else would
like to share.. .yes, Ms. Sugimura?

-
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, was this the category that you were going to add
on after the Department was talking to us, Miconia and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m just going to change the title, adjust the title because they said that
they do more than just Miconia out of this grant amount. So I’m just going to adjust
the grant title so that there’s consistency on their actual use.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay. And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: But the number, you know, if you notice, I did not touch any numbers
from Water Supply. This is all their numbers through their grant management
program. Okay, anyone else? Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I’m satisfied with that number right now
for several reasons. One is that they have only so many personnel available to them.
They do need to expand the program but that is going to have to be something... earlier
I spoke saying that they really needed two groups or even three groups to go over there
and to actually get a hold to where we can really be effective and get it down to where
it’s manageable. And I don’t know if eradication is ever possible, it’s something that’s
going to have to go on maybe forever. But that’s the only way we’re going to be able to
preserve what we have. But I don’t think that right now even if we gave them more
money they can do an awful lot. I think they need to sit down and come to us and say
eh, we need to have more resources over here to address the problem and tell us what
they need to do it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m good with that, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so

--

COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --consensus? Thank you very much. We’re moving forward. Okay, we’re
going to go to CIP, Page 52, 1269, Hana Landfill Makai Berm Waste Removal, the
$2 million. Mr. Carroll, you had any questions? Page 52, capital improvement.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Page 52, 5... 2.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Fifty-two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the one we had the discussion last night regarding the green waste
transportation requirements and control of invasive species on the hauling out of
green waste. That was all the concerns last night we had.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

..

.

(inaudible)...
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, use your...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: We had quite a conversation and after that and I’ve had, been
working with them. The only thing they~re worried about is that if it’s not enough
money and they reach to the point to where they have to... because you have to really
gear up for this. A lot of equipment comes inside, it’s contractual, and if they do have
to stop and remove the equipment and come back, it costs, could cost a lot more to
reset up again if they don’t finish. And that’s the main concern. If they have to do
that and put a in a new contract ‘cause they can’t complete this one or we can’t get the
money in time, as long as the Council is aware that if they get to that point, we’d have
to ask the Administration for a Budget amendment to try to fill in. And as long as
we’re aware that that might necessary, I have no objection. But I think the Council
needs to know that if it gets to that point to where they need this money that we’re
removing, that we’re going to have to address it in a timely manner or it could cost us
a lot more. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that.
response that DEM did send regarding
the green waste question and I think
recall the response correctly. Anything

Any other comments? I believe you have the
this specific project. So I know they answered
they made comment on the hauling also, if I
else? Mr. White?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you, Chair. In speaking to the Department, they said that
the green waste, I recall it being a fairly significant amount of the tonnage to be
removed. But they said it’s between 5 and 6 percent, so there’s not a lot of savings
from trucking. So I’m still staggered by the amount of this, the cost of this project and
it’s all cash. But again, it’s one of those lessons that we learn when we, you know,
when we don’t do things the right way. So I’m comfortable with the, going forward
with the 2 million, but the Department is concerned that they may not have enough
money to get through the next fiscal year, but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I would say, Members, let’s move this forward. The Department can
always send us comments.
Okay.
‘Cause they know that we’re aware of the
2.78 million available this year and what they’ve already encumbered on this project.
Okay. So there’s 2 million of this year’s appropriation that is still available. They’ve
encumbered the previous 2 years, a total of $780,000. So with this 2 million the pot
comes up to $4.78 million. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving forward. Staff, do you have a page? Oh, I see. Page 59,
line 1453, Members, Countywide Parks ADA improvements, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, Chair, I was hoping to increase that to at least 300,000.
The Department did indicate that they were substantially completed with the checklist
from the settlement. And I wanted to make sure that that really gets done and they
don’t run out of money to complete that. I know there was also additional discussion
about adding an additional 300,000. And I know why and specifically the first lawsuit
-
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was because we, you know, we had old previous years of parks but now we have new
parks online and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. So I definitely am concerned about making sure that
we complete what is required of us through the order, the court order and making
sure that to prevent future issues that may come up. So it’s up to the body to...
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Yeah, this is a General Fund request.
Mr. Guzman’s recommendation or proposal? Mr. White?

Any other comments on

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I have similar concerns. I think I recall them saying that they
needed $600,000 to complete the process on a timely basis. So I’m, if you want to
move this forward and ask them to provide us additional comments, I think that might
be appropriate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other comments? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I agree with my colleagues White and Guzman on trying to
make the appropriation so that we don’t come into another noncompliance situation. I
think it’s proactive instead of a reactive approach.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So Mr. Guzman threw out 50,000 more to make it 300. So is that
the number you guys looking at, Members? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, the 300,000 would be to secure what is required of us
from the previous I guess court order. And according to the Department, another
300,000 and in so many words to make sure that we don’t have that problem again,
another court order.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:

.

.

.(inaudible).

.

.

600.

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, so a total of 600, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And how you guys want to pay for this nice big chunk of money?
Ms. Sugimura?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would say TAT but I think it’s a little late.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I mean, Chair, we can go with the 300,000, but I really want
to stress that we need the additional...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. My problem is I’m not disagreeing the importance, I’m just saying,
you know, we have, I think we have limited resources, so. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I support Member Guzman in this, and if we could stay
ahead of the requirements of ADA and that would be good if we could afford to do the
600. But if not, I think that the Department could come back to us and we could talk
about it again. But at this point, it’s whatever the body decides and whatever we can
afford. But I agree with the increase.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I expect directors to manage their money. If this is a top priority
then let’s see some management skills and see how they can adjust their various ops,
adjust certain programs, look at their, you know, various ways of doing things.
Because when it’s really critical, they find the money. Okay. They’ll either tell us with
a Budget amendment shift from this category to this or do this ‘cause this is how we’re
going to pay for it. They need to do their part of the work. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY:
600,000.

Yeah, my notes have it that they needed 300,000 and up to

CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: And my question is, of the.. .there’s a consent decree to address
Americans with Disabilities Act.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So the work that they gotta do for the parks, is any of that work
could be categorized in CIP?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So they just need to tell us what can qualify for CIP, what not
going be, and then we can then determine where we can fund it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How we fund, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: And then if not then I would look, it would... the only other way we
can do it is either real property tax rates or fees or fines.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. Well, we do have.., and that is one of the things that I want to
thank you, we have positioned for final consideration the concession bill. That will
provide some revenue, but it’ll reduce some of the pressure on the General Fund and
allow us because that would be for parks only
--
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COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to use those revenues to take care Parks’ needs in the future. So...
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: And then some of these parks that they gotta make these ADA
compliances, is it in areas that we already have park assessment funds that could be
used to...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Possibly, possibly. And again, yeah, we only have three.. .four districts
that have park assessment monies.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah, any of those parks?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It could be considered if the ADA thing is for a new component. You know
it has to
--

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --meet the parameters of the use of the funds. So that is, it is a
consideration. Some may qualify, some may.. .would not qualify. But, you know,
again, I don’t have a problem putting whatever money we need to get all of our older
existing parks up to speed.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For the new parks

--

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I’m going to have an issue that it wasn’t already engineered and designed
to be up to compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right, right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Doesn’t make sense if we built one new park, why do we need to do a
compliance?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Fully agree. Should have been designed the right way
CHAIR HOKAMA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --from the beginning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Exactly, Mr. Atay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Ever since I’ve been on this Council,
there’s been money available to bring the parks up to ADA compliance. It has never
been done. We have a few... finally they did Wailuku after many, many, many years,
and a few others. Still yet, when we went to Haiku Community Center, my wife said
that the women’s bathroom was but the men’s wasn’t. I would like to see to where
maybe we have something that they will come back and inform us of the work done,
put into this to where they would come back and report to the Budget Committee or
the Council what work was done to bring up our parks to ADA requirements.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I think during the off... during Budget, that would be perfect, but I
think during the off-Budget Session, I would look at the subject matter committee-and I think that would be Mr. Guzman--to hold the Department up to, to report on
statuses.
So, Members, you have an April 12th response, PR-2, BF-1, from
Mr. Buenconsejo, regarding this very item. For Fiscal Year 2018, 300,000 to address
any items that may come up, that may come up as a result of the final review. And
the other 300,000 was to contract a consultant to develop a south evaluation
transition plan to bring its facilities into compliance. You know we’ve got decades of
experience in compliance, so we need to pay somebody 300,000 to tell us what we do?
You know I went through this with the Halliburton contract, you know, we don’t need
to pay people to tell us what we already know and what we already do. So I’m open to
the 300,000, Members. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. We’re moving 300,000 forward.
Upcountry Skate Park, Mr. White and Ms. Sugimura.

Sixty-one, top of the page,

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I, because this was cash, I thought that the original project amount of
$1.2 million was cash, but the project is being done with bond and we are $200,000
short.
So I would like to ask for, since this area serves my community and
Ms. Sugimura’s community, I’d like to ask the fellow Members to support requesting
that we give up the 50,000 in cash and replace it with $200,000 in bond instead so
that we can complete that project. We’ve done it for Public Works and other areas
where the bids have come up to be over the estimate, so I would like to ask their
support to move this, keep this skate park moving by providing 200,000 in bond
which I don’t have to go find anywhere else because it’s not cash. And I’m giving you a
quarter of the money back, so. And I’m not even asking where to put it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That’s to the ADA.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: It’s in the ADA.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, there we go. So, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --that can go to your ADA.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s true. That’s true. Okay, additional comments? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair and Members. I just want to for new
Members like myself, I just want to give you some background through the journey of
trying to talk to the skateboarding community Upcountry. There’s a wonderful
teacher name Petar from King Kekaulike High School, as well as Donna Clayton who
we all know from, well, we may know from Makawao Community Association, who I’ve
spoken to.
But this has been ongoing project for four years and it has the
enthusiasm. It actually started out Petar said as a senior project from one of the
skateboarders, and they reached out to the Council, and was just thrilled. They said
over, they’ve been working on this for four years and has been in contact with the
Parks Department in terms of, you know, what the bid is, and they’ve been at the table
talking with Goodfellow who ended up putting in the lowest bid for this. So here we
are and we’re close to getting this bill. There’s a lot of enthusiasm from the
community. And I appreciate the Chair bringing this and putting this item and still
keeping it alive. I will say that if some of the Members want to know about the
proviso, and I do recognize that in a previous meeting when Parks was here with Kaala
and this.. .Buenconsejo, when this did come up, it was mentioned that the community
had said that they would raise the money. And I just want to acknowledge that
minutes were found from an April meeting of last year, where a very enthusiastic
person did say this which led the returning Members if you remember that
communication, that’s where it came from. But when I asked Petar about it, he didn’t
even know who that person was. Well, maybe it was an enthusiastic parent, we
weren’t sure. But I would like to ask the body to support this additional 200,000. I
support Member, our Chair White for figuring out how to do this. And I would like to
see this completed for the children of Upcountry and for the future. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah, my notes reflect that the lowest bid for the project would be
1.4 million. They already I guess has 1.2 million set aside, they were short 200,000
and I think that’s why the proviso was placed in there. We match 50, you match the
other 150. But reality is reality, getting it done is more important for these kids
Upcountry. I already thought, I thought they already had one, but, you know, to find
out they didn’t have one, I’d like to see, you know, the completion and the full funding
-
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of 1.4 million be set aside to get this thing done. And then maybe this fundraising
effort can go towards helping the Lanai people get their skate park, whoever put that
challenge up, you know, still put that challenge in. And then we’ll bring a skate park
to Lanai
--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: With the youth center.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --a reality also, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: With the youth center.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So I would support this 200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll move it forward. It’s an expensive skate park, $1’/2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I hope the youth will learn what the value of $1 Y2 million really is.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Dollar-dollar.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 62, Members, under Wailuku-Kahului, War Memorial Gym Building
Improvements, and yeah, War Memorial Building Improvements. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. I had the opportunity to speak,
actually having a texting conversation with the Director, and I believe that the priority
is to take the 1.4 million for the paving and move it, at least transfer it to the War
Memorial Gym Building Improvements, and they will focus on the paving next fiscal
year. And so it would be a total of 1.750 using a proviso for the 350,000 that’s already
set forth in there for the design, for design purposes. But this would basically, the 1.4
would at least alleviate some of the repairs that need to be done so that we can keep
the War Memorial Gym at least in a decent and functional capacity before we go into a
refit on a design.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I’m open to that. Additional comments, Members? Mr. Atay, you
have something you want to share?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: No, I think that was what our discussion was last night was
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --to bring what was set aside for paving, do the repairs now to the
building so we would bring that 1.4 million, add it to the 350,000 and get the building
up to, and then next year come back with the money for the paving. Is that correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else has comments on this?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --real quick. No, I agree, but I just wanted more clarity on
the funding portion. So this is bond fund and the other... ‘cause I, now that I see there
was two War Memorial Gym building improvements, but one portion is from bond and
one portion is from general.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So now we’re going to forgo 1.4 million in borrowing and
dropping it down into bond to general?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I would say I would keep the 1.4

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in bond

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and use that for I guess...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For the one line item.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, this is my, what I prefer yeah, Members, leave the 350 cash alone for
the design and planning, and that’s what the line should say. For the 140, I don’t
have a problem, we can move it to the Maui, War Memorial Gym Building
Improvements, but I would, I’m going to tell you that I plan... I would prefer to leave it
off the bond authorization bill. Okay. Which means the Department must come back
and tell us specifically what they’re going to use the money for before authorization so
at least you know where the money’s going to be spent, what for and that we don’t
spend duplicative money on, again on the new complete project we want to do for the
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future. Can you understand my thinking, Members? So I don’t have a problem with
the recommendation, I’m just telling you how I would like to fund it and then hold that
bond off until they come back and say this is how we’re going to use the money of the
1.4. We have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good, done. The next one we have, Members, is Page 67 in the
middle, bond fund, Waipoli Road ditch improvements, Ms. Sugimura.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair. So this is the Waipoli Road ditch that is
by the Rice Park for us that is familiar with Rice Park and the proximity. And Director
Goode came here and talked about this. This project is I think probably closer to
1.6 million and this 800 is to add to that. So I would like to ask for the Members to
support getting this done for safety, and I think this.. .well, I’m not sure about last year
but this is the total project. So additional would be 800 for this year and it’s bond
fund. I don’t know, I don’t understand it enough General Fund or bond fund, I don’t
know what is better.
CHAIR HOKAMA: GeneraL.. bond fund means we’re going to borrow the money.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Which is probably what we don’t want to do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And this is Public Works so this is a road so highways, and then highways
is going to have to repay the General Fund for this borrowing.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Is that okay with you? Or is that okay with the body? I’m
not too sure how it works.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, the key thing is, is the number correct, the 800,000.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I think he.. .when Director was here, he did say that it’s
this, this is the additional, it’s right about 800.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can they perform within the time of the authorization?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I believe he said he could.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, you’re going to need to

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I believe he said he could by the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --hold their feet to the fire, ‘cause that’s one of our concerns yeah, we can
appropriate but if we see it lapse or they come back and say well, we weren’t really
ready so we’re going to come back now for another... that irritates us. Because then
this money could have been put to another project that could have been done. Okay.

-
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So, you know, we depend on each of us to hold those people responsible for those
things in the districts. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So just a funding education, so you’re saying for this it
would be with the Highway Fund of which it has to pay back the General Fund when it
has...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s going to pay back... the Highway Fund will pay for the bond.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So if we bond a project for sewers, the Sewer Fund will eventually
pay the debt service and principal.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh I see.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If it was landfill then the Solid Waste Fund. You do a water project
then Water will reimburse the bond. Okay. That’s how it works. Okay, so, Members,
you’ve heard the request from Ms. Sugimura regarding Waipoli Road.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, question?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Can you explain what the project is? ‘Cause it says ditch
improvements, is that like filling in or is that making drainage or what is the project?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So from... the project is, I say Rice Park because this is right
by Rice Park which to give you a proximity, but this Waipoli Road, there’s a ditch and
the ditch is starting to have... I don’t know what the right word is, erosion or whatever
that’s
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It’s undercutting the road.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --undercutting the road. Okay, that’s how you explain it.
So that is what’s happening. And so when the Director explained it and I did call a
friend that kind of lives around that area just to verify it. So it’s by the
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: So is it paving?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --road.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Do you know is it paving? I don’t understand what ditch
improvements are. You’re trying to make a better ditch?
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I think it’s more than just repaving, Ms. King. I think there’s going to be
some engineering work. They~re going to need to
--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: To make sure it doesn’t fall into...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --do some rebuilding, and then they’re going to do the, then finish off the
top with finishing the road. But yeah, this is one of those things that I wish we caught
earlier ‘cause it would be less expensive. But this is the cost of again, delayed
maintenance and delayed funding. So yeah, I don’t like the number but I understand
the need.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comments, Members? Okay, this is under bond fund. Is there
a consensus on the proposal?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 800,000.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Ms. King.

Okay, next, 69, bond fund, Waiale Road Extension, Ms. Crivello and

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I would like to see this because of the efforts for affordable
homes that there’s the plans to develop affordable homes. And I recognize this is like
existing road that is, that I guess the efforts to have an extension as opposed to some
other conditions on some other projects that have kind of not happened at all where
we had conditions to build bridges or what have you in the... I’m not sure what that
place is. So for this reason I think I can see us hopefully support the efforts to, with
Public Works to work on the Waiale Road extension for the affordable housing
development.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, this extension is, it affects the affordable
housing that has 1,000 homes planned for it, and 300 or approximately 300, I think
it’s like 298 rentals, half of which are affordable or planned to be affordable. And the
holdup on this project, Members and Chair, was that County was waiting for the
entity that owns this piece to hand it over to the County, and that entity had some
back taxes to pay and so that’s being worked out. Mike Atherton who’s the developer
of this, the project, the Wailuku. or Waikapu Town Country... Country Town, Waikapu
Country Town, has caine and testified in front of us and has committed to paying that
if the owner can’t come up with it. So he’s just trying to get this done as quickly as
possible. It also is the road that will be necessary in order to utilize the County land
that’s planned for the regional park that’s on that, on the road as well. So I’m hoping
. .
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we can support this as bond funded. And the developer is, his intention is to get the
first homes done by the end of next year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This road ain’t going happen that fast. Other comments? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I agree, it’s a great project, Chair, and it’s going to provide
housing and rentals. I do have a note on this from something that I think that
somebody from this body said that it was one of the entitlements for the development
project. But I just want to make sure that we, you know, maybe get Corp. Counsel to
tell us if it’s okay for us to do this. I’m not too sure what all the entitlement
procedures or processes or the way that this has to flow so that we stay in compliance
with requirements for planning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, this is not a question for Corp. Counsel at this time.
comments by the Members?

Other

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I feel, been in support for this...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you turn on your mic, please, Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I be open in support

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: --for this Wailea Road extension more in particular if the road is
prepared and gets us to our County land so that our baseyard and development of our
County baseyard areas or utilizing if this Wailea extension continues on through and
gets us there then, you know, it’s not only to accommodate a developer but it would be
also to accommodate our future needs, our future planning for our County land. And
I think it’ll be a reliever road, ‘cause, you know, you got the upper highway and then
traffic now from the center will allow the general public to have an additional access
out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. My question is, I don’t think.., and this is $2 million
I believe.. .what is it going to.. .is this for design only or is it for design and some
construction? ‘Cause I, my question is, I don’t believe this is even close to the total
cost of the Waiale
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s not.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --extension because we’ve got a bridge there.
this is just design money.

So I’m assuming that

CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s just initial...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So my concern is since the, since this road is going through lands that
are up for rezoning, what are the requirements that we have placed on other adjacent
landowners to participate in funding for either design or construction? And I don’t
know that we’ve gotten any commitments yet from.. .1 don’t believe we’ve heard
anything from the Department yet, as to whether there are commitments at this point
because there’s no Change in Zoning yet. So
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: This is correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --I... anyway, that’s my concern. I don’t know what the cost sharing is
at this point, and so I’m a little uncomfortable moving this forward until we have a
sense of what that might look like.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate. Anyone else has a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, we had the Department here and I guess we didn’t get that
question answered, but could we get the Department to respond to that? I mean my
understanding was.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, ‘cause Public Works wouldn’t be able to answer my questions, ‘cause
it’s not a Public Works’ question. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: The question of what...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ve been on this.. .well, I’ve been on this Council long enough to know
that there’s land use conditions of approval from companies like C. Brewer that don’t
exist but impacted Waiale Road, the extension areas, the overpass, Mission Street, lao
Stream, all the way going over toward Leisure Estates. Okay. This Department had
already with, when I was sitting with Mr. Nishiki, proposed a County administrative
project to pay, to ask the taxpayers to pay for a private developer’s condition of
approval which was the Mission Street project and the bridge. I caught it and I asked
the Committee why are we paying for a private developer’s condition?
Then
Mr. Nishiki said I recall that exact approval. Okay. Planning needs to give us
verification whether or not from previous land entitlements, not the one currently
going on but ones we’ve already approved, if there is still existing conditions that
impact this road, impact this project before we move forward. Because I believe that
there is still private requirements to fulfill conditions of approval that will save this
County money regarding this project. Okay. It’s not a Public Works thing. But again,
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I don’t have much faith in Public Works since they already tried to pull one over me
years ago. I want to make sure that this is truly, if it is a public project, we can pay
for it, but if this is something that a private developer signed an agreement to take
care of then I’m not going to put one public dollar to this project. That’s their cost.
That’s their commitment for that zoning-up approval. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
addressed?

In.. .can we have your questions addressed or has it been

CHAIR HOKAMA: It has not been responded to yet.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, from.. .okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: From Planning, okay, ‘cause it’s not a Public Works thing, this is Planning
needs to respond.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So Planning has not responded

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --to your two questions you asked, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: They.. .any agreement with the.. .if there are any agreements
with...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I would think Public Works would have done appropriate due
diligence but I guess not.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So again, my level of confidence is not very good.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, based upon... I mean the thought that it’s a road
that will lead to County facility, I wonder if there’s also a responsibility for us to put in
the road. Affordable housing as, you know, like Member Crivello has said, is one of
our priorities or responsibilities of the County. And I wonder if that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Our responsibilities, I have no problem us putting our money to take care
our responsibilities. But like I said, I will not agree to using public money for a private
-
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developer’s requirement. They shouldn’t have agreed but they wanted the zoning so
they agreed, so perform.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So we’re...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just like we’re waiting for their performance on thousands of affordable
units still to be built to this County. Okay. We’re waiting for performance.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Department

So we’re waiting for the response from

Planning

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: So

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --hopefully

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --unless they give the response

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --tonight?
CHAIR HOKAMA: -I don’t know how you can pass this and use public money knowing that
potentially this could have been paid from private.
-

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will come back.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay, revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: One second. I’m going through the last of the CIP component. Okay, that
was the last one under CIP. Yes, Mr. Carroll? Happy to recognize you. Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
happened this morning that I need to

On Page 66, if we could go back.
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --request a change on there. Page 66
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --line 1653. All right. That this morning Mr. Goode went
outside that bridge, they made a temporary repair but it’s a dangerous situation. I
met with him when we he came back and we discussed it during one of the breaks.
He thinks that for $250,000 that he can do the design and construction and do, make
it permanent. We’d like to take the money out from line 1634, we have the Hana
Highway Landslide Repairs Near Mile Post 42, and take $150,000 out from that and
put it with the $100,000 design money that’s over there and then change the title to
design and construction. And that is my proposal. And of course that doesn’t affect
the overall Budget. And Mr. Goode has approved that and he was sending a letter
down but we don’t have it yet, but if you could trust me that he has approved it and I
think that is the best thing now. Because this is more or less a fire, we really need
to-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --get this done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand, it’s a critical request. No, no, no. One, I’m happy to
consider it. Two, I’m happy you looked within your own district first, and three, I’m
happy you found a way to make it happen within your district.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so have Mr. Goode send that letter to reverify what you just shared,
but the Chair is very open to that proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah, he has written the letter, but we just haven’t gotten it
yet because this has just happened this morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, no, no, we understand. We understand. You have additional,
Ms. Regan?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Chair, I have an e-mail from Director Goode that I’ll forward to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any additional comments or discussion? Do we have...
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Atay? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we have consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, thank you. Okay, we’ve done the review. How long do we
need? Oh yeah, that’s right. Parks requested three vehicles or pickups for rangers or
enforcement
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So

--

COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: CORA funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --from the CORA funds. Again, what are your folks’ thoughts, Members?
Again, you know that there is a restriction on CORA funds.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Corp. Counsel.. (inaudible)...
.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, you have any comments you want to share with the Committee
at this time regarding that?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I did e-mail staff regarding some potential language for a
proviso to be used to ensure that the vehicles would be used for CORA-related
enforcement activities and that type of language. But as far as using the fund for
vehicle purchases, as long as they’re proviso’d I don’t see a problem. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
used on the West Maui side?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The

Thank you.

Were those vehicles specifically to be

--

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just the rangers?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --five is supposed to take care all of the parks, the gates and security
requirements including potential vagrants and whatnot.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Very good. Thanks.
-

138

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other.. .yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so in reference to the CORA funds
and the jet skis for Ocean Safety, that one too I believe there’s language from
Mr. Ueoka in regards to proviso’ing 100,000 for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Out of that fund I mean.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And he...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Mr. Ueoka?

So I don’t know, do we need, do you want comment from

CHAIR HOKAMA: You can give a comment at this time?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. It would probably be very similar language but instead of
enforcement for CORA, it would be for ocean safety activities related to CORA or
possibly at CORA beach parks. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You folks understood...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you clear on what Mr. Ueoka said?
Mr. Guzman?

There’s parameters now.

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, Chair, I just have.., nothing wrong with giving the Ocean
Safety guys the jet ski, but how are they to report to Parks if they~re separated
already? I mean and our park rangers are the ones that enforce the CORA provisions.
How does the Ocean Safety guys regulate the
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --CORA provisions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are they no longer under Parks?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, you have a comment?
-
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Chair. I would say the Ocean Safety if they’re operating at a beach
park where there is CORA activity and a rescue needed to be conducted, they’re there.

MR. UEOKA: Thank you,

And...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You guys are.

.

.

(inaudible)...

CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, they gotta make a connect yeah, that’s the connect.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Then we need an Ocean Safety guy to be specifically acting as
a park ranger
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --with the autonomy to do citations on these

--

MR. UEOKA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --CORA violations.
MR. UEOKA: I don’t believe the Ocean Safety officer would be doing enforcement activity,
they would be doing lifeguarding activity in case there was something that came up at
a CORA beach park which is not impossible.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But funding wouldn’t be under Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But the funding is coming from the CORA Fund which is

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Park.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --based off of, based from the parks, regulations of the CORA
activities. And there are provisions in the CORA chapter that are being enforced by
the park rangers. So I mean I don’t want to throw a monkey wrench in it, I just want
to make very clear that if these skis, jet skis are being used, they are really going to be
used for CORA enforcement.
MR. UEOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, then Pve got issues.
MR. UEOKA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: If I may, the Commercial Ocean Recreation Activity Fund isn’t limited to
enforcement activity. It’s as long as it’s furthering the.. .let me pull up the exact
language, furthering purposes relating to the implementation of this article. So
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additional use at the beach parks may create the need for, you know, lifeguarding
activity, therefore the skis are tools that the lifeguards use. Of course it’s this body’s
decision but I don’t see a problem with it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Does that suggest that the skis would have to be located only at parks
that have CORA activities?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Yes, that would probably be language in the proviso.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you. Just from being, receiving public testimony
from the CORA community, they seem they’re watching this fund from some of the
testimony I received about inappropriate use or they seem, I don’t know, they’re like
monitoring the Parks Department. So I guess by buying equipment that travels like,
you know, through the parks rangers and can go from park to park, do we have to put
a restriction so it can only be for certain parks or does it really not matter? I just want
to make sure we do it so we’re in compliance.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. The proviso would be rather general, just along the lines of
the equipment, jet skis or vehicles shall be furthering CORA related purposes. We~fl
get language along those lines so that way the, it will be known to whichever
department gets the equipment that they’re supposed to use it for these uses. Thank
you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
activities. So it’s not all...

And only at CORA facilities or beaches that have CORA

CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s what, that is what he said.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Well, Chair, if I may?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: For the skis, Ms. Sugimura, but the vehicles, they’ll still be driving around and
part of it might be going to beaches that don’t have CORA activity to enforce the
prohibition. So it’ll just be related to it. Thank you, Chair.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anything else, Members? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you for allowing that clarification. So my initial
proposal, Chair, in reference to trying to seek funds... oh, first off, remember last night
when I handed out that hand-printed breakdown of the travel costs, that’s actually my
Page 1 of my proposals and I believe we all got each other’s proposal for this Budget.
And that was to be used for the additional 25,000 for a monthly recycling event in
Lahaina, to bring them up to par with what it actually costs to do. And also an
additional recycling cleanup in the Kanaio-Kaupo area which I did confer with
Councilmember Carroll...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let’s finish up the CORA one first.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments? Mr. Atay? No?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there consensus on this one?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are we talking consensus for the skis?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The proviso. Skis and vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
using CORA funds.

I can see the vehicles.

I don’t.. .1 do not agree on the skis

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we can return to that component on the last, on the next last pass.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Got the trucks though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, the trucks has, is consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Consensus, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, anything else, Members?
Ms. Cochran?

Okay, w&re going to take a.. .yes,

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh okay. So you want to come back for the question I had
in reference to the travel cuts and...
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, cut, you can make that.. .well, let me see.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we do that now? Easier if we do that now? Yeah, let’s take it now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I wanted to use that for... so...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so present your travel proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The... so yeah, the.. .you folks have that list and then also the
responses from the departments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But of course they’re going to say no, they don’t want the
cuts. But and then the reason being is to, the 25 for the additional cost nowadays for
the recycling event in West Maui.
And again, we have no recycling facilities
whatsoever on that side of the island. And then 7.5.. .$7,500 for an additional
recycling cleanup event in the Kanaio-Kaupo area which I did confer with
Councilmember Carroll and he was very excited and happy to hear about such a
proposal. And that would be the total and reasoning for those cuts, ‘cause I couldn’t
figure out anywhere else to find the money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other discussion on the proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is this...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m sorry. I’m trying to find the handout from Cochran’s...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair? The total is $39,810.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is this your proposal...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s her proposal and it cuts from various departments.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: For travel?
CHAIR HOKAMA: For travel.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So I, if I recall, there was also a cut or adjustment for
the Solid Waste to travel to Molokai, and we do not have.. .we have a working
-
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supervisor, and so I know for a fact that supervision always comes over and to be also
you have training for compliance. So I cannot support removing the necessary
expertise from within the department to work with our County employees at our
landfills.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, we’re talking about 39,000-something and I believe that
your proposal was 50-something thousand. So was there.. .for the cuts, for the travel.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh wait, let’s see. Twenty-five...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fifty...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, was 59-something.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh sorry, 50...requesting increase 57,310.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So if your 50...let’s see, 59,709 for the travel cuts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, now I’m trying to find my own page.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So maybe we... Chair, can we...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So anyway, I was just checking because I thought I heard that
your proposal for the cost was 39,000 so I thought maybe if you reduced it some and
put some back in, that would
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --get consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, sorry. Can we maybe revisit this
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --while I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, I got too many papers here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay, we’ll revisit.
-

144

-

--

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re going to take our... is there anything else I need to bring up?
Okay, we’re going to take our dinner break. Return at 8:30. We’re going to do our
calculations with all this adds and whatnot, so we’re going to recalculate, do the
adjustments. So we’re gonna need some time. So we’ll see you back at 8:30.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

.

.

.

(gavel)...

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

6:10 p.m.
8:37 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
.(gavel)... Okay, we’re back in order. Thank you. So where are we at
this point in time, we have about 20 additional revisits. We have 2 funds that are in
deficit, the Golf Course Fund is in a negative 106,684 and currently the General Fund
is negative $5,390,207. Total deficit is 5,496,891. All other funds is currently
balanced. So that’s where we are with that. So for the rest of, the plan of attack for
us is, Members, the rest of the night, we’re going to try and.. .we will finish the revisits.
And then what we won’t finish ‘cause we’re going to need to calculate this after we’re
done with the revisits on, over the weekend is we’re going to tighten up and give you
numbers for Monday morning on the bond, total bond numbers, the interfund
transfers, fringes, and the final RPT calculations. So Monday the only thing that the
Chair will allow is minor tweaks and provisos, that’s the only thing on adjustments
we do on Monday and that is then the final document. So tonight is the final night
but there is no consensus, we’re going to do the vote, and whatever is the vote will
determine the outcome of the revisit. Okay. So let’s go and attack it, Members. First
page I believe is Page 2. Okay, we’re going to keep the TAT at 20 million. I think that
is still a reasonable number knowing what is happening with the Legislature. So first
is line 50 under Fuel and Franchise Taxes. I have an adjustment, 16,000 on a 6 cents
per gallon proposal for biofuel. Okay. Comments? Ms. King?
.

.

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah.
vote on this because

Chair, I’m going to recuse myself on the vote if there’s a

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --in case there’s a conflict of interest.
against it because I think...

But I do want to speak

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yeah, discussion is not a problem at all, Ms. King
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so please share your thoughts.
-

145

-

--

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, thank you. So kind of pursuant to some of the testimony
we’ve had, the benefits that the, this particular model has brought to the County have
far outweighed what this could bring in in tax. But also because this will affect the
biggest users the most, and every penny when you~re dealing with someone like Maui
Disposal and DHX is huge. So this actually could threaten the closure of the biodiesel
pump station, ‘cause those are the two biggest accounts and they likely will drop off.
So this would reduce it to zero if it, if the pump station goes away.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. King. Anyone else has a discussion? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
No, I just want to add that I support the efforts for
renewables and I know that the Kings, especially Bob King has been working on this
for many years. And I also recognize that there are some other fleets, you know,
they’re just trying this out. So I thank you, Chair, to giving us... giving the biodiesel
fuel the opportunity.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else has a comment? Mr. Guzman, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Last Budget Session, I pushed for
the zero-out on this particular item and my position has not changed. I still feel that
we do need to make, at least make some type of provisions for the future to even
equalize out all of the energy-type vehicles on use of our roadways. And until we
figure out how to do that, I don’t think we should be charging this type of
energy-efficient fuel or energy more so than we do the electric vehicles. So I still have
the same position from last Budget Session so I will be supporting the deletion of this
add-on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine. Any other comments? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah, I’d be support of deletion. I think it’s still young. It’s still
young where, you know, we see the sunflowers in bloom, but I don’t know about where
they going process this. They gotta take ‘em off island, process ‘em, bring ‘em back
over here. So the entities just to produce the biodiesel, that’s, you know, they’re just
coming out of the block, and I look at this as like okay, we’re lowering it to 6 cents but
what does it mean, $16,000. We’re trying to hold back a potential viable industry for,
over $16,000. So I, for now I believe that it’s still young. It’s still young, coming out of
the blocks, let’s give it chance to produce.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I just want to chime in that I feel
like this, we have a really huge potential to... I was told by this entity actually a few
years back that they could produce if given the chance and I see it happening now
that they could supply all our diesel needs on this island or in this County. And so
I’m very excited to see the first steps being taken. And so to tax them now as Mr. Atay
mentioned, you know, just kind of getting out the gate and sort of testing the waters
here, I really am not in favor of taxing them at this time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
request, Members?

Anyone else?

Okay.

So what is your

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, I’d like to just say I know there are those that want to
zero it out completely, but I think in all fairness for occupation of the wheels on the
road there should be some tax. And this is real minimal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we’ve heard comments about minimal and whatnot. So anyone else
has a comment? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I want to commend, you know, Pacific Biodiesel for all
that they’re doing and it’s an honor to sit with Member King and for their industry of
what they’re creating for us. I also believe, you know, working in this field when I had
the opportunity that I think that, you know, vehicles basically and that use the roads
that we have some responsibility equally. So from what was proposed to this six cents
per gallon, I support this, you know, contributing towards the use of our highways
and participating in our community that way. So I support this, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, you know, this is one of those I’m kind of torn because I think
everybody should pay and we’ve tried to look at ways of increasing the vehicle weight
tax on electric vehicles, but my recollection is we couldn’t do that because it would be
discriminatory. So I too kind of find that this may be an industry that’s starting to
blossom and maybe it’s time for us to give it a little more or continue the leash of no
taxes if it’s... and I know we have a revenue issue, we need to raise a little more
revenue for our roads. I’m open to a slight increase in the vehicle weight tax over what
you’ve already proposed in order to make up this amount and possibly a little bit
more. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think I feel the same way like everybody
else. We really want to promote alternatives and yet, you know, we really feel that
everybody needs to pay something so it’s really difficult. I consider going, letting them
go but no more than one more year though, that would be the max. Like he said
they’re starting out. Well, they’ve been around for a while, yes, but still yet it looks
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like it’s taking off. I consider not taxing them for another year maybe but at the most,
after that then, you know, it’s, even though it’s credible, you have to start paying your
due which is part of being a successful business.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I just wanted to respond to some of the... I think one of the
issues that Pacific Biodiesel has had with the County of Maui is that this is the only
county that has never.., well, actually this and Kauai have never actually used the fuel
itself. On Oahu we’re happy to pay a tax because the County has been using the fuel
for over 12 years now. Big Island started a couple years ago. And the... so they give
support in other ways. This County has never given that type of support. And when
you have a renewable energy like electric vehicles that you don’t tax and you do use
and you do offer free charging stations, this County has invested quite a bit of money
in electric vehicles. So you’re really skewing the market. So the market is set up to
favor electric vehicles. There’s no fair market or open market for that, and if you tax
one and not the other then you’re skewing it even more. And the State has done that
for quite a few years. I think it’s been about five years ago that the charging stations
were required Statewide. They also, electric vehicles get free parking, you know, they
don’t pay any meter parking on Oahu, they get free HOV lane, you don’t have to
be.. .you can be a single drive and drive in HOV lanes on Oahu. You can park in
restricted parking areas all over the island over there. So it’s been a struggle but I
think this company had, would not be where we are with the investments we’re
making in sustainable agriculture and diversified agriculture had we been taxed all
this time. In fact, if we hadn’t had this level of support with the tax exemption, we’d
probably be doing this on another island that was more supportive. So I just want the
Members to think about the level of support and the, you know, it’s fine to say
everybody should use the road, but when you’ve got one type of vehicle that not only
uses the road, pays no tax, and there’s no foreseeable way until we get VMT, the
vehicle miles traveled system then you’re really creating an unfair market. And so,
and because of all the other benefits of alleviating the waste grease and extension of
the landfill and all of the jobs and all the things that biodiesel has brought to this
island, I just would really hope Members would consider that this is a small amount to
pay compared to the hundreds of thousands of dollars in benefits we’ve had from the
processing of our waste grease that would not have happened. It’s been happening
since the mid-’90s and the alleviation of wastewater spills, extension of the landfill,
and all those kind of things that have happened because of it which are many, many
times over what we’re asking, you know, this one year, what we might garner off of
this tax.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much for that comment.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Thank you, Chair.
And yeah, thank you for those
comments, Ms. King. And so what I’d like to see is trying to figure out.. .because you
said in other islands, the use is increasing or you have a good yield of use there versus
here it hasn’t been. So perhaps as you expand or this fuel usage expands, if there was
a way to track it or figure in X amount of more gallonage is being utilized now and
things of that nature to see the impact, on trying to figure out the impact. ‘Cause I
know diesel, yes, semis and big tractor trailers, what have you utilize, but also a lot of
off-road type equipment are utilizing it too. So they do not go on highways. They
mainly stay off road, on jobsites what have you. So that’s how I see diesel, a lot of it
isn’t actually road/highway per se use too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, just to clarify if I may for Ms. Cochran that what I was
speaking about as far as support and usage is the County, the County government.
So this County has not, the government of this County has not used it. The City and
County of Honolulu has been using it for over a dozen years.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Oh good, good, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause this County has supported in a different manner, it was zero
taxation. Okay. We didn’t use it but we didn’t charge. So, you know, so I’m glad that
Ms. King brought that up.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Chair, I just wanted to just add. When I attended the
Energy Conference, a portion of it was on biodiesel. And what was very pleasing to see
is that the advancement into the fuel, I guess the production of airline fuel that
Alaskan Airline is now using. So there was quite a bit of a discussion about how we
can start producing those types of fuels here with the biodiesel industry. And for our
HC&S fields that are, you know, currently vacant, you know, this could be a line that
we can start looking into in agriculture, biodiesel fuel crops. So I think we do need to
make sure that we keep the, I guess this type of incentive, and we don’t have any
other type of incentive for this type of a industry. So it is in a sense like Mr. Carroll
was mentioning, a way to help this industry along regardless of us actually putting in
a tax incentive, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate your, all your, every Member’s comments. The Chair
will, you know, at this point in the Budget process, the Chair is, feels that this is not
an issue that should make a, at this point in time for this kind of money and I heard
all your comments, I would tend to agree more with Mr. Carroll at this time. I’m
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happy to take this off the table at this time, but I’m going to tell you, I’m going to bring
back the tax, tax consideration that I think is smart and fair. But, you know, for me
it’s not worth, you know, having a division of this Committee on this issue at this time
so I’m going to just take it off. There’s bigger things we gotta deal with. So with no
objections, the Chair will take this off the table.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And just so that you can be, know that this Committee took this
seriously last year too, okay. We referred this to Mr. Guzman’s Committee, last year’s
Committee, Economic Development, Energy, Ag, and Recreation. Okay. And the
referral was regarding the matter relating to fees for public charging stations for
electric vehicles, including development of an assessment report to be transmitted to
the Council by March 1, 2017. Okay. Things happen, I know that. Agendas for
committees are not always in control of.. .the chair depend on referrals. So but we did
talk about this issue, we did make the referral, it is still something we need to follow
up on. But this Committee took the discussion really seriously, and we made an
appropriate referral to the standing committee. Okay, next, Ms. Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: Chair, the next item is on Page 3, line 73.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Under Bond/Lapsed Bond. Let’s see, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I note my initials there

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --but I don’t recall.. .no reason, so I don’t recall having that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What page is this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I don’t recall that discussion either.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 3, line 73.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Page 3 what?
MS. ESPELETA: Page 3, line 73.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
whatnot

The 18 million is my adjustment to the Budget on the borrowing and

--

-

150

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I don’t know.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
--which would change again, because you’ve just authorized more
borrowing earlier this afternoon. Okay, so next item.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 17, line 393.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 17, 393. Thank you very much. This is as it regards to the Housing
Program, General, housing specialist. The Chair has recommend placing back the
funds for this position that we provided them last year I believe as part of the
Administration’s request on how to deal with the homeless program. Proposal this
year was to defund. The Chair has replaced the money back in as well as monies for
an assessment of the whole program. And I’m going to also ask that they review how
the Department spent the millions we have given over the years to address
homelessness. Okay. It’s not like we haven’t appropriated money, we’ve appropriated
a lot of money for homelessness. Okay. We need to find out how it was spent, why it
wasn’t as effective as we had hoped it would be, and then we can make the
appropriate adjustments and recommendations.
So anything else in this area,
Members? If not...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --I have a revisit on line 409.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, we’re still on 393.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
Just a question because I didn’t understand that was for
homelessness because it says housing assessment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But this was part of their request to address the housing, affordable and
the homeless issue.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, so both of them?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I can see how it’s tied in.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then this is for half a year?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. Is this half a year?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: This is for...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, I think it is...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Eight months.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight months, Ms. King.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Eight months?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, because they’re going to need to recruit and fill so we put in eight
months. Hopefully they can get everything done in, within four months of Personnel
requirements and have it filled.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I have consensus on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh okay. Well, my notes must have been wrong. I apologize.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry. I think that was part of the consideration for line number 409.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, correct. Chair, if you don’t mind I have a recommendation on line
409 that does not involve line 393.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, then can... do.. .is there any question? Is there a consensus
on 393?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: This, we’re keeping it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we’re keeping it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re keeping that position

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --funded.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White, 409 please.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. In talking with Ms. Stone-Walls, they have
requested that we fund the Computer Application Support Technician at the 50,772
level.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And they’re suggesting that since they have received added Kupuna
Care funds and funds in another area that they feel comfortable taking both the salary
and fringe which would be a total of 84,231 out of the Grants to Frail and Elderly on
Page 22 line 50... 530. And Ms. Stone-Walls said please let the Committee know this
will not result in any loss of service, because they have adequate.. .they have actually a
little bit more than adequate funds to cover it from other pots.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So it’s going on Page 22

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --line 531.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, are you clear on what Mr. White has proposed in consultation
with the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fund the position, we’re going to reduce the 861,739 by what was your
number again, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Eighty-four thousand two thirty-one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You folks got that number? That includes fringes? Okay. Salary
at 50,772 and the balance for the fringes. Okay, Members, any further discussion? Is
there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We’re moving forward. Next?
MS. ESPELETA: Line 413, Page 18.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I am with the.. .1 received this also, the same information
that Mr. White received so they have enough funding to cover.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we have consensus on that Department?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Line 414 on the equipment, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Ditto.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Same thing?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh I’m sorry.
appreciate that so much.

Thank you very much for checking on both items.

I

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much. Next?
MS. ESPELETA: Next is Page 27, line 682.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes? Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Page 22, the Services to the Frail and Elderly

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --so is that where we make the reduction of 84,231 for the position and
fringe?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Espeleta, Page 20...
MS. ESPELETA: Page 27, line 682.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six eighty-two.
MS. ESPELETA: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, got it. So, Ms. Sugimura, you have a number, adjusted number?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I believe.., if you don’t mind, I believe we had consensus on
MD-001 [sic] and 0015. It was just a question of 0055 remaining.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I think...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 15 is the one that we’re going to place in

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: In Risk Management.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: In Risk Management.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Corp. Counsel Risk Management.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So the 0055.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Coordinator.

Zero zero five five was a delete.

CHAIR HOKAMA: So that is.. .yeah, I don’t know how much is that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Was that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: What is the...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Eighty...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eighty what?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Eighty-five five oh nine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eighty-five five oh nine. So that’s the current deduction.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That is for...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Triple zero one has restored and 0015 is transferred.
and the reduction is 80...

So it’s now 0055

MS. ESPELETA: Eighty-five five zero nine.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: And the MD-001 [sic] is 141,551, is that right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re not dealing with that, that’s already restored.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: It’s done?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Pau already.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: So in this area we will be restoring 141,551. In the Department of the
Corporation Counsel, we would be putting in $114,012 and I guess the 85,509 would
be the deletion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that’s the current delete amount. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I initially thought that this was a, this was an
appointed position, and I felt it would be difficult for the Administration to convince
somebody to take a job of this caliber with this kinds of responsibilities for an
18-month period. But I had my, my staff reminded me that this is a civil service
position which would carry through into the next Administration. So that changes my
perspective on it a little bit and so I’d like to hear comments from others.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: For which positions

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Which position?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Zero five five, or 0055 is civil service, not an appointed position.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct. Correct. So if we eliminate the funding, if the Department
cannot adjust their funding, they make it work, then more than likely a RIF will go
into effect.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What was that?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But isn’t this position vacant?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pardon me? No. Again, you know, Council can appropriate or not
appropriate, you know, so if you choose not to.. .w&re not required to appropriate.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right. But I.. .wasn’t this a vacant position?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It is, yes. It’s vacant, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So there wouldn’t be a RIF would there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not unless.. .yeah, not unless it’s a filled.. .yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you’re right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So my thing is, we can leave it but delete the funding. If they have
enough savings and they want to fill it, they can fill it. Or
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --eliminate the position and if when they need it, they can come back and
ask for reauthorization. There’s different ways of handling it, Members.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would be okay with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I’ll be okay with your suggestion of leaving the position
and defunding it, ‘cause should they need one it would take forever to go through
Personnel.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair?
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: All right, Chair, just so I am sure. We’re restoring the
funding for 0001 and for 0055, we’re just not restoring the funding but leaving the
positions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving forward. Thank you. Next page, Ms. Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 29, line 707 and 710.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven zero seven, 710. I think they can find the savings for the 109
myself. And regarding the HR payroll, I’m going to recommend reinstating $750,000
for HR payroll. Hearing all your comments earlier.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, is that... Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Is that, that’s the 1 million so are we moving it up to 1 million...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Point seven, yeah, 1.75 million.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: One point seven. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And then we’re keeping the 109 deleted?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Members. Moving on. Ms. Espeleta?
-
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MS. ESPELETA: Line.. .1 mean I’m sorry, Page 30, line 743.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Members, this is the 14,709, we’ve talked
about this as it relates to HTA and other...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s a unique way of approaching positions and funding of positions.
Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
So, Chair, based upon the correspondence from
Ms. Rasmussen, the amount should be $24,627 from her correspondence for this
Economic Development Specialist II position, OM-0 109. And then the other positions
that are I guess sharing, I think she described amongst five personnel, continuing
their responsibilities. And it, that number is 42,237.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For which line?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: For line 10.. .or 744, 744.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair? I’m...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I still don’t understand what’s going on with these two lines. As
many times as I’ve heard it, I still don’t understand it, I’m sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not a problem. Ms. Sugimura, please repeat your

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proposal for 743.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So based upon the... Hawaii Tourism Authority before this
fiscal, I guess in February of this year, they work on calendar year basis, they stopped
having the Office of Economic Development process the grant process... the grants for
community CPEP or what it’s called, community participation... I don’t know what the
acronym stands for. And in February, they made that change and actually sent a
contract to Office of Economic Development for $70,000 to take over the groundwork
in terms of making sure that the grants that got funded, somebody went to visit them,
made sure it was actually happening and did reports, or there’s like certain guidelines.
A copy of that contract from OED was passed out to everyone from Ms. Rasmussen so
that you can see the requirements of the position. And instead of having one person
-
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doing this job for the contract requirements, they just split it amongst their employees
because of the short time, I guess, the way that she described it of this administration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: And instead of hiring somebody, they decided to split it up
that way in terms of the work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Can I

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --ask a question? So basically HTA used to do this work and then
they gave the money to OED, and so OED is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, H... OED was doing the work.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: OED was doing the work and then...
CHAIR HOKAMA: HTA took it, took, reduced the workload.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: They took back the administrative part.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: They took back the 70,000?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: No, it was more like 600 or it was a larger amount

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh okay. So...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
projects. And...

--of grants that were awarded for Maui County interested

COUNCILMEMBER KING: So they’re doing the admin now?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So now what HTA is doing, they took back basically the
contract work and in terms of the admin and keeping track of all the different grants.
But asked OED or to continue monitoring in terms ‘cause that’s on our island
suppose. Maybe...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So the monitoring is
-
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Monitoring and reports and...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --being paid for by County funds?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: It’s...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Maybe we should have the Budget Director take a stab at it, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Regan, would you like to share some comment?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yeah. I’m pr~tty familiar because I served as Teena’s predecessor some
time ago.
Basically this, the 70,000 is provided by HTA, and because the
responsibilities of the County has been reduced whereby HTA is basically, you know,
working with OED and just asking them, don’t have to do anything except for
supporting, monitoring, and evaluating the HTA awardees. Ms. Rasmussen thought it
would be prudent to, rather than having one person designated to attend all of the
events throughout the year and evaluate each and every event, she thought she would
I guess lessen the personnel and be able to split that responsibility of supporting,
monitoring, and evaluating all of the events throughout the year to
--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: --personnel throughout the existing office.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, that part I get. But what I don’t get is if it’s 70,000 that
came from HTA, where is the 70,000? Is that on another page as a grant?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: That’s all I needed to know. That’s the part I didn’t get. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Just taking the position 0109, that 14,709 which we have
listed, Ms. Sugimura, you said is 24 thousand, 6...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Twenty-four six two seven.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Six two seven. That is, it’s my understanding that the HTA funds
provide the remainder of that individual’s salary. Is that correct?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So all

--

MS. ARAKI-REGAN: And fringe.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --the 70,000 is spent on that salary plus fringes?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So I don’t know why the difference between the 14,700 and the
24,627. But can you explain that?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: That, I’m, I need an explanation. I know Teena is, you know, on,
watching , and so Vu get an explanation from her. I don’t know exactly what the
reason is between the 14,000 and the 24, but TM get an answer to you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And then the other question I had was for me that, the position
is separate from the 52,331 in salary adjustments. Maybe Ms. Sugimura can provide
an explanation on that or the Budget Director.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: You know...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So Ms. Rasmussen sent us a correspondence which is
somewhere in here, maybe Ms. Yoshimura has it, I’ll look for it. But she basically,
after she last spoke to us, she came back and did a calculation of the split between
her employees and what the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know they’re all appointed employees. If they need money, they just
can terminate one position and spread that money around.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m sorry, what did you.. .what was that, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is all appointed positions, you know, if they need money, they can
reduce their personnel count and take care their cost by reshifting, readjusting.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I think that’s exactly what they did. My understanding is that those,
these increases have already been in place this fiscal year, and this is just carrying
into the next fiscal year. I’m not sure, but...
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay.
Is there consensus?
Well, that is her proposal, the 24,
Ms. Sugimura’s is the 24-whatever number for 0109.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’d like to...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
coming from?

Do we know where this is... Chair, do we know where this is

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I don’t know how she’s going to pay for this. How you want to pay for
this, Ms. Sugimura? How does OED want to pay for this?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I’ve always thought that it came from that 70,000
contract from Hawaii Tourism Authority which would offset this, but I guess you’re
saying it doesn’t.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s already committed. Don’t look at me.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I don’t know how to answer that.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Chair, I have a suggestion if you want. I could reduce OM-0090, I mean
hold off on hiring for a couple months to be able to cover the difference if you’d like.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So hold off on... I’m sorry.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN:
OM-0090.

We could reduce the salaries for this year, for Fiscal Year ‘18 for

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, the other position.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: To cover the difference.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So I have a question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: In the Details, so I’m not knowing what amount the.. .on
Page 11-15 it does say HTA funding position...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Can you speak into your mic?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, I’m sorry, sir. On page, Details 11-15, the HTA funding
provision partially funded by grant, and if I’m looking at this, this is the 11-15 for
OM-0 109 and part of the 70,000. That’s what further my notes are.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: That’s on Page 11-15?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Details 11-15 on OM-0 109. So the 2018 amount requesting
is 14,709.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: HTA funding, position partially funded by grant.
enough but there’s something going on with that grant monies and...

Not clear

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That’s right.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So.. .Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So correct me if I’m wrong, but what’s going on is that $70,000
from that grant is going into this position and we are supplementing it. In the Budget
Details, it says we’re supplementing it for 14,709, but Ms. Sugimura has said that no,
we’re actually being asked to supplement it for 24,627.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So that part is County funds, General Fund

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --to supplement the $70,000 grant.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: They would need more money. That’s correct. Yes, Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: May I ask if Ms. Yoshimura can find that OED letter or if
Budget Director has it, ‘cause I can’t find it on my desk. But this was explained in a
letter from Ms. Rasmussen to all of us if any of you can find it. I don’t have it filed in
my...
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CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay.

I’ve asked... are you guys.. .you have consensus on that number?

No?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m comfortable at the 14,709. I don’t know where the 20, you know,
I’m not comfortable with just adding 10,000 without knowing where, what the
justification is.
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: It’s because of fringe and...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Fringe?
MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’re going to vote on this. There’s no consensus. Okay. Those
that support 14,709, raise your hand so I can count. One...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Fourteen seven oh nine?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fourteen seven oh nine.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I can’t find the letter so...
CHAIR HOKAMA: One.. .two. .three. .four. .five.. six.
move forward. Okay, 11-17, Ms. Sugimura.
.

.

.

.

Okay, yeah, 14,709 is what’s going to

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So it is that same grant, Chair, 744, and it is the positions
within her office is what Ms. Rasmussen described and using that grant to help pay
for the spreading amongst the positions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There’s no grant money to use to pay for this. Where are you going to pay
for this? There is no grant money. The grant money is committed to fringes and
salary for that position, the HTA position three-quarter time.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Can I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re making decisions, it’s now or never.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Ms. Yoshimura

Well, I have no more information so I defer to you or

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Don’t look at the Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --or Budget Director.
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MS. ARAKI-REGAN: Teena, I can get Teena on the phone, put her on speaker phone. Would
that be...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we’re not doing speaker phone. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Sorry, I can’t explain it properly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you fund it?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Where would I fund it from?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, if you folks

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Can you...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --cannot fund then do not make the proposal Okay. So... okay. Are you
guys ready with the number? Okay, we’re doing the adjusted so 959,544 plus 14,709
is the new number. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So the first number you said was what? I’m sorry, I missed
it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine five nine five four four plus 14,709.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, I see what you~re saying. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 95...
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I can’t clarify so consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re moving forward. Next, Ms. Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 31, line 769.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. White, there’s, I have your initial.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m okay with that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I think I also wanted to revisit this. I wanted to propose that we
put the school garden network back to 25,000.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Take 10,000 out of the Farm Bureau to fund that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --I would rather that we... I know that Ms. Huff mentioned
that... I don’t know, she didn’t mention it personally to me about not wanting to be
proviso’d under the...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, this is not proviso’d.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, no, no, no. It’s not under proviso but I’m saying that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr~ Guzman, calm. Please, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, I’m just...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: All right. I’m just.. .if I would be allowed to finish

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --my.. .without being interrupted by either side of me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m just.. .what I was going to say, Chair, was that although
the Farm Bureau doesn’t have a mentoring program, it probably would be helpful if we
did proviso it under the Farm Bureau so that there could be some type of connection
between the school garden and... or I mean the school network garden and the Farm
Bureau. Although it is organic, we gotta start bridging both types of communities,
conventional and natural farming. They can work together. So that’s my point
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --was that we don’t need to actually deduct from it. It’d
probably be more helpful if we would just basically try to have them work together,
because there’s been this separation for so many years, one or the other. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: But you’re not proposing a proviso at this time are you, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. So she’s asking to deduct it right at this time, but I’m
saying if you just wait until we have the period of when we go through the proviso
section, we can put it in as a proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah. That would be on Monday, Members, that the Chair will
entertain those provisos and the tweaks. Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I can appreciate Mr. Guzman’s concept, but perhaps the,
that consideration of the proviso when we do get there can be under Hawaii Farmers
Union. But that’s following his same concept. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Go ahead. So far clarification then, for the Maui School
Garden Network, based upon the conversation the, we’re looking at the total for them
is going to be 25,000, you’re including the 10 with them or are you recognizing 15
total?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My number that I’m proposing to you is 15. Okay. Mr. Guzman made
comments of how he wants to look at the so-called 10,000 which is, a proposal is
going to be proposed on Monday through a proviso proposal is what he’s making a
recommendation. So I’m asking you folks for any other discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you’~re okay, Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. So totally in favor of restoring Maui
School Garden Network, and I think Ms. Crivello brought it up earlier in reference to
taking money from Farm Bureau to proviso for this entity, it was something, I don’t
know, having to do with their grants or something or other, they preferred not to then.
And so I see... and then I’m focusing on Ms. King’s initial proposal which is to deduct
that ten from Maui County Farm Bureau. No provisos, just deduct ten from there,
add it to school garden, period. And so I think trying to bridge the gap would have
been really nice during the Kula Ag Park Committee work and the people that we set
on that board, because it was all non-organic and everything committee as it stands.
Because it was stated by OED that that is not their intent on that ag park. So that
-
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whole idea kind of went out the window back then. But I think this is a clean way of
finding 10,000 out of a huge pot of 325,000 at this time. So I support the proposal
that Ms. King initially proposed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So by... the Maui County Farm Bureau provides work for all
farmers. I don’t know if we want to delete from their pot 10,000. They already spread
themselves pretty thinly throughout the community. So if there’s another way of
doing it so you don’t deduct from them because of the reach that they have and the
work that they’re doing, I would be opposed to deducting it from there. Can get them
to work together, I’m not sure. It might be a conversation we may have to, you know,
have with Ms. Huff and based upon the conversations that I’m hearing tonight from
others.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I like Mr. Guzman’s idea of trying to bridge so I like the idea of a
proviso. So I would be comfortable waiting until Monday to deal with this, but the
other option might be to utilize 5,000 from Agricultural Promotion and 5,000 from the
Farm Bureau instead of taking the 10 out of, all out of 1 place. So I could live with
reducing Ag Promotion to 95 and moving the 5 into the Maui County Farm Bureau
and then on Monday proviso’ing the 10,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s another way of approaching it, that’s for sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Skin the cat.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay, you learn fast. You learn fast.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know, Chair, the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, thank you. The 10,000 it’s my understanding was to be
provided so that they could try to find some type of person that could replace Ms. Huff
at some point. So I, what I’m trying to do even with my first proposal to try to go out,
you know, not go after but consider the botanical gardens. We need that type of either
botanical gardens or the Farm Bureau, getting their involvement in there, because
they’ve got other people that could probably come in and mentor or be a mentee in
that organic-type process. And it’s all the same, it’s just trying to bridge between the
two different styles of farming. Because farming, agriculture is all benefitting one
thing, it’s our ama, our families, our, the production of food. So that’s my concept in
both types of proposals. So thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Well, we have a variety of ways of skinning the cat on
this one. That’s for sure. Conceptually I like the idea of bridging. I think that’s
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something we need to do, try and bring people together or groups together instead of
keeping them separated. So I’m more willing to find a way to, as Mr. Guzman uses,
bridge, but I’m looking at trying to bring groups together. So I’m more into looking at
the proviso portion. So...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I think one of... I guess it depends on how the proviso is
written, because I don’t see this school garden group being mentored by the Farm
Bureau. I can see them receiving the monies from the Farm Bureau and maybe
working together. But the Farm Bureau is really not focused on the type of farm, of
gardening and farming that the school garden network does.
CHAIR HOKAMA: True. Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And also they’re more heavily focused, I mean they have a big
focus on ranching and some other types of conventional. So I wouldn’t want to see it
as a requirement to mentor. You know I think the hope is that there’ll be interaction
and an understanding on both sides. So it... to me, it would, you know, that’s why I
think it’s cleaner if we just take it. But if the, this body wants to do a proviso, I think
it’s just gotta be important how the proviso is written.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would agree, we need to make sure the language is appropriate and
accurate enough. So I understand that. Okay, but is not the County’s job or this
Committee’s job to provide funding for replacing personnel. Okay. That’s not what we
do this kind of appropriation for. We’re not here as like a hiring or a, you know, we’re
not... I don’t know how to use the word. Well, we’re not a job agency, guys, okay.
That’s not the purpose of the appropriation. We are into the program and what, not
about how we’re going to help them change positions or have replacement hires.
Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I’m interested in.. .what kind of activity has taken place under
line 749 under Agriculture Promotion? And would.. .what if we were to take the
10,000 from that and give it to the school garden network which is also promoting
agriculture and connection of food production with the youth programs? Would
taking 10,000 away from that Ag Promotion.. .when using that 10,000, you~re still
promoting agriculture.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, understood.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: And keeping it clean and there’s no...
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s see, this current fiscal year, Members, the Ag Promotion money is,
let’s see, Farm Apprentice Mentoring, the FAM thing is 75,000.
That’s to the
foundation. To the union side, they have a 12,000 grant from Ag Promotion so right
there is 87,000. Let’s see, 43, Maui Food Technologies, that is the Tokyo Gift Show,
Japan Food Expo, export training, Maui County... Hawaii Farm Bureau gets 10,000,
Maui Olive Company gets 19,000, University of Hawaii Food Accelerator 15,000,
University of Hawaii FSMA Safety Training 12,400. And Tn-Isle RC&D and that’s
where the 15,000 is currently for the school garden network, Mr. Atay. So that’s why,
you know, my issue is here again it’s funded from another big pot but yet now we have
a line item so...
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So you’re getting 15 on a line item and you got 15 in that 100?
CHAIR HOKAMA: For, in the current year, yes

--

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --they’re funded through the Ag Promotion budget.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: And inside that you also got 10 for Farm Bureau.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hawaii Farm Bureau, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So what we’re trying to solve is 10,000 additional for the school
garden network. My question is, can we find 10,000 within that Ag Promotion, either
choosing.. .1 don’t know, but you already have 15,000 for the same group.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s what I mean, mister...
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So they should get 30,000 then.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Chair, if I could?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So the way that this is structured with the Ag Promotion,
Member Atay, the Tn-Isle RC&D is the fiscal
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Pass-through.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --sponsor

--
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, the pass-through.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --that the use. And this 15 versus what’s on our chart is
the same thing, they~re not.. .it’s not double. So they’re actually asking as we’re talking
about an additional 10,000. So we can either do what Member Guzman said or maybe
what Mr. White about putting in 5/5 in Ag Promotion and adding it, you know, or
Farm Bureau or just taking it from... or just doing it under Ag Promotion. It probably
looks cleaner, that they would probably...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We just do it from one pot. It’s easier and cleaner for us.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Probably easier. So Ag Promotion, the 25 or if that’s what
we’re talking about instead of splitting it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So we can either a proviso which it’s currently the current way for
the current year.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah, 10,000 come out of Ag Promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Or 25, right, is what you’re saying.. .what we’re saying.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, is that out of that 100,000 we’re talking about?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Okay. So any other comments? If not, you heard the revised
proposal, take.. .either proviso or shift 10,000 into school garden network. Okay. Are
you guys okay with the 10,000 first?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: From?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I’ll allow you folks till Monday to either decide whether we do the
shift or we do the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay with the shift.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You want to shift it?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Shift it.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Ag Promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll shift. Consensus?
-
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Moving forward.
MS. ESPELETA: Line 32.. .on Page 32, line 773 and 786.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. CTAHR, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: It’s part of your favorite governance with the State of Hawaii.
I do not know where to get the 75,000, and I would ask you to try and find it for us
but I know of your feeling. But I’d just like to say, you know, we just push all the
issues for Maui School Garden, we go with.. .we have all these ag. all these
opportunities for ag, and yet here we are with all the technicians that come out of
University of Hawaii CTAHR Program. I can refer to CTAHR from our family’s farming,
and I don’t know where to get this except maybe on Page 62 and 63, there’s some
funding that we moved out of the... I need to come back. But I want to see this happen
because especially for the safety food demands that are coming, that will be coming
down from the Federal government. With all the kind of.. .what we are experiencing
with many of our produce that buying local is scary today because of the type of
disease that are coming out of that. But these are... they come with the technician,
they come with the expert, they come with all the training, and they are constantly
available to support all farmers, and it’s not only Maui, it’s Molokai and Lanai also. So
I would like to have another opportunity to come back here, because... give me
about... go through some more and come back, Chair.
. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any objections to that? Mr. White, yes, sir?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know I also feel that this is a very important program for us to
consider continuing because of the... I find a significantly higher level of energy having
been brought to this program. And I think the Department and CTAHR have worked
very well together to do solid research. I think with the rat lungworm and other
challenges that we have, I would be more comfortable continuing our relationship with
them in this way. Even though the State guys have been sticking it to us all day
today, my feeling is that we’ve been, you know, as a person who pays not very willingly
but effectively into the State coffers about $2.3 million a year, we’ve made a
reasonably conservative estimate of TAT revenues.
And I would ask your
consideration of covering this out of the TAT revenues by increasing or recognizing
$75,000 more in revenues. And it’s coming from my hotel, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know the way things going, Members, I don’t want to touch my revs.
We’re going to need every dollar, every dollar. So you can be more optimistic, if it
doesn’t hit, doesn’t hit.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, may I ask a question and maybe then I can try and
understand? So the Waikapu Basketball Court Improvements, was it changed to
bonding and that money put back into cash?
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m not. .we gotta double check.
.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Page 62 and 63.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’re paying that with cash.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Can I use some of that cash fund?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair, I.. .in the beginning knowing the position of University of
Hawaii’s role, being a State government representative, you know, and I know just like
what Chair White said, the State’s been sticking it to us and so we wanted to hold that
line. But, you know, when you look at it, this is a critical Department that contributes
to our community, especially the farming community, the food production community.
Seventy-five [sic] dollars, and thank you to Member~ Crivello finding Waikapu
Community Center. I...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Sorry, I never ask you first.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: No, I mean I think as much as I want to see the kids have their
basketball court, I would ask that, you know, if they can develop the basketball court
at a rate of 425 I guess and be able to keep this program open, I’m support for
Crivello’s proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Mr. Atay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
courts into bonding?

Yeah.

So don’t we want to put the Waikapu basketball

CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Wasn’t that the conversation? No?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I think we heard testimony and we got written testimony
also from the organization. And CTAHR provides ground... educational opportunities
for our farmers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair has no issue with what CTAHR does.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Just trying to find the money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m just saying that I find it hard to deny County departments and give to
a State agency County money. We’re denying County departments now, some of their
requests. Just remember that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Chair, I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
So I believe that the services that CTAHR provides
enhances different things in the County that we do not necessarily provide which is
the Food Safety Modernization Act and they have their expertise in that area. The
ever-growing concern for the, you know, the rat lungworm disease that’s spreading in
the community or that concern and they~re right there in the forefront. So they
provide services that I think that it is to our benefit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: And I would like to support them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Anyone else? Okay, time for a break. We’ll take a
recess till five to the hour.
(gavel).
.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

.

9:48 p.m.
9:58 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).
We’re back in order. Okay, Mr. Atay is not here, but I will
tell you as your Chair, I don’t agree in defunding Phase II of this project for Wailuku.
We made a commitment to that community that we’re gonna split the project, take
care of the first half, which we did, and then we’ll follow up with the funding on the
second half which we are currently doing, okay. As the Chair understands it, it’s a
ready-to-go project so I’m not going to do anything to jeopardize finishing that
Waikapu project, okay. That is not the solution. I appreciate the gesture, Mr. Atay,
.

.

.

.

.

-
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but no, we’re going to finish and follow through what we told that community, okay,
with that money.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No more. I don’t know where else to go. Yeah, that’s fine.
CHAIR

HOKAMA:
With CTAHR, you know, I’ve heard your discussion.
My
recommendation.. .you know this process ain’t working ‘cause I’m not the one
supposed to be coming up with the answers, you guys were supposed to come up with
the answers for your proposals. Okay. The Chair would recommend we reduce
Countywide Police Facilities by 75,000. They have still 100 percent available in the
current year’s balances as of the third quarter. They~re requesting.. .what page would
that be on, Ms. Sugimura [sic]? Page 40...

MS. YOSHIMURA: Police is on Page 64.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sixty-four. Thank you. Okay. We already reduced it by, to 500,000.
Okay. I’m going to recommend you take out 75,000 from here.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Don’t thank me, you better thank Police.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I will.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I say no. Chair, I support your original proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I’d like to vote on this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Okay. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I thank you and I hope we can consider taking your
recommendation from the Countywide Police.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, there is no consensus. Those in favor of doing the Chair’s
recommendation, raise your hand.
One... two... three.. .four. five.., six.
Okay.
It
passes.
. .
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank Police. That’s where it’s coming from to fund these guys.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thanks, Chief.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you deal with Police on Monday. Okay, regarding the Economic
Development pots for Central, South, and West, the Chair’s proposal for all of you is
I’m going to delete Culture and Arts, 150,000. I am going to take the 100,000 from
Economic Development Initiatives. I’m taking 25,000 from First.. .for First Friday from
Planning. And I’m going to take 25,000 from Small Business for a total of $300,000.
The Chair will then in my recommendation is Central would have 100,000, South
would have 100,000 and West would have $100,000 pots of cash. That is your Chair’s
proposal without changing revenues or anything else. I’m just making adjustments.
Yes, Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
Arts...

Could you repeat the, your total concept?

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I created the Culture and Arts

Culture and

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --okay, so I’m going to smash that, take that 150 from there. I’m taking
100,000 from Economic Development Initiatives.
I’m taking 25,000 from Small
Business, and I’m taking 25,000 from the Planning Department for First Friday. That
equals 300,000. That will be divided 100,000 into 3 different regional pots. That is
your Chair’s proposal. Discussion? Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, it’s done.
Ms. Espeleta.

We’re moving forward.

Thank you.

The next one,

MS. ESPELETA: Page 33, line 803.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ka Ipu Kukui. My number is still there, 15. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, is there a way of adding back the 10,000 to make
it 25,000? I think we heard a lot of testimony and we...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tell me how you want to fund it.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I guess with some possible tax increase or...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And I may not have the numbers correct but on Page 37,
line 924, was all of that 100,000 moved to the
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --Central pots?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah. So that doesn’t exist no more.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That doesn’t exist anymore and

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I was going to suggest we go there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, your Chair will give you a few more moments. If not, we’re going to
move on. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, why don’t you take the 10,000 from Central Cultural
Program which was the 100,000 and well do the 90,000 in Central. And then when
proviso day comes or I’d like to proviso the 10,000 so that they, the Fellow leadership
program does some type of activity in Kahului with Filipino Association or whatever
cultural group there is in Central.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that. Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: I fully support that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I appreciate Mr. Guzman’s generosity, but I was
looking at Maui Arts and Cultural Center, capital amount of 410, just rounding that
off to 400. And...
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you hear the adjustment from capital MACC, reduction of 10,000 to
be placed in Ka Ipu Kukui.
-
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What line?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m sorry. On line 866 on Page 35.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments? Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Next, Ms. Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 36, line 895.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight nine five. Environmental Protection I have Mr. White’s initials.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
Thank you, Chair.
Chair, it’s been said many times that our
environment is our economy or our economy is our environment. And so my intent is
to move $200,000 from line 920 on Page 37, the funding for Maui County Visitors
Bureau.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And so, Chair, I’d like to move to approve funding of line 895, Grants
for Environmental Protection in the amount of $1,515,000 and the funding of the
Maui County Visitors Association in the amount of $4 million on line 920.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If I can get a second to that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I second.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Second.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, motioned and second.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And, Chair, you know, unlike other counties, Maui has always strongly
supported our environmental projects, we’ve already spent.. .1 think we generally spend
more than any other county in watersheds and environmental protection combined
that has allowed us to get EPA grants in greater amounts than the other counties
because we have the infrastructure already in place. Maui also strongly supports
tourism promotion. We’ve done so for many, many years. The Big Island from time to
time has put some in, Kauai from time to time has put some in. Oahu never has
because they don’t need to because of the synergy that they have with flights and the
significant economic engine they’ve got going on over there. And I think we can all
agree that the growth of the visitor industry here has brought many benefits but it’s
-
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also brought impacts. And I think those of us in the industry recognize both the
benefits and the impacts. So I realize that there are continuing challenges in the
environmental arena and so I think it’s appropriate for us to make this change. And I
hope that my colleagues will support me in this move. And I’d just like to put it in
perspective that with this Budget at this current level of property tax increase asks of
the Maui visitor plant $124 million this year. That’s up from about 100 and...I can’t
remember, 112, 115, I’m not sure exactly, and that’s from Maui’s hotels, condos, and
timeshares. At the same time, the islands of Hawaii and Kauai have a few... they have
about 8 percent less hotel rooms than we have. And last year, the Hawaii County
visitor plant generated only $13.5 million for the County of Hawaii. The County of
Kauai generated 23.5 million in real property tax for that county. The Maui visitor
plant generates 3 times the amount of real property tax for Maui County than both of
those counties combined, and we do it, Chair, with just 26,000 more visitors than visit
those other 2 islands. So proportionally with relatively the same impact of visitors,
we’re generating 3 times the real property tax. So as a hotel manager and as a father
and as a part of the community, I really appreciate the direction that the County of
Maui has gone over the years, because we’ve invested in environmental programs and
we’ve invested in developing a very strong economy. And the strength of the Maui real
property taxes generated by the visitor industry are really what provides us the
capacity and the flexibility to fund all the programs that we’ve gone through for
nonprofits, from MEO Transportation, for all the social services. And from a hotel
perspective I love this, because I know that when my visitors leave the hotel property
and come out to enjoy Maui, they’re going to be greeted by a welcoming and friendly
community, because we have shown the aloha by taking care of our keiki, by taking
care of our kupuna, and by taking care of those that make some bad decisions in life
and get involved in drinking or drugs or other activities that are not very healthy. So
it’s from that perspective that I feel very comfortable making this move. I feel very
comfortable as I think everybody knows with the level of funding for Maui Visitors
Bureau, because it’s that investment that has allowed us to keep the Maui name out
in the public and has allowed us to generate the kinds of support from the visitor
industry that we’ve been able to do. We currently generate... actually these are last
year’s figures, not with the new taxes, but we generate $51 in real property
tax...$5,100 in real property tax per room. That compares to $3,800 per room on
Oahu, about $2,800 per room on Kauai and 1,100 rooms...I’m sorry, $1,100 per room
on the Big Island. So the visitor industry is providing a very significant investment in
the welfare of the community by supporting a large percentage of not only the core
services but the nonprofits as well. So with that I would hope that my colleagues
would support me with this recommendation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello? Ms. Sugimura, Ms. King.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I just... I.. .is this just going be completely
for environmental protection, or are you going to proviso later on for invasive species?
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My intent is simply to put the money in, not to proviso it. Because I
think it needs to be left up to the environmental community in working with the
Economic Development Department. They’ve done a pretty good job of deciding where
the priorities are over the years, and I think the, between the folks that are involved in
the environmental community and the Department, I’d rather they choose than me.
So
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --thank you for the question.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. And, Chair, I just wanted to add for Mr. White, I just
read in the business, PacWc Business News, that first quarter hotel revenues
1.1 billion and Maui had the highest. Just in the first quarter of this year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I’d like to support Chair White in this motion. And I
really commend him in many aspects, because we all know besides doing this job that
he does in terms of leading us as the Chair of this Council, he is a general manager for
his hotel property. And for him to have always that broad vision and to lead us in a
direction that is a right vision, I commend him for taking this step. And I think a lot of
us, you know, can stand by him and his motion. So thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yes, Chair, I didn’t know if this is the time or are we going to take
this first and then I can address my proposal for this pot or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, right now we deal with the motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else? Okay. You heard the motion. All in favor of it?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone oppose? Okay, it’s done.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers Atay, Carroll, Cochran, Crivello,
Guzman, King, and Sugimura.

NOES:

None.
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ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. And thank you to Mr. White for that proposal. I
wanted to propose increasing the line in here and I’m not sure if this is a proviso but
the environmental protection on, for the Maui Nui Marine Resources to 169.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn’t that part of the...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: It’s in the Environmental Protection and Management.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: What page?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:

.

.

.

(inaudible)...

COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, actually because... and I wasn’t sure if I had to do this
because actually it was 75,000
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --so with the 90...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maui Nui for the original 1.3, Ms. Rasmussen is saying that part of the 1.3
allocation would go 169 for Maui Nui Marine Resources.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right. That’s with the 94,000 I was proposing so I didn’t know if I
needed to propose that since she
--

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --already put in here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s in here.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s in here. Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I was just going to mention we can... if she wants to proviso
something we can do it on Monday.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, she did put it in the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: But it’s in her attachment

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that she’s already

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --telling the Committee

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --where the money is...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I just didn’t know if I needed to make that motion, but I’m good
with, you know, what she...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but the money is there, Ms. King.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay. Next, Staff.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 37, line 911.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine one one. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, thank you. This is MISC and Coqui Frog
Eradication Project and I think I explained earlier, you might have heard about this
300,000 that was allocated and that we have added 200,000 more which gives it the
-
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500,000, and they actually had asked if they could get to, back to their $1 million
amount to do the coqui frog eradication, because they need to get the job done or
keeping on working at it. So I don’t know where to get the additional 500,000. I don’t
know if it’s from this Environmental Protection Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you.. .no, don’t touch that.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I would like to get them to their $1 million...
CHAIR HOKAMA: How you want to pay for it?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I don’t know what pot to get it from if not the environmental
is what I was thinking. Unless if we...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That pot is closed. We had.. .we voted and had consensus so we not
reopening pots we closed. So you need... so you have no funding plan?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I have... I don’t know where to get it from, Chair, unless if
we do some of the tax when we get to that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. We’ve been working on the coqui frog one
for quite a while, and the last time had a million dollars even though we had a lot of
money, we can only do so much on top there. We are limited to what we can do no
matter how much money we have, and I’m satisfied with that 500,000 for now. And
we’ve had the discussion over here and other places about how to approach it
differently with contractors, because we’re just not getting there. So I’d prefer to leave
it for there and get it into committee and start looking... I don’t know if anybody
remembers the discussion we had about looking other ways to go over there and
attack the problem, because we really need to take a close look at it first or how we are
proceeding in this eradication. So far it has been very.. .we have some control but it’s
not really working. We need to start seriously considering how we’re going to spend
our money to get more bang for our dollar. So I’d be satisfied with this for now,
because I think we need to really go over there and try to determine how we are going
to proceed from this point on. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, we’re moving on. Next.
MS. ESPELETA: Chair, Page 37, line 920, I have a note...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s closed.
MS. ESPELETA: Okay.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We just did the, through the motion.
MS. ESPELETA: Okay, then Page 41, line 1013.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One... one zero...
MS. ESPELETA: One zero one three. I believe Member Cochran had a proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Host Compliance.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
MS. ESPELETA: One zero one three, Page 41.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. That was... Chair, was there... oh yeah, the TVR
enforcement was to go in this section. The 80, I guess rounded off to 80 to assist
ZAED for enforcement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, this is the area we would add it right, Staff? Yeah. So you can... so
under professional services, we’re going to reduce that number by 80,000. So it’s... so
with the reduce is now 68,500 and then well add a line, 80,000 for third-party
enforcement. Or
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --what is the word you’re going to use?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, not enforcement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’re going to use the, whatever the language Corp. Counsel
recommends.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Investigate or assist.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Investigative services or evaluate...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Could we work with provided that $80,000 be utilized for
contract services to assist with administrative enforcement?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
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MR. UEOKA: Within the, it’ll be within the Planning Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard the recommendation from Corp. Counsel. That would
be the Chair’s recommendation.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So we already did the, put it up to 200,000 for that previously?
We’re talking about the professional services under Planning?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we didn’t restore right?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Restore to 200,000 and then we were going to add the 80,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Oh, that’s right. Yeah, we took...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Restored 90,000
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we restored 90 which was the balance to come up to that number
you wanted, right?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right, right. And then we add

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --the 80 so...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then we’re going to add the proviso that 80 of that...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: On top of the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Explain that again please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re adding a proviso, yeah, and then we’re going to add 80,000 but
that’s my job to find the 80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: But, Chair, just to clarify. We, first we went, we brought it back
up to 200,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And then we put the 80 on top of that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then I’m.. .yeah. I’m

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --agreeing

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: So it’s 280.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to the 80 and that I will find the money for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, next line.
MS. ESPELETA: Same page, line 1021.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ten twenty-one, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’d like to see that restored but
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I can’t find the 15. So talk about environment but I guess
we pick and choose.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re moving forward. Next, Ms. Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 47, line 1144.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One one four four, Ms. Crivello, Human Services Transportation
Fund.

-

General

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. After reviewing the detail lines, I think I’m going to
leave it as is, because the expansion request is to adjust for staff salary increases and
benefits. So I’ll leave it at that for now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Six one eight zero, zero one three million
dollars. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, moving forward.
Ms. Cochran.

Public Transit Program

-

Highway Fund,

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That was the...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I thought we had consensus on that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And we... and, Chair, the

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I’m...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
810

--caveat on this one, remember.

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Ten, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --with caveat to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Are you...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mister...
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I think the, I think we said that we were going to ask the Department
for an amount to cover surveys and other...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, yes. So we have that and then...
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yes, Members, just before we broke, Chair requested for me to
make contact with one of the purveyors, I think was MEO to, if they could assist us
with a rough, just trying to do like a short leg in the Waihee. So this was really a
last-minute request that I made to Debbie Cabebe of MEO, and she was able to get her
finance people on it. This is best guesstimate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, we appreciate the follow-up, Mr. Atay, so thank you so much.
We did get a comment, Budget Director was able to contact County DOT, so they said
they cannot, wouldn’t be able or ready to do a pilot shuttle program. They said if
Council were to add 50,000, we can either do a survey study for Waihee ridership
outreach and how then we would go about creating an alternative shuttle
transportation pilot program in rural areas rather than having the standard fixed
route system. And the added funds can be proviso’d for that purpose. We agree with
the Committee that trying to have more discussions on new routes and route
expansions while in Budget is tough so having discussion in the appropriate subject
matter committee is a good idea. Please keep in mind our Maui Short Range Transit
Plan was put together. We had passenger surveyors that was, conducted surveys on
weekday fixed route services to obtain transit rider characteristics, transit trip
behaviors, needs, and wants. Okay. Well, they obviously not following the Short
Range Transit Plan, because the expansions was for ‘19 and through ‘21. Okay. So
that’s where we’re at. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I really appreciate you coming up with this idea
and Mr. Atay following up with some numbers. What... since we have consensus on
this number, are we going to discuss this, send it to committee for discussion?
Because it seems to me that if we do this in Waiehu then this would also work in Kula,
and this could be funded out of the existing Kula fixed route, we could fund both of
them. And it might even be a stretch.. .not be too much of a stretch to fund Baldwin
Avenue. But at the same time, that’s something that needs to be discussed in the
committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And I recall when we funded the East End Molokai, I don’t remember
what the number was but there was, it was a less-frequent service and I.. .but I love
the direction that we’re going because we’re solving problems without spending
anywhere near as much money. So my understanding is we’re leaving the number as
is, and then weU come up with the solution after it goes through the discussion at
committee. Is that your understanding?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I want, that’s why I wanted to look at the projections, yeah, on the
so-called shuttle idea that we planted, the seed we planted. So I’m looking at that as
well as the 50,000 for the surveys, ‘cause I think that outreach of getting community
what they think, what time of the day they want the service, how... frequency of
service. If they say for us it’s Monday through Friday, we don’t care about Saturday,
we need to get to work and whatnot, Monday-Friday is the key part of the week. I
mean that’s what we need to know.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I would agree looking at certain routes regarding the subsidies, this
may be another approach that makes better sense as well as funding sense. And so
I’m very intrigued because I think Kula, maybe Baldwin, but again, we need to do the
steps so we can verify the numbers and make sure that what we do makes sense and
we’re not making it worse.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And, Chair, just, you know, for the record. I’m comfortable with the
order in which the, you know, the transit plan sets it up. It brings up Waiehu before
Baldwin Avenue and I’m comfortable with that. So anyway, I’m excited about the
direction. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
the 10,8.

So, Members, what I would say is we already have consensus on

COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m going to ask.. .we already have that, yeah. What I’m going to ask you is
I’m going to keep this information from the Department as well as from Mr. Atay, and
Ill take this under my wing and see the calculations that the Staff and I will do on
Saturday and Sunday, and then Monday on the final adjustments, I’ll give you my
recommendation on whether we proviso certain things or it’ll fit within my definition of
tweaks. Yeah. ‘Cause it’s not about big changes and... so that everything else has to
be adjusted. So if you don’t mind, Members, if we can move forward with allowing the
Chair that flexibility to move, at least take this into consider and see how we can
implement it within the numbers we currently have. Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And thank you, Chair. It might be appropriate for us to have
Ms. Cabebe share with us the timing of the East Maui service, and the... and I think
maybe we were just adding weekend service, Ms. Crivello? I... anyway, just to give you
financial flexibility so you have kind of a low number and a higher number.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We~1l ask

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It might be helpful to get

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --her for the number.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --some additional numbers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll ask her for the number.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any objections to having Ms. Cabebe come and

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --share some comments on this?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Oh, she’s here.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: First, thank you for being here at this time of night.
yourself for us please.
MS. CABEBE: Debbie Cabebe, Maui Economic Opportunity CEO.
Councilmembers.

Yeah, introduce

Good evening, Chair,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MS. CABEBE: It is still evening, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so last year I believe we made an adjustment to expand East
Molokai and that you were the provider of the service.
MS. CABEBE: Yes. I was trying to think about that. I know when we first extended, I
believe it was to accommodate Saturdays. So since then, we’ve adjusted it several
times so I honestly don’t have exact numbers for you right now. I know just recently
our branch director on Molokai, Yolanda Reyes rode along on some of the routes, and
so they’ve been kind of trying to work with the community and tweak it. So, you
know, close-knit community so they adjust it on a regular basis. So I wouldn’t be able

-

191

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

to give you an exact number right now.
Monday.

I could probably get that to you maybe by

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I believe the Manae route which is the East Molokai route is
still frequented with numbers. They tried the west side, they cancelled that because it
didn’t turn out.
MS. CABEBE: Right, low ridership.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, I mean, you know, everything will help the Committee so if
there’s something maybe by Monday morning you could share with us, that would be
great.
MS. CABEBE: I might be able to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, if you can. I understand this is Friday night, late Friday night so

--

MS. CABEBE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I understand.
appreciative.

But whatever information you can share, we would be

MS. CABEBE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Cabebe.
MS. CABEBE: You’re welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, so any problem with the Chair’s recommendation? Yes,
Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair, as Kula route got included in this conversation, I
wonder if as you mentioned, you know, possibly looking at this for Kula. But also in
the survey if we are going to extend the survey for Kula or do something, I need to
communicate with the community or find out what’s happening
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Again

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --in terms of depth and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we are not just going to cut and stop tomorrow the service. Okay. If
anything, well give appropriate time. And if we do move to, from a bus route to a
shuttle route, of course there’s a transitioning period as well as an assessment of
equipment, what we have, what we may need to make it work. So there’s more than
just the route cost, there might be equipment requirements, staffing adjustments. So
I think we need to know the whole picture so we make the best decision, yeah. But
--
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COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I appreciate it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that’s.. .but the key is we are moving to get that information before this
Committee so that we can make that decision. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. No, thank you, all. Okay, Ms. Espeleta, next.
MS. ESPELETA: Page 69, line 1705.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Waiale Road Extension, Ms. King. Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, thank you. Yeah, I did, I was able to contact Mr. Spence
and I believe Ms. Regan. .1 mean Ms. Regan. the Director, Budget Director contacted
the Mayor about this project. I have a... I printed out what he texted me about this. I
don’t know if this is...
.

. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: The Mayor gave me a phone call

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and we had a long conversation

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and I told him as my memory recollected, it happened 26 years ago and I
was correct, 1991, Ordinance No. 2051, Bill No. 70 of 1991. We have a bunch of
conditions on this project, and it’s not about the project that mister--gosh, I can see
his face--Mr. Atherton is currently before the Land Use Commission. This is a
Commission and County approval that was done decades ago. Okay. So one of the
conditions--and yes, they have multiple on this project--reads the extension,
construction, and improvement of Waiale Drive from the vicinity of the proposed
Mahalani Street intersection--that’s the one you take to go up to the hospital--to
Honoapiilani Highway in conformance to the standards of the County of Maui. Land
and construction of this roadway extension is to be funded entirely by the applicant
and shall be offered for dedication to the County of Maui upon completion of its
construction.
There is also D, the intersection of roadway improvements of
Honoapiilani Highway within the project district in conformance of the requirements of
the Highway Division of State DOT, which are to be funded entirely by the applicant.
E, the applicant shall provide its fair and equitable share of the cost of the planning
and construction of a future bypass roadway south of the Waiale Drive extension in
the southern end of the project district past Waikapu Town which includes but which
is not limited to the offer of dedication of the future bypass right-of-way to the
appropriate governmental body. The value of the applicant’s participation in the
improvement in the planning and construction of the roadway shall be credited
against any impact assessment. And also, part of this is of course is 4-A, no building
-
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permits will be issued for any structures on Honoapiilani until a construction contract
has been executed and notice to proceed with construction has been issued for Waiale
Drive from Kaohu Street to Honoapiilani Highway and the extension of Mahalani
Street from the vicinity of Maui Memorial Hospital to Waiale Drive. And the key also
condition is the applicant shall enter into and execute appropriate agreements with
the agency, appropriate agencies of the State and County regarding the applicant’s
required participation in improving the infrastructure and public facilities identified
herein. These agreements shall be filed with the Bureau of Conveyances of the State
of Hawaii upon their execution. Okay, black and white. So as I told the Mayor, this is
a bond project proposal. If and when they can convince us that the conditions have
been met with documentations they can have, they can resubmit this project again
and ask us for a consideration to move the bond forward. Okay. So we don’t need to
finish this in this Budget component, ‘cause it’s being proposed as a bond
consideration. Okay. So for my recommendation to you is do not move this project
forward until we can get verification that these conditions have been appropriately met
regarding this project area. Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Just one question

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --Chair. And I agree with you on the impacts. Is the County
liable for any of those requirements because of our property there with the regional
park?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We would be required to pay our fair share. Again, that’s why for this, the
applicant is required to pay their fair share, yeah, and that’s going to be determined...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, so that has to be determined then?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And it’s hard until you reach construction, get to construction ‘cause this
is for applicants required to pay planning and construction components. So again,
we’re not at the construction stage yet so we have no idea what that number would be
that the applicant must comply with. Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: So that was made 26 years ago.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Is the applicant or the entity still in existence?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The conditions run with the land, sir.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So regardless who owns the land, the conditions still run with the land.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And it is a recorded document with the State bureau. Okay. So if again,
you folks want to follow up, Ordinance 7...no, Ordinance 2053, Bill 70 of 1991. And it
passed seven ayes, two excused.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So yeah, my memory is still pretty good. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So again, I would ask that we just leave it the way I’m recommending. The
Mayor can always come back and submit this separately. Okay. Any objection,
Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next, Ms. Espeleta.
MS. ESPELETA: Chair, I believe Member Cochran had a proposal regarding travel expenses
that we needed to revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you so much. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, thank you, Chair. So I think I failed to mention these
deletions in travel bring all these departments back to flat. So thereby it is not
hindering any current travel plans and arrangements they’ve always done. That’s.. .so
these are all increases to every single travel fund, department that’s on that list that
was handed out. So that was not putting them in the negative at all, just bringing ‘em
back to flat
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --which I don’t think I explained earlier. And this is to offset
the cost for additional monies for West Maui recycle, third Saturdays and adding a
new recycle/cleanup event, one in the Kaupo/Kanaio region which Mr. Carroll and I
had already discussed and he’s in favor too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So total comes to $39,810 is the total that I am seeking.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So that sheet you gave us that had the 59, you’ve adjusted it?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
for West Maui and then...
CHAIR HOKAMA:
happen

So Malama Maui Nui needs an increase of $32,310

Well, let’s go take the, your reduction first because if that doesn’t

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the rest doesn’t happen.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So it’s 39,810. Is that right? What are you look...is
that not what the sheet... and I gave a copy to Budget Director too so she could
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --follow and give all the departments the breakdown.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And it’s on my original Budget proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t... Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: May I have a copy? I would like to know if there’s a
breakdown for, what is it, what travels, you know, who benefits?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well do a short recess to the call of the Chair so you can have the
document.
(gavel)...
.

.

.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:45 p.m.
11:09 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).
Okay, we are back in order. Thank you for that break. So
I’m gonna go back to Ms. Cochran and ask her what is the request that she has for
her
.

.

.

.

.

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --recycle? Please, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. So I am looking for a total
cost of $39,810, and I, if you want the breakdown...

-

196

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2017

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, state the breakdown so the Members are clear on how

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you arrived.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And the breakdown is 32,310 for the West Maui recycling,
third Saturdays, and 7,500 is for a recycling cleanup in the Kaupo-Kanaio area event.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that tallies to that $39,810.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct. Okay. The Chair is recommending that we don’t do any of the
travel cuts. One, not that it’s not.., cannot be done, we can done, I just don’t want to
deal with all these small adjustments to multiple funds right now. But because of the
reinstatement of the 3-can plan, we do have slight balance enough to cover that
39,810. So my recommendation is that we use Solid Waste funds, the balance from
the 3-can plan and take out 39,810 for the 2 programs, West Maui and Kanaio area on
the East Maui side for 39,810. That is your Chair’s recommendation of how to take
care of this request. Any additional comments or do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We~1l do it that way

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and we’ll make the adjustments. Okay, we are done. So but before we
finish, I’m going to remind you... oh yeah, I have to run by couple of things, that’s
right. One, you already know I’m pulling back that provision, right, on the 25 percent
overhead. I need you to look at the bill proposal that we have before you. Okay. This
is something that we’ve talked about in the past, but now we have a bill drafted for
your consideration. This is in regards to appropriation of expenditures, specifically
revolving funds. And we have it broken down into each area. Basically the change is
to make it so that the funds as you see on the first page under letter C shall be
specifically appropriated for expenditure in accordance with the annual Budget
Ordinance. So it will not be anymore pre-appropriated upon receipt. Okay. A fund
will continue to collect its revs, the departments will come in and ask us what they
want to spend the money on, and then Council will give the approval to take the
money out of that specific fund. Okay. That’s the only time you will be able to see it
before it’s spent, how they plan to use the money. ‘Cause currently we are told what
they spent it on after they use the money. ‘Cause that’s the way the language
currently is.
It’s already pre-appropriated upon receipt.
Okay.
That’s the
authorization we gave them in the past. So you see the adjustments in the various
components of the Code. Basically it all goes back, shall come back to the Council
-
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for... and it’s in the annual Budget Ordinance.
So, Mr. White, any comments,
questions at this time on just the proposal? It’s just a proposal now, Members.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I generally agree with the direction you’re going, I’m
just wondering if there may be any timing issues with, you know, with the funds being
available for expenditure.
Does this change mean that as long as they’re
spending.. .no, they would need to come back to us with...
CHAIR HOKAMA: They need to come back and

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --tell us this is their plan of how to use. It’s just like how we do now with
the plan review permit fees component. They collect the money, right, and then they
come back. We already tell them what we’re authorizing X amount of positions, this,
this, this. Anything outside of that they need to have an approval from Council.
Okay. So...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. I agree with the concept, I just want to be sure that... I mean I’d
love to hear from some of the departments whether this is going to create a lag in
availability that would hamper them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. But that’s how we do it now, Members.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, any comments you want to share with the Committee?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I believe this is the practice that the Budget Office has been
following for years now.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
ma’am?

Thank you.

Ms. Sugimura?

Mr. Atay?

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll? Ms. King?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Just about, we’re just on this thing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, no questions on this. I have another question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I just wanted to bring this up for your review and discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I don’t recall that we.. .1 don’t know if we need to do this now, but
I don’t recall that we ever reinstated on Page 1, line 31, the curbside recycling revenue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We took care that. So yeah, that is already adjusted

--

COUNCILMEMBER KING: That is? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --since we made the decision to reinstate.
COUNCILMEMBER KING:
gave us?

Okay.

Did we adjust it to the new figure that the Department

CHAIR HOKAMA: Are we.. .no, we’re not ready to give you the new adjusted number yet.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll take care of that on Monday. Okay. So

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Members.. .yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I don’t.. .Page 76, 1899, that’s the Makena lifeguard.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank... oh, thank you for bringing that up.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Did.. .yeah, I don’t recall having discussion on this or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
catch.

No, thank you for bringing that up.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Seventy-six, line 1899.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 1899. So, Members, seeing where we are with the State on tort, I’m
going to ask you that we choose to terminate being the agent for the State regarding
lifeguard services at Makena State Park. Again, this is grant revenue. The State still
has the money, they can either use their own departments or DLNR to perform the
service. Again, the employees are LTA, they’re not under us directly or as permanent
positions. Or the State can choose to hire another third-party agent to do what we
were doing as their agent. But my thing is, I think the State is thinking that we’re not
serious about how we look at things. And so my thing is, don’t dare call the bluff on
this County. This County has the financial wherewithal to be able to have more
options than others. So for me it’s a statement about how the State is treating
counties in general and this County specifically. Again, it will not change the numbers
on the Budget for us. Okay. This is grant revenue, grant employees on limited-term
appointments. Any discussion? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I just wanted to say that I’m sorry to, for the employees because
that’s 10.5 employees, but I understand why we’re doing this and I do think it’s a
smart move to cover our okole.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, any comments at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So basically the 10.5 personnel, equivalent personnel will be
absorbed by us or we’re...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Not...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. That’s why they’re LTAs, limited term. Yeah, so the State will, once
they get notification that come July 1st, we choose not to be their agent, they’re going
to need to decide what they~re going to do with their money and their positions. Again,
either assign it to DLNR which I think is one of the more appropriate agencies or they
can hire another third-party agent. But the money and the positions, you know, is
still there. The money’s there, the positions are there, it’s just that we won’t be the
agent for the State. Anything else, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I have to think on it a little further.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White, anything at this time?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Nothing to add, sir. I support it.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I just I guess want comment from Corporation
Counsel if there’s anything he can chime in, in reference to.. .maybe I’m not
understanding the tort liability thing that’s going down. But sounds like the State
entities are protecting State and that’s who these guys are. They fund this also so it’s
State money, it’s not technically County taxpayer dollars funding this 10.5 at a State
beach. And I think that that tort liability thing is really more negatively affecting our
County per se lifeguards. Their State people I see are protected of sorts. But now...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, they’ve covered themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. But now our County personnel

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Are exposed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I think

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Are exposed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --are more at risk of sorts. And that’s like 50 or so of them.
So how... so for me I’m looking at it like the State Makena I get it, but they’re kind of
no sweat out of the County of sorts. But it’s now the negative is shifted to our own
people.
CHAIR HOKAMA: All the counties’

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that’s a scary

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: --own ocean safety employees now deal with additional exposure.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, any comments

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you might want to share with the Committee regarding this tort issue?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I won’t pretend to be an expert on all of this, but my
understanding is the way the law is until June 30th is there’s lifeguard immunity. So
lifeguards are immune basically from lawsuits as long as they’re not grossly negligent.
Because the law or the bill was extended but with different provisions, now instead of
immunity I believe the State will defend County lifeguards operating at State beach
parks. So there’s no immunity anymore, it’s just the AGs will defend them which is a
lot different from immunity which is different from indemnification. So that’s how it’s
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different. So there, I guess you could say there is more exposure now since there is no
immunity right now. So that to me is the difference. But of course it’s a policy
decision of this body how they treat it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Chair, I guess

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for your, how are you looking towards our 50 County
lifeguards now? I mean do you think that we’re at such a risk we’re going to have to
just pull that service off the beaches?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. My thing to the State is where is the logic to give their park
the coverage and then five feet, ten feet away the County beach, same situation, the
person needs services, our people jump in but something happens, but they now are
exposed.
Again, I don’t understand it ‘cause as agents we’re entering State
jurisdiction in the rescue. Whether it’s in the State park or the County park, when
they enter to save the person in the water, it’s State jurisdiction. Okay. And we’re
acting as an agent to provide public safety. For me, the more critical component and
again, you know, Mr. Ueoka brought one point, the State will defend. My issue now is
also for the County, the judgment and penalties that the County will now be required
to consider and budget, as well as how, you know, I don’t know what under the new
proposed law how that impacts even the individual lifeguard and his personal assets.
Okay. ‘Cause now they’re not getting covered now. So I understand how much they
can expose the County to, my concern is the judgments ‘cause no judgment will be
less than seven digits more than likely on a beach issue. But how much now do we
expose our own employee for personal liability? ‘Cause now they~re not covered under
the tort bill. I have issue, you know, so again that’s some of my concerns, I share that
with you. Mr. Ueoka can you give you more comment, but that’s how I’m looking at it.
It’s...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it’s... Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it’s a different situation for indemnification like we get, I
mean in their line of work, that doesn’t play out and this bill is removing that type of
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, if you can

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --indemnification?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --give us some comment.
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MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. No, currently the bill says immunity so basically I guess
generally or loosely speaking, they can’t be sued as long as they~re not grossly
negligent in performing their job duties. But that ends on June 30th. Come July 1st,
all that happens is if someone wants to sue at a... and the County lifeguard is
operating in a State-owned beach park, my understanding is, all that happens is the
AGs will defend in a lawsuit. Like Chair said, there’ll still be a judgment or potentially,
there’s a potential for a judgment to need to be paid. I don’t know who would end up
paying that, it all depends; however, as a County employee, this body has the option
to, you know, also do the defense and indemnify the individual. Very similar what you
guys do for police officers. I mean that’s the biggest example I can think of. But that’s
up to this body. And the State does have the ability to indemnify the counties, but
that’s a whole nother operation that would need to be undertaken. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. No, thank you, Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and Mr. Ueoka, for a lot more insight on that. Yeah. So I
don’t...
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s another hard rock we’re between.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So is this a revisit on this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I’m going to go down the line and ask Ms. Sugimura for her
comments if she has any at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So Makena is the only beach park

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: State beach park we have.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --State park that we’re involved with.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a contract with the State, yes. Kauai I believe has two parks and
Big Island one.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So unfortunate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then we’re on our own on all other areas.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So the employees that we have, these ten employees, are
they aware of this situation
--
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m sure

--

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --and expecting...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --many of them are. I know the head of their unit has been testifying at
the capitol, has been in front of media cameras trying to explain to the State decision
makers of, that they should try and retain or make it permanent, the coverage. But so
far it seems they’ve been unsuccessful.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Wow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Atay, any thoughts you may have?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Yeah. These Ocean Safety officers are aware. I’ve received a
couple of e-mails and requests from them for protecting their jobs. This decision will
affect ten-and-a-half positions of Ocean Safety officers. I know the position that it’s a
State beach, State beach park, the issue at the, with the State government. But I sit
here not happy, sad for, these are our young Maui families that we gotta fend for and
see how we can transition.
They just transitioned from Bargaining Unit 3 to
Bargaining Unit 14. I don’t know how that will work where if because they’re assigned
to the State beach that is, you know, what the ramifications of employment will be.
But for that fact I’m not happy with this decision because it does affect our people.
But on the other side, I do understand the decision in regards to our relationship with
the State government.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I think everybody says, said about, just about everything.
You know I can see the wipeouts, I can see the attitude towards the State, but, you
know, I have to go ten-and-a-half actual Ocean Safety guards, they have families. So
when we make this kind of decision, what sort of consequences will come out of this?
The State not going change their mind, it’s going to come before the full Legislature,
then it goes to the Governor. And so I guess for me, how.. .what more can we say?
The statement, I mean we choose or the State chooses to be difficult with us, and
then, you know, we fight fire with fire instead of try use water to put out the fire and
that doesn’t work either. I don’t appreciate where there has not been no conversation
with the lifeguards or their unions and make this kind of decision without that kind of
conversation to prepare them. I can see if we went on the table for these employees.
And like Mr. Atay said, they’re Maui families, they’re not from anywhere. I mean one
of our employees, the brother works there, you know, I mean he’s constantly calling.
What’s the status? Yeah. Oh, that’s why, too bad, we going shove ‘em up them
because the State. And yet they can get somebody else to contract it. I don’t
appreciate it, we all worked hard to try and convince our State Legislators, and they
choose not to support it. And when I’ve talked to lifeguards on Oahu and what have,
they’ve basically kind of... and on Maui they’ve kind of accepted the fact that it is what
it is. They’re just like the police officers, they’re like the firefighters, County will
indemnify them, and it is what it is, you know. So they’re willing to do their job and
-
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we have our hands full, and hopefully we don’t have to deal with any kind of lawsuits,
but that’s it. I know where you’re coming from, Chair, I hear you, and we’ve had these
kind of discussions about the State. But I gotta consider the employees. What do we
have for them? Oh, we just say you~re LTAs, too bad, so sad, good bye. And that
makes it difficult for me. I just being very honest about it. Not... that’s all I’ve got to
say.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Carroll, anything you want to say? Okay, thank
you. If they terminate the program, the State, many of them have return rights to
other position. So a RIF will start into effect because... and then seniority will kick in
and follow the contract on filling the positions by their return rights. So for those that
have it, they will have a job with the County in a County position. Okay. That’s what
will happen. So we... one, we need to understand our contracts. Two, I understand
your hearts, okay, but at times you gotta do the financial decision. We make the
wrong one, more people will be jeopardized.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair? When you say financial decision, are you talking
overall that what can come about with any kind of liabilities? Is that what you~re
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --looking at possibilities, not necessarily the availability of
the funds that pay these Ocean Safety with an agreement? And that being said, is it
Council who makes that.. .who authorizes the agreement or does it come from
Administration?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The agreement is worked through the Administration, it’s up to the
Council to accept.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. And I know I sound like a Jell-O or a softy, but I just
looking at consequences, consequences. So you going have the domino effect, I
bounce you, the next guy bounce the other guy, you still going hit it that way. So and
yes, there’s all kind possibilities even as police officers, firefighters, we all have the
possibilities that what can happen. So now to me the Ocean Safety are put in that
same kind of employee situation that the what-ifs can happen. And, you know
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, I have a question. What... how does this affect the Ocean
Safety Division? Are they going to need less personnel to, since they’re not overseeing
these ten-and-a-half positions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, they’re staffed appropriately for all other beach parks
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the County.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: So it doesn’t affect the rest of the Ocean Safety?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. Plus those ten positions is just dedicated for Makena. Okay.
So this is where we are, this is the realities. This is the hard decisions you were
chosen to make. Okay. So as your Budget Chair, you have my recommendation. You
guys can accept it or not. But we’ll make the call tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I say no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I share some of the same sentiments that Ms. Crivello shared,
but at the same time, there is, although it doesn’t seem like a lot of time between now
and June 30th, there’s a significant amount of time between now and June 30th. This
cash isn’t going to go away.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s a grant, you’re right. It’s not going to go away.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So like some of the other decisions, there’s nothing that we need
to.. .nothing we do tonight is really final, because we can do a Budget amendment if we
come to some agreement. And it may very well be that the State has been working to
figure out how they’re going to take care of their responsibilities at Makena and step
up to the plate and ask all the folks at Makena to become part of their crew. So I don’t
want to have Makena unprotected, but there’s a lot of stuff that’s happened over the
last couple of days that I didn’t want to see either. And quite frankly I don’t feel that
the lifeguards are really going to be at risk, because somebody is going to step up to
the plate one way or the other and get Makena covered. So I’m comfortable with this
decision because it’s not final. And I don’t want to see any of the families that are
currently depending on that, this grant to be hurt in any way. But at this point I feel
it’s the responsible thing for us to do to put them in a little bit of limbo because of
what the State has done to, you know, rake us over the coals. And so I don’t see this
as a move that’s going to jeopardize them, because I don’t think either the State or the
County is going to want to leave Makena unprotected, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Most of the Members don’t know, I spent
the morning over at the court house in a conference, settlement conference on behalf
of the legal affairs committee and yeah, this is a very difficult situation
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and it put me in a bad mood coming out of that conference,
and therefore I’m still in a bad mood. But anyway, this is very difficult. I completely
understand where you’re coming from, Chair, in terms of the statement that we’re
making here to the State. My question is, if we are exposed regarding liability-wise
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and it’s, we don’t have the immunity for our employees on the State properties, so we
basically have indemnification because of the fact none of that. So you just had
mentioned earlier that the Attorney General’s Office would defend only.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I believe that’s what the current bill says. It’s they’ll do the
defense. It’s not a full indemnification statement.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And the bill hasn’t been passed yet?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is what is out of Conference.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It’s out of Conference.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s going to both houses for consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right, right. Okay. So that being said, that we can always...I
kind of know where you~re going with this, but I’m going to follow your lead ‘cause I
know that this possibly can be... I’m not going to say any further but I see where you’re
going. So I will support this. And I, and I’m actually feeling that the employees will be
okay either way ‘cause we’ll take care of them. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you, Chair. Just listening to all of my colleagues here, for
the same reasons that, of my previous two colleagues said because things can always
be changed. I’m going to vote against this, because I think we can always let this
program go at a later date before the end of this fiscal year. And so I just have a really
hard time with this, these ten-and-a-half employees, the position we’re putting them
in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So by listening to the discussion, so will we have.., once we
pass this Budget, I’m just wondering in terms of timing then if we pass this Budget,
would we have the opportunity to if things change with the Legislature and the bill or,
you know?
CHAIR HOKAMA: First reading is planned for May 12th. Legislature will already have
adjourned sine die, so we’re going to know where we stand by first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Okay.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So I see where you’re going and why you’re recommending
this, Chair, and I support this with the hopes that by first reading we’ll have the
opportunity to make another decision on this in a more positive light. As I think that’s
the ray of hope that’s out there and the possibility. So we can move forward on this
Budget, this one item, I stand by you and your decision. I understand that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Well, I guess that’s why we’re here, make tough decisions. But,
you know, listening to my fellow colleagues, I’ve had chance to, you know, try to reflect
and think and look within myself. And I strongly believe that I’m a values-based
leader and with that I gotta stick with my values. Just like the other day I said no one
gets left behind, ohana is family. These guys are employees of the County of Maui.
Irregardless of the chess games we’re going to be playing with the State, I still gotta
stand and protect these families. So I will, you know, not support this, mainly to
support the families.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else has anything else? Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, I do understand where you’~re going. You’ve heard my
frustrations throughout our lobbying and trying to push these bills forward with our
Legislators and it hasn’t budged any. There was one strong proponent and that was
Senator Kalani English who actually submitted the Senate bill to our favor. But
what.. .we don’t even have a plan. I mean we should be on the table with the
bargaining units to see where, what the plans are for these 10.5 employees. And will
this change the State Legislators’ attempts on their tort bill, on their TAT bill, even the
ambulance purchases? I mean we’ve gone through... I mean we... they had no regard
for us and that’s real. But they push everything through. So will it come back when
we do this? Will the State Legislature say oh, we want a special session because they
going shut this place down? I don’t see that happen. And we still will be able to
respond to our lifeguards, because as County employees they have indemnification
and we still will have to respond to them. And that’s what we have to live with today,
no different from how we deal with our police officers and our firefighters. So in all
due respect, Chair, I will not support this attempt.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, anyone else wants to speak? Okay, you have the
Chair’s recommendation. Okay. We’re going to vote. All those that support the
Chair’s recommendation, raise your hand. One.. .two. .three. Okay. No, raise your
hand. One.. .two. .three. .four. five. Okay, doesn’t make it so we’ll keep it as is.
Anything else we have, Staff? And that’s it. So we’re done.
.

.

.

. .

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So.. .yes, Ms. Cochran?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, before we close. So I did have a proposal for a
placeholder of sorts in the Open Space Fund. I guess similar to a couple items you’ve
put there. So should I just wait till Monday?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Monday.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
and it’s... so, okay.

Okay.

‘Cause I know that money is not going to go away

CHAIR HOKAMA: Doesn’t lapse.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
language.

All right.

And I already worked with Mr. Ueoka in some

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So Monday is the provisos and the minor tweaking. We’re going to
adjust the bond, the interfund transfers, fringes, and work on the RPT. Okay.
Monday till what time, 11:00? Okay, we’re going to be, get back Monday at 11:00.
Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What time is our Council meeting?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine o’clock.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, so this Committee will stand in recess till 11:00 a.m. Monday.

(gavel)...
RECESS:

11:46 p.m.
APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min: 170428:ds

Transcribed by: Daniel Schoenbeck
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